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COMPANY PROFILE
GGy

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration turnkey
solution provider in China. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
31 completed hazardous waste incineration projects with aggregate
designed disposal capacity of 727,300 tonnes per annum, and
18 ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects with aggregate

designed disposal capacity of 446,000 tonnes per annum.

The shares of the Company had been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 3 January 2019.

Leveraging its experience and expertise in hazardous waste
incineration, the Group has expanded its offerings to other areas
of solid waste treatment, such as thermal desorption of oil sludge,
pyrolysis treatment of solid waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-

treatment.

The Group will continue to focus on the technology innovation
to maintain its advanced technology and strong R&D capability.
To capture the opportunities brought by the policies for the
development of the environmental protection industry and the huge
demand of industrial enterprise to comply with increasingly tighter
environmental protection policies, the Group will leverage on its
technology advantage to expanding its business into more and
more new areas, and devote itself to become a leading solid waste

treatment solutions provider in China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

QA EF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Zhuhua (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Honghui
Mr. Deng Zhaoshan

Mr. Gu Chunbin (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ren Jingfeng (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Yang Zhigiang (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Zhifeng
Mr. Jiang Guoliang
Mr. Feng Tao

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Feng Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Zhifeng
Mr. Jiang Guoliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Feng Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Honghui
Mr. Jiang Guoliang
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cai Zhuhua
Mr. Gu Chunbin

LEGAL ADVISERS TO OUR COMPANY

As to Hong Kong law:

Miao & Co.

(in Association with Han Kun Law Offices)
Rooms 3901-05, 39/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law:
Walkers (Hong Kong)

15th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

DeHeng Law Offices (Guangzhou)

17/F, the North Tower of Guangzhou Media Centre
370 Yuejiang West Road

Haizhu District

Guangzhou 510335

PRC

AUDITORS AND REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
2/F, 625 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

RREAK

EIRERE
ENEX e

RABEERERB

BRAEMESHT
(BLEIREM BB )
B

SRREF 155

B ES
AEBKRE3913901-05 F

BRESHEZEE -
Walkers (&%)
e

IR

BT 189
FELRE15E

FIR A B 72
JbREE(EMN) RMEBAT
a3

=i

TR

BT 370 5%
BRA O EA1T7E

4R : 510335

BRT A R R EFHAD

ABEB G EBEAERAR
S ES -]

BB

it A

REEE2555 218

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 48RRI FIERERER A T



CORPORATE INFORMATION
QXA EH

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Altus Capital Limited
21 Wing Wo Street
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

190 Elgin Avenue
George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

14-15/F, Block A4

No. 181 Science Boulevard
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province
China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3507, 35/F, AIA Tower
183 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

PRINCIPAL BANK

Bank of Guangzhou

Science City Branch

3/F, Science and Technology
Innovation Base Complex

80 Lanyue Road

Science City, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

China

China Merchants Bank

Hong Kong Branch

31/F, Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place, Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1845

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.gzweigang.com/

DATE OF LISTING

3 January 2019
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB536.8 million, representing a decrease of 0.1% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross profit of the
Group amounted to RMB82.9 million and the gross profit margin of
the Group was 15.4%, representing a decrease of 42.5% and 11.4
percentage points as compared with the year ended 31 December
2019, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net loss
amounted to RMB7.4 million, and the net loss margin of the Group
was 1.4%, compared with the net profit amounted to RMB78.0
million and the net profit margin of 14.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss attributable to
owners of the Company was RMB10.9 million, compared with the
profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB67.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the basic loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMBO0.008,
compared with the basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to RMBO0.050 for the year ended 31

HZE2020F12A31HILFE  REERNKA
BARKES36.8BET  WEE2019F 12 A 31
HIEFERA0.1% °

HE2020F12A31BILEE  AEBWHEF
AARKESIEE L MALBNERXL A
15.4% » DRI B EH E2019F 12831 HIEFE
S 42.5% KB 11 AEB D E -

MEE2019F 12 A3 BILEEMERNARE
780B BT MFME145% L, - REBEE
2020F 12 A1 AL FEHBFFEEARK74
BEL MAEENFEBXANAE1.4% -

EEFHE2019F12A31HIEFEARRAREAEA A
EMRFIBARK67.08 &AL - # % 2020 F
12A31HLEFEARAEAS AEBEEBEEAAR
BA109EEBTT °

HEZE2019F 12 A1 B IEFEERAATEES A
EEERERABFIARECOSOITLEL  BE
2020 12 AB1HIEFEARGHEEAEELSE
e EAEIE A AR 0.0087T °

December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 20194 20184 2017 4F 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T AREFr AREFr AREFr AREF
Revenue WA 536,811 537,509 480,091 189,407 88,971
Gross profit EH 82,882 144,236 124,663 62,104 28,840
(Loss)/profit before income B FAEHAI(EE),/
tax F1E8 (8,319) 91,122 67,970 36,379 22,880
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEREE,(Fx) 949 (13,091) (10,559) (6,620) (3,357)
(Loss)/profit for the year  ER(FE),FH (7,370) 78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523
(Loss)/profit attributable LT & AR (EE)
to: Ve
Owners of the Company RATER A (10,929) 66,984 49,799 30,195 19,523
Non-controlling interests IR 3,559 11,047 7,612 (436) —
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 20194 20184 2017 2016 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr
Total Assets BEHLE 938,723 802,027 469,735 253,053 90,842
Total liabilities BELE 343,639 227,886 310,445 218,356 38,443
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 89,739 57,326 27,220 (436) —
Equity attributable to the RARHER AEMR
owners of the Company i 505,345 516,815 132,070 35,133 52,399
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREEE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the future outlook
of 2021.

2020 REVIEW

The year 2020 was an exceptional year. In 2020, the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19") spread rapidly across the world with
most countries being hit hard by the pandemic, the road to global
economic recovery will be long and challenging. However, thanks
to effective pandemic prevention and control measures, various
industries in China took lead in resuming work and production and
China became the only major economy in the world that achieved
positive economic growth.

In 2020, the Group shouldered and fulfilled its social responsibilities.
During the critical period of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
adopted scientific pandemic prevention and control measures,
and the staff guarded their positions steadfastly, to ensure that all
projects operated at full swing and provided high quality services
to our customers. The recognition from our customers which the
Group has received is its driving force to move forward. On behalf
of the Board of Directors and the senior management, | would like
to extend my sincere gratitude to all colleagues who have remained
at their posts with hard work, as well as people from all walks of life
who have given great support to the Group’s development all along!

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, the Group will continue to capture the
opportunities brought by the policies for the development of the
environmental protection industry, and actively seize more business
opportunities from solid waste treatment by commercialising its
advanced solid waste treatment technologies to market with the
resources from strategic shareholders, the capital market network,
and its strong R&D capabilities. The Group will still continue to
focus on the technology innovation to further expand the Group’s
business scope, maintain the Group’s leading position in the market,
maximize shareholder returns and optimize the Group’s commitment
of becoming a leading solid waste treatment solutions provider in
China.

CAl Zhuhua
Chairman

26 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution provider in China focused on
the research, design, integration and commissioning of solid
waste treatment systems, particularly for hazardous waste
incineration. Leveraging its experience and expertise in
hazardous waste incineration, the Group has expanded its
offerings to other areas of solid waste treatment, such as
thermal desorption of oil sludge, pyrolysis treatment of solid
waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment. The Group
conducts research and development of technologies related
to these new areas and have successfully applied some of

them to its new solid waste treatment projects.

In 2020, the Group primarily engaged in and generated a
substantial portion of the revenue from the design, integration
and commissioning of hazardous waste incineration systems

in China.
Provision of Hazardous Waste Incineration Solutions

Before 2020, the Group has 20 completed hazardous waste
incineration projects with aggregate designed disposal
capacity of 435,000 tonnes per annum which were passed to
the Group’s customers in normal operation. In 2020, the Group
completed 11 more hazardous waste incineration projects with
an aggregate designed disposal capacity of approximately
292,500 tonnes per annum. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had 18 ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects
on hand, covering 18 cities in China with an aggregate
designed disposal capacity of approximately 446,000 tonnes
per annum. The table below sets out the summary of the
completed hazardous waste incineration projects in 2020 and
the ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects as at 31
December 2020:

E 3 3E1)

AEBERTFEBENGABREMRIER
EREBRFRNTREMHRE  INEEED
BERAG(LEZERENRELRE ZR)
BB - RAEF - SRR o BEAKE
ERBEYMRERETHNERREEM
B ARECDBEHEREEREYREIE
Y EAD BRI - AR EABLA - Bl RS EE MY
BARBEEMOEREEFITIHRE
E o AEEFREZ SRR N
W - 2R A RR 0 BT B AR R A R
) EREREYIRRIEAE -

R2020F + AEEEEBEFHIZHEREE
MIRIERE ZHNE - EREAR I
BEARELERK—ZIDWA o

RUCRBNRBEEERARTR

2020 A - ANE B TR T 20 18 2 b BF
MREREEBEVYECREFELETHEH
FTAEENER R RFAERBEEIA
435,000 /& o }20204F & A& &£ B FH
SNTERL T 11 EBRENREEEER -
ST ETE B/ N4 5292,500M8 4 »
2020412 A31H A% EF L H18
BEERENREREEE MATT - B
FEISEMT  REARABREENNA
446,00018, 4 o TRE T 2020 F & T
EREDREREEB KR2020F 12 A
31 AMARTILEMREERSHEE O
E:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESNWmE DM

Completed hazardous waste incineration projects in 2020: R2020F R THEREYREREER :

Designed Disposal/
Treatment Capacity

No. Project (tonnes per annum)

RARE/ BB

w®%  EE (W, %)

1 Xiamen hazardous waste incineration project EFMERENTEEERE 20,000

2 Shaoxing hazardous waste incineration project REERENREREER 20,000

3 Guizhou Qiannanzhou hazardous waste incineration project ~ BNERENREREER 20,000

4 Jiangsu Changging Nonghua Nantong hazardous waste IHRSECHBRREENIG 22,500
incineration project REEE

5 Hubei Yaojiagang industrial waste treatment and utilisation MR AEIEENRERE R 30,000
project | HE-H

6 Sichuan Chengdu hazardous waste incineration project | mIR AR EMEE L 30,000

7 Foshan hazardous waste incineration project BLEEREREER 30,000

8 Dongguan hazardous wasteincineration project REENEEETEE 20,000

9 Hangzhou 3rd solid waste treatment center project | MMNE=EEEEHL—HER 60,000

10 Xinjiang Bazhou hazardous waste and solid waste treatment  #iiE8E N EEEERIERE R0 IEH 20,000

center project

11 Jilin hazardous waste incineration project EMERENIEEEER 20,000

Total @t 292,500

* Completed project is defined as which the system functionality - BRTIEERERTHEGEENEFEHE

evaluation is completed. A -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

Ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects as at 31
December 2020:

R2020F 12 A31 BHAT IHBHRED
REEEIEE

Designed Disposal/
Treatment Capacity

No. Project (tonnes per annum)
BHRE/ REEN

&%  EEB (W, %)
1 Yantai hazardous waste incineration project EaBERERERR 30,000
2 North Bay hazardous waste incineration project LB ERENTEREERE 16,500
3 Guangzhou hazardous waste incineration project BMERENREEZERE 33,000
4 Zhuhai hazardous waste incineration project KEERENRERERR 20,000
5 Jiangsu Nanjing hazardous waste incineration Project IEERERENREREEE 21,000
6 Henan Puyang hazardous waste incineration project MRS EERERERR 15,000
7 Sichuan Zigong industry hazardous waste treatment project M| BEE T ¥BRENEREER 30,000
8 Anging hazardous waste incineration project ZERRENIIGREER 30,000
9 Shandong hazardous waste incineration project R ERENTEEERE 33,000
10 Hubei Xianning hazardous waste incineration project IR EERENREREER 21,000
11 Sichuan Meishan hazardous waste incineration project mIELERENEEEER 21,000
12 Yunfu hazardous waste incineration project EEERENRERERR 25,000
13 Huanggang hazardous waste incineration project EMEBENREREER 30,000
14 Xianju hazardous waste incineration project WEEREIREREER 15,000
15 Guangzhou East Area hazardous waste incineration project BMEDERENTIEREEREE 33,000
16 Jiangsu Xuzhou hazardous waste incineration project THGNERENTIEEEEE 20,000
17 Hubei Yichang hazardous waste incineration project MILEERERENERERE 22,500
18 Zhejiang Zhoushan hazardous waste incineration project AL ERENEREREE 30,000
Total “@st 446,000

Provision of Qilfield Auxiliary Services

On 26 March 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of
Xinjiang Tiansheng Xinhong Environmental Protection Co.,
Ltd. (“Xinjiang Tiansheng”), which is principally engaged in
the business of provision of oil sludge thermal desorption
treatment services and oilfield auxiliary services in Xinjiang

Uyghur Autonomous Region.

Through Xinjiang Tiansheng, the Group entered into the oilfield
auxiliary services market of Xinjiang and recorded relevant

revenue amounted to RMB48.5 million during the year.

RECHEBRRE

2020F3 A 26 H « AEETEHK T
BREFNZREREIBEARAA(THFERXR
BHRE NEAERIERNEETH
BUR R A BRI R B 25 LA KO/
HEZ RIS -

BBFIERE  ANEEKIEATIENA
HEE RS TS WA FESHE S KA
RiEA85AETT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue decreased by 0.1% from RMB537.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB536.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group derived the majority of its revenue from provision
of hazardous waste incineration solutions and the remainder
from provision of oil sludge thermal desorption solution,
pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions and other services

including technical upgrading and maintenance services.

Revenue from hazardous waste incineration solutions
increased by 3.4% from RMB453.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB468.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. This increase was mainly driven by a
combination of favourable factors: 1) general increase in
market demand; and 2) increased customer recognition of the

Group.

The Group recorded oilfield auxiliary services revenue
amounted to RMB48.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: nil), which was brought by the acquisition of

Xinjiang Tiansheng.

Revenue from other services (including technical upgrading
services and maintenance services) increased by 17.8% from
RMB16.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB19.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. This
increase was attributable to more technical upgrading and
maintenance services demand from customers during the

year.

ISR R R R A

L'ON

WAMEZ2019F 12 A1 HIEFEHA
R¥537.5ABLR 2 0.1% £ & = 2020
FI12ANBILEFENARKS36.88 &
ﬁ: o
REENKRE D WAKRBRHEREDRK
BREBEMART R R AR B RMRR
HEMEATR SESNREREEVNEE
BRR 7 R R H A AR T (B 3B BT AR B e v
BR7) °

ERENRERERATZHBRAREE
2019 12 A31BIEFEMARK453.0
BE LI IN3.4% = B 2020 F 12 A 31
HBIEFEMARKAIBSEE T - ZBE
FTERZBEENEZHRAHES  1)Mi5H
REBER: RO)AEEREFRANEIR
It o

HZE2020F 12 A31 A ILFE - REFEE
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(20194F : )  ZFERARKBERIE
EREE o

PR B E R 7 &Y WA (B35 B AR R 4
EIRIS)MEE 201941231 B IEFE
WMAEK163B & T MI78%EEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

Cost of Services

Cost of services increased by 15.4% from RMB393.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB453.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. This increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in cost of services for the
Group’s hazardous waste incineration treatment business and

provision of oilfield auxiliary services.

Cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste incineration
treatment business consists primarily of (i) cost of equipment
and materials; (ii) direct labour costs; (iii) sub-contracting

costs; and (iv) others.

The cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste
incineration treatment business increased by 13.0% from
RMB353.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB399.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
This increase was mainly due to the Company has procured
equipment and materials with higher cost for installation of
certain hazardous incineration systems so as to improve the
quality of our systems, enhance our corporate brand and

maintain better relationship with our customers.

The Group’s cost of oilfield auxiliary services was RMB37.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil),
which was attributable to the commencement of oilfield
auxiliary services after the completion of acquisition of

Xinjiang Tiansheng in the first quarter of 2020.

Cost of services for other services increased by 22.6% from
RMB12.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB15.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. This
increase was in line with the Group’s other services revenue,

which increased in 2020 compared with 2019.

PR 3% AR A<

RIS AREE2019F 12 A31 ALLEFE
MARMIISIEETLEMIS 4% EHE
2020F 12 A31HILFEM AR 453.9
BET  ZERFEFERAEEN R
FEVIR G R B 575 R AR 0 A BB AR TS &Y
AR A A _E R o

R B e [ B YD IR B B 2R 7% B AR 165 PR AR
TEBRHE  ()RBEMBBA © (i)EEA
TRCR & (i) B+ R (iv) HAth o

RNEE Bk BEYR GRS EEH R A
HEE2019F 12 A1 BIEFEMARKE
353.6 B & JT i §113.0% & & = 2020 F
12A31HBILEFENAREI94EET -
ZERTIZREARARSERMESANEG
2 RARMORGAREREREZPEH
RIFEER  RATIAR S K AERE T A
RS TEREDERFE DR
B} o

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE - KEEK
BhHEZRBHREK AR ARE37.2
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2020 FE—E[E TR ETHT B R B AU EE o
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2 H b BR 5 e A — BR - i E R 2020 FF R
2019 F 48 ©
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 42.5% from RMB144.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB82.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, while the gross
profit margin decrease from 26.8% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to 15.4% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and
gross profit margin for each of the business segments for the

periods stated.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDM

EFREBEFZ

NEERNEF R 2019FHARKE 14428
& TT 4 42.5% E 2020 F ) A R#82.9
BET MENEREZEZ2019F 12 A 31
H IEF E #26.8% 8 2 E & Z 2020 F 12
RA31BIEFER15.4% °

TR BRI A B 5 275 H
EFREFE

Gross profit GP margin
S Ef%

2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 20196 2020 2019F

RMB million RMB million

ARKEEER NEEEET
Hazardous waste incineration solutions AREMERERATR 69.1 99.4 14.7% 21.9%
Pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions BENRERENRERANE (1.5) 10.3 N/A 45.2%
Qilfield auxiliary services AR MR 113 — 23.3% N/A
Qil sludge thermal desorption treatment services #EZ MR ERE - 30.6 N/A 67.4%
Other services Einh 4.0 39 20.9% 23.9%
Total At 82.9 1442 15.4% 26.8%

The gross profit of hazardous waste incineration solutions
decreased by 30.5% from RMB99.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB69.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. This decrease was mainly attributable to
the gross profit margin decreased. The gross profit margin of
hazardous waste incineration solutions decreased from 21.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 14.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 primarily due to (i) the Company
has adjusted the project price of the hazardous waste
incineration solutions in view of the intense competition in the
market and in order to maintain our leading market share; and
(ii) the Company has procured equipment and materials with
higher cost for installation of certain hazardous incineration
systems so as to improve the quality of our systems, enhance
our corporate brand and maintain good relationships with our

customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

The gross loss of provision of pyrolysis treatment of solid
waste solution for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB1.5 million (2019: gross profit amounted
to RMB10.3 million), which were attributable to the Group’s
pyrolysis treatment project mainly progress in 2019 and some

additional cost occurred in 2020.

The gross profit of oilfield auxiliary services for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to RMB11.3 million (2019: nil),
which was attributable to the completion of acquisition of

Xinjiang Tiansheng in the first quarter of 2020.

The gross profit of provision of oil sludge thermal desorption
solution for the year ended 31 December 2020 was nil (2019:
RMB30.6 million), which was attributable to the completion of
the Group’s existing oil sludge thermal desorption project by

the end of 2019 and the new projects were still in initial stage.

The gross profit of other services increased by 2.6% from
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB4.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
This increase was attributable to the customers’ demand
for maintenance of hazardous waste incineration projects
increase, which is in line with the Group’s expansion in
hazardous waste incineration business. The gross profit
margin of other services decreased from 23.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 20.8% for the year ended 31
December 2020 primarily due to the intense competition in the

market.
Other Income, Gains and Losses

The Group’s other income and gains decreased by 37.0%
from RMB11.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB7.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily attributable to one-off government grants received
for Listing amounted to RMB8.1 million in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDM

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 39.4%
from RMB39.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB55.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily attributable to (i) consolidation of the expenses of
Xinjiang Tiansheng since 2020Q1, which has more than one
hundred staff; (ii) the depreciation expense of oil sludge
thermal desorption equipment was accrued as administrative
expenses in 2020, while which was recognized as cost in
2019 due to the completion of the Group’s existing oil sludge

thermal desorption project by the end of 2019.
Other Expenses

Other expenses mainly include research and development
expenses, which including staff costs, material and other
related costs mainly in connection with the research and

development of solid waste treatment applications.

The Group’s research and development expenses increased
by 3.8% from RMB21.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB21.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, primarily attributable to the Group continued
our focus of research and development on hazardous waste

incineration solutions and new area.
Written-off and impairment losses, net of reversal

The Group’s written-off and impairment losses increased
from RMBO0.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB15.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
This increase was attributable to new provision accrued for
account receivable due to the impact of the novel coronavirus

outbreak.
Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 118.2% from RMB1.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB2.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily

attributable to the increase of borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists of current tax and deferred tax

for PRC enterprise income tax.

The Company operated business principally through its PRC
subsidiaries which were subject to the PRC enterprise income
tax at a statutory rate of 25% on its estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).
Guangzhou Weigang was recognised as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” in 2019 again and was entitled to a
preferential PRC income tax rate of 15% for each of 2020,
2020 and 2021 and such recognition can be applied for
renewal every three years. Xinjiang Tiansheng and Karamay
Shuangxin Company Limited were entitled to a tax concession
of Western Development at a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15% in 2020.

Profit for the Year

For the year 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net loss
amounted to RMB7.4 million, and the net loss margin of the
Group was 1.4%, compared with the net profit amounted to
RMB78.0 million and the net profit margin of 14.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2019. It's mainly due to (1) the
novel coronavirus outbreak in 2020, which caused disruption
to the Group’s business plan (including but not limited to the
delay of hazardous waste incineration solutions progress); and
(2) the gross profit margin of hazardous waste incineration
solutions decreased because of the intense competition in the

market.
Trade and note receivables

The increase in trade and note receivables from RMB143.9
million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB235.0 million as at 31
December 2020 was primarily due to an increase in the total

number of ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.

The average trade receivables turnover days increased
from 83.6 days in 2019 to 99.4 days in 2020 as the Group
consolidated Xinjiang Tiansheng engaged in the oilfield
auxiliary services, which has longer turnover days for the
receivables, a common practice to deal with the oil production
entity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDM

Trade payables

The increase in trade payables from RMB119.6 million as at
31 December 2019 to RMB152.0 million as at 31 December
2020 was primarily due to an increase in the procurement of
equipment and materials, as well as sub- contracting services
which was generally in line with the expanded business and
number of ongoing projects of hazardous waste incineration
at the end of 2020.

The average trade payables turnover days increased from
94.5 days in 2019 to 109.2 days in 2020 as the Group

intended to better manage liquidity and cash flow.
Contract assets

The increase in contract assets from RMB274.4 million as at
31 December 2019 to RMB278.7 million as at 31 December
2020 was primarily due to an increase in our total number of

ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.
Contract liabilities

The increase in contract liabilities from RMB44.2 million as at
31 December 2019 to RMB105.1 million as at 31 December
2020 was primarily due to an increase in our total number of

ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.
Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of
RMB55.7 million provided by several financial institutions
in China, which were secured by the Group’s assets and
the personal guarantee provided by the Group’s controlling
shareholder, Mr. Cai Zhuhua, and his spouse, Ms. Huang Ying
(2019: RMB26.6 million).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s material
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB16.6
million (2019: RMB73.8 million), mainly used for (1) the
purchase of the company and the land for oil sludge treatment
project; (2) the purchase of facility for solid waste treatment

projects owned by the Group that were under construction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitment
amounted to RMB19.5 million (2019: RMB13.0 million) which
consisted mainly of payments to be made for (1) the Cement
Plant Co-treatment project in Guangdong; (2) the pyrolysis

solid waste treatment project in Sichuan.
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged deposits of
RMB43.4 million (2019: RMB53.0 million) mainly for (1) deposit
for bank acceptance which the Groups issued to its suppliers;
and (2) deposit for bank guarantee given to several customers

for performance obligation fulfilment.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the current assets of the Group
were approximately RMB712.3 million, total assets were
approximately RMB938.7 million, current liabilities were
approximately RMB330.4 million and total liabilities were
approximately RMB343.6 million. The gearing ratio (total
liabilities/total assets) of the Group was approximately 36.6%
(2019: 28.4%).

PROSPECTS

In recent years, the PRC government has over time introduced
a series of policies that have far-reaching impact on the
development of the environmental protection industry,
and promoted the sustained and rapid development of
environmental protection. The realisation of “Beautiful China
initiative” and “Ecological Civilization” has been written
into the PRC Constitution, highlighting the importance of
ecological civilization construction in the overall layout of the
country, and the construction of ecological civilization has
risen to the level of national will. With a strong support from
national policies, the demand for solid waste treatment will
continue to grow. The Group will seize these development
opportunities by virtue of its own strength and a leading solid

waste treatment solutions provider in China.

BRARE

202012 31 A AEE K E AN &
BAARB195BEIL(2019F : AR
13.0E&E) TERER()ERKE
iR FRIEIETEE + & (2) )| Ea 2 AR E e
FEYIEE B TR B FTERI AR -

EEEHA

2020412 A31H » ZAEBERFFR
AR 43.45E87L(2019F : AR¥53.0
BEL) FEFBR(NAEEREHEER
BHMBRITEARESZES  RQ)BAGE
TEFBITEHEBNRITRAIZS -

HEAE

M2020F 12 A31H » REEMES K=k
BEBE-

BEXBEHR

M2020F 12 A31H - XEEERBEE
HWARB7TI123EBE L EEBRBEHAR
#9387 BB - MEBBEHARE330.4
BETKEBEEEHNARK3MB6EE
T AEEMEREELE(ABLBE A
EXRE)#536.6% (20194 : 28.4%) °

AR

M BT 2 RE RS ] — R DI EER
ROTEBRAREZENOIR - WRER
BERENAHKBENSRER -BRIXE
TEERE I M ERXAIEEMATEE
PR ERNAYERERM BN
BEMN BRVARXHAERAEZHRMEA
RE@- BHEEAFXBEMEHRNBEAS
o BREMEENFERBEEER - F
AP BERELERREYRIERRTT EHEE
B ARESEBERSEBEERTH
R -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT & 3R

19



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDM

So far, the prevention and control measures of the new
coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19 pandemic”) adopted by
various countries are still under huge pressures due to the
global spread of COVID-19 pandemic, having an significant
impact on the global economy. In addition, intensifying
geopolitical conflict against the backdrop of COVID-19
pandemic has also painted a grim outlook of global economy

with uncertainties.

At present, the COVID-19 pandemic appears to be effectively
controlled in China, and domestic economic activities has
returned to normal since the reopening of businesses at
steady and gradual pace. The latest series of economic
data also show that the Chinese economy has been resilient
against the COVID-19 pandemic. As the pressures and
challenges still weigh on the external economic landscape
and the pandemic-control, China is expected to focus on
pursuing economic progress while ensuring overall stability.
Upon the balance between normalizing COVID-19 prevention
efforts and promoting economic and social development,
China’ economy will be propelled to a phase of high-quality
growth.

Taking into account the challenge for epidemic prevention, the
Group has set up a epidemic prevention regime comprising
the head office and the project companies, with specific
duties, tasks and guidelines for epidemic prevention allocated
to ensure that there would be no blind spots in epidemic
prevention. The impact of the epidemic of coronavirus on
the operation status of the Group has been controllable as a

result of the adoption of the plans mentioned above.

In the first half of 2020, the lockdown measures and
restrictions implemented by the government as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic caused supply chain disruptions
and construction delays of our projects. With our customers
and suppliers adjusting their operations to adapt the ongoing
social-distancing measures, the equipment supplies and the
construction activities have gradually returned to close to

normal levels since the middle of the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDM

The Group will continue to capture the opportunities brought
by the policies for the development of the environmental
protection industry, and actively seize more business
opportunities from solid waste treatment by commercialising
its advanced solid waste treatment technologies to market
with the resources from strategic shareholders, the capital
market network, and its strong R&D capabilities. The Group
will still continue to focus on the technology innovation to
further expand the Group’s business scope, maintain the
Group’s leading position in the market, maximize shareholder
returns. Looking forward, the Group will carry out the following

tasks with its existing advantages:

Continue to consolidate the leading market position and

expand the market share on hazardous waste incineration

The Group will focus on: (1) further improving technics
on hazardous waste incineration treatments; (2) continue
to cultivate customer relationships as well as explore
new customers in both China and oversea markets; (3)
facilitate more frequent communications and provide more
comprehensive value-add services with industry participants;
and (4) further investment on other area of hazardous waste
treatment, including applying the facilities of oil sludge
thermal desorption technology, upgrading cement production
facilities to implement hazardous waste cooperative disposal

system and etc.

Grasp more business opportunities on solid waste

treatment through industrialization of pyrolysis technology

The Group will explore the demand of market by developing
and commercializing solutions for a number of new solid
waste treatment applications such as with respect to waste

new energy batteries and waste paper residues.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

Further enhance our competitiveness and risk

management with the adoption of more project models

The Group will continue to seek opportunities to participate
in solid waste treatment projects by exploring different
project models, such as the first operation and maintenance
services project, an oil sludge treatment facility designed
and commissioned in Karamay. In future, the Group may also
consider investing in and/or operating its own solid waste
treatment projects as primary or joint project owner in other

new area of solid waste treatment industry.

Utilize capital market platform to realize enterprise value

appreciation

While developing business and expanding the markets, the
Group will leverage its strong capital strength to enter the
fields of solid waste treatment through various approaches,
such as technology cooperation, investment, mergers and
acquisitions, so as to build an integrated environmental

industry group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market practices.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 332 employees
(2019: 230 employees), among which more than 200 were personnel
conducting R&D, project management and execution for our

business.

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject to

the approval by the shareholders in the general meeting.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 January 2019.

The net proceeds raised from the global offering were approximately

HK$259.4 million (approximately equivalent to RMB227.2 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change

in the intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in

the prospectus of the Company dated 19 December 2018 (the

“prospectus”).

Net proceeds

Utilisation up to
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from the global 31 December Unutilised Expected timeline
Unit: RMB million offering 2020 amount of the unutilised amount
2R BZ2020%
BEFRE 12A31H ABAEHE
By - ARKE&ET RERE EHAEH ABAEE BIHAEARH
Utilisation of the pyrolysis technology 90.9 90.9 — N/A
for the treatment of various types of
solid waste
AEFIRSRERENRENEASE TER
il
Establishment of a research and 45.4 — 45.4  The unutilised amount is
engineering centre expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
FERLA TR TREEM O REFEBIAR £ 2023 F T F
REHEATE
Commercialisation of oil sludge thermal 341 11.0 23.1  The unutilised amount is
desorption technology expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
RERERBR IR B R REA G R 2023 F T+ F
AEmERTE
Invest in and operate the business of 341 26.1 8.0 The unutilised amount is
cement plant parallel kiln expected to be fully utilised
co-treatment solutions by the second half of 2023
REREREEIOEREETT AP B EREE2023F T +5F
BREE R RER REEEATE
Working capital and general corporate 22.7 22.7 — N/A
use
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Total 227.2 150.7 76.5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

OTHER INFORMATION
Adoption of Dividend Policy

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 26
March 2019 (“Dividend Policy”) that aims to set out the principles
and guidelines of the Company in relation to the declaration,

recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should
be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
When considering dividend declaration recommendation, the Board

shall take into account of the following factors:
(i) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(i)  capital requirement for the Group’s existing/ potential project

or investment;

(iii)  earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable

reserves of the Company and the Group; and
(iv)  other factors that the Board deem relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
provisions of the Articles of the Company, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to
recommend final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and
to declare or not to declare any other dividends, including but
not limited to interim and/or special dividends, after taking into

consideration the factors as stated in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended and modified from

time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENSNEEE

DIRECTORS 5=

Name Age Date of appointment Position

A Fie EZEEH B

Mr. CAl Zhuhua 57 18 May 2017 Executive Director

BIREES 57 %% 20175 A 18R BWiTE=R

Mr. DONG Honghui 50 27 April 2018 Executive Director

EAESRE 50 7% 2018 4 A 278 BWiITES

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan 54 27 April 2018 Executive Director

BkELE 5435% 20184 4 A 278 WITES

Mr. GU Chunbin 31 11 March 2021 Executive Director

SEWESE 31%% 20213 A 11H WiITES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng 57 3 January 2019 Independent non-executive Director
T S 57 %% 201941 H38H BUIEHITES

Mr. FENG Tao 46 3 January 2019 Independent non-executive Director
BB AE 46 7% 20194 1HA3H BURITES

Mr. JIANG Guoliang 45 3 January 2019 Independent non-executive Director
BERLE 45 73% 201941 A3H BUIHITES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. CAl Zhuhua, aged 57, is an executive Director and the
chairman of our Board since 27 April 2018. Mr. CAl is responsible
for the management of the Board and the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr.
CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG, who is a member of our senior
management. Mr. CAl is also the chairman of the nomination

committee of the Board.

Mr. CAl has over 22 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions and in particular for hazardous waste

incineration.

Mr. CAl was awarded a bachelor’'s degree in welding engineering
by South China University of Technology* (¥ T AZ) (then
known as South China Engineering College* (¥ f T £t )) in
the PRC in July 1984. Mr. CAl was certified as an engineer by
Guangzhou Science and Technology Committee* (&N MRl 2RI E
8%) in March 1993.

Mr. DONG Honghui, aged 50, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DONG is responsible for the daily operation of our
Group.

Mr. DONG has over 15 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. Mr. DONG joined the Group in 2009 and has
been the general manager of Guangzhou Weigang Environmental
Protection Technology Limited* (B /M # B REREBHEER A7)
(“Guangzhou Weigang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. DONG obtained a bachelor's degree in material science and
engineering from Northwestern Polytechnical University* (7 1t
T K2) in China in July 1993. Mr. DONG was certified as a
mechanical engineer by Guangzhou Personnel Bureau* (E/MHASE
/&) in January 2003.

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan, aged 54, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DENG is responsible for the project management,
technical supervision and research and development for our

Group’s business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. DENG has over 14 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. He joined our Group in 2009 and has been
the chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Guangzhou
Weigang. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. DENG received a bachelor's degree in Cementitious Material
Science from South China University of Technology* (#RIET A
&) in China in July 1988. Mr. DENG was certified as a cement
production process engineer by Guangdong International Trust &
Investment Co., Ltd.* (ERBEFEE A R]) in November 1995.

Mr. GU Chunbin, aged 31, is an executive Director since 11 March
2021. Mr. GU is responsible for corporate governance, corporate

investment, corporate finance, and investor relations of the Group.

Mr. GU is experienced in investment, finance, corporate finance
and business management. He joined our Group in December
2016 as a consultant to provide advice on financial matters and
strategic development of our Group. In addition, he is also one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company as well as the head

of corporate investment and financing.

Mr. Gu received a bachelor's degree in logistics management from
Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade* ( b/&% 5N & &%) in  China
in July 2012 and concurrently, a bachelor’'s degree in business
(logistics and supply chain management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Australia in June 2012. He also obtained a
master’s degree in media management from the Hong Kong Baptist

University in Hong Kong in November 2013.

Mr. YANG Zhifeng, aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. YANG has over 23 years of experience in research and
education in the environmental science field. Since October
1995, Mr. YANG has been working as a professor at the School
of Environment of Beijing Normal University* (b ZREM&KE) . Mr.
YANG served as the head of the Institute of Environmental Science*
(BBIBRIEMIAT) of Beijing Normal University* (1L 5 E&A2) from
November 1999 to September 2003. From October 2003 to January
2016, Mr. YANG served as the dean of School of Environment of
Beijing Normal University* (1k sUAH&1 AER) .
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. YANG obtained the degree of doctor in philosophy in
engineering from Tsinghua University (& # X & ) in China in
December 1989. Mr. YANG has been a fellow member of the
Chinese Academy of Engineering* (FREBITiEft) since November
2015.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 46, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. FENG has over 17 years’ experience in providing financial
management services to listed companies. Mr. FENG served as
the chief financial officer, from September 2013 to November 2017,
and an executive director, from December 2013 to October 2017,
of Peace Map Holding Limited (KX TEZARAMRAR]), the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 402).

Mr. FENG obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting from Central
University of Finance and Economics (1 R Ef 4 K £ ) in China
in June 1997 and a master’'s degree in business administration
from Peking University (b5 AK£) in China in January 2010. Mr.
FENG obtained a professional technology qualification in business
administration and economics (intermediate level)* (TEEIRLH
(A ZEERITE) from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC* (FZE ARMAME A ) AR ZIRIZEL)
in November 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang, aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. JIANG has served as a partner of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* (4
ST AR ETSFT) since October 2012. Prior to that, Mr. JIANG was
a vice president of BOCGI Zheshang Capital Co. Ltd.* (FFiR&RE
HEEXESEEAMRAF) from August 2010 to September 2012,
a partner of the Hangzhou branch of King & Wood Mallesons (it
et EMEBTIMNAFT) from August 2008 to July 2010 and an
associate of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* CGIT AMEEMEREFT) from
April 1999 to July 2008.

Mr. JIANG has been an independent director of Zhejiang
Communications Technology Co., Ltd.* G I X @B EBH AR
‘Ad]) since December 2013, the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 002061), and an
independent non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings
Limited (BRI 28t AR A7) (Formerly known as Leap Holdings
Group Limited) since 31 August 2018, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499).

Mr. JIANG obtained his bachelor's degree in laws from Peking
University* (465X KE) in the PRC in July 1997, and is a practising
PRC lawyer.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE

Name Age Date of joining Position
the Group

" FiR MAZEEH B H Bz

Ms. HUANG Ying 53 15 July 2009

mE L 5375% 200947 B 158 BlaBRIE

Mr. CUI Jinhong 47 1 February 2017

EIRBEE 47 5% 20172 A1 H Bl#EE

Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan 36 2 March 2018

BRE T A 36 7% 20183 H2H

Ms. HUANG Ying, aged 53, joined our Group in July 2009 as a
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang and is mainly
responsible for overseeing our daily operations. She is a director of
Guangzhou Weigang.

Ms. HUANG received a college diploma in architectural studies
from the Guangdong Architectural Engineering Technical College*
(BEREZETIEERZR) in June 1990, and was awarded an
architectural design engineer qualification by the Guangzhou First
Evaluation Committee of Architectural Engineering Technology
Engineer” (BMMRZET M IIZME—FEEZES®) in November
1998.

Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAl, who is an executive Director

and a Controlling Shareholder.

Deputy general manager

Vice President

Chief financial officer

BERUHE

Responsibility

BE

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group
EEREEHTEES

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group

EEBEAEERTES

Overseeing the financial and
accounting affairs of our
Group
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. CUI Jinhong, aged 47, joined our Group in February 2017 as a
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang. Mr. CUI currently
serves as Vice President of the Group and is mainly responsible for

overseeing the daily operations of our Group.

Mr. CUI has over 20 years of experience in the environmental

protection industry.

Mr. CUI obtained a bachelor's degree in chemical machinery and
equipment from the South China University of Technology* (%
FIETKEZ) in the PRC in July 1995 and a master's degree in
environmental engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
(BB IEAZ) in the PRC in January 2008. Mr. CUI was certified
as an Environmental Protection Technology Engineer* (3R5E{REH i
T 72ff) by Shenzhen Job Title Management Office* (% 31/ 7 & 3% it
‘A=) in December 2002.

Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan, aged 36, joined our Group in March 2018 as
the financial controller. Mr. ZHENG currently served as the Chief
Financial Officer and is mainly responsible for overseeing the

financial and accounting affairs of our Group.

Mr. ZHENG has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance

and accounting, investment management and risk management.

Mr. ZHENG obtained his bachelor’'s degree in finance from
Shenzhen University* CF3IIKE) in the PRC in June 2008. He was
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant* (7=t & 5H6f) in the PRC
in February 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Directors the Company has fully complied
with  the CG Code during the Period except from the deviation
from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices

to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have strictly complied with the required standards set out in the

Model Code during the period.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all
dealings by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
securities in the Company as referred to in code provision A.6.4 of
the CG Code. No incident of non- compliance with the Model Code
by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted during the

Reporting Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRSE

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board Committees including the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee. The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the

success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control

and risk management systems are in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Members of the Board are listed below:

EEEmER

EXeRRRtRESER  BRUERTES
NR=ZBIFRTES - EEGHEREWT ¢

Members of the Board Position Date of appointment

ExgmE Rz ZEBH

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. CAl Zhuhua Chairman of the Board, Executive Director 18 May 2017

BEIRE S L and Chief Executive Officer 201745 H 18 H
EER  ITESFHRITBREH

Mr. DONG Honghui Executive Director 27 April 2018

EAESEE HWiITES 20184 A27H

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan Executive Director 27 April 2018

HlkEkrE WITES 20184 4 A 27 H

Mr. GU Chunbin Executive Director and Joint Company Secretary 11 March 2021

ESEX i HITESREEARWE 202143 A 11H

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng Independent Non-executive Directors 3 January 2019
BEBgEE BIAFNITES 20194 1HA3H
Mr. FENG Tao Independent Non-executive Directors 3 January 2019
B E BYIFFHITESE 201941 HA3H
Mr. JIANG Guoliang Independent Non-executive Directors 3 January 2019
BERIR L BYERTES 201941 A3 H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRSE

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. All Directors have carried
out duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and the

Shareholders at all times.

Biography of each Director is set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))

between the Directors.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cai Zhuhua serves as
chairman as well as chief executive officer of the Company and this
dual role leadership has been in practice by the Company since
2009. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered
to be more efficient to have one single person to be chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of
a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals. The Company will review

the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Period, the Company has three independent non-
executive Directors in compliance with the Rules 3.10(1) and Rules
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors accounts for more than one-third of the number

of the Board members.
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EXREBRSE

According to the Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have made confirmations to the
Company regarding their independence during the Period. Based
on the confirmations of the independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers each of them to be independent during the
Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association.

Each of Mr. Cai Zhuhua, Mr. Dong Honghui and Mr. Deng Zhaoshan,
being executive Directors, have entered into a service contract with
the Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date or until the third annual general meeting of the Company since
the Listing Date (whichever ends earlier). Mr. Gu Chunbin has
entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which
he agreed to act as executive Director for a term of three years with
effect from 11 March 2021. Either party has the right to give not less
than three months’ written notice to terminate the agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter on 10 December 2018 with the Company with an
initial term for three years or until the third annual general meeting
of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier,
subject to re-election as and when required under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party
giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company on 10 December 2018
with an initial term for three years or until the third annual general
meeting of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends
earlier, subject to re-election as and when required under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association unless terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the appointment letter
or by either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing.
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In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment. Any director appointed as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Training and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. As at 31 December 2020, each of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
has read the training materials provided by the company secretary
of the Company, as is summarized below. The content of such
training related to compliance review, takeover codes, and listed
company’s responsibilities for company acquisitions and sales.

Name of Director

EEns

Mr. Cai Zhuhua
BERERE

Mr. Dong Honghui
BAERE

Mr. Deng Zhaoshan
BRESE

Mr. Gu Chunbin*
ZEW L

Mr. Ren Jingfeng**
ERGRE

Mr. Yang Zhigiang**
15 58 5 A

Mr. Yang Zhifeng
HEEEE

Mr. Feng Tao
Rk

Mr. Jiang Guoliang
BER%E

* Mr. GU Chunbin was appointed as an executive Director on 11 March
2021.

b Each of Mr. REN Jingfeng and Mr. YANG Zhigiang has resigned as a
non-executive Director with effect from 11 March 2021.
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Bl k2 RAIRERNSETEAEEERENT
fif - HE2020F 12 AB1BILEE  SWTE
HERTERRBUIFNTESHEMEHRLR
ARAARMEREAIZIME - ERIT o miF
INAEBERES - WETA - RETREE
ARWEFMEEER ENET -

Training for the year
ended 31 December
2020
BI£2020F12A31H
1 FEEI

v

* EEWAER2021F3 A 11 HEZTARITES -

v EREMIBEREECTH2021F3 A 11 BARET
FITEE -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT & 3R



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
% EREE

All the Directors have been updated with the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

Directors’ Responsibility on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring
that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied
with.

The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

Board Meetings and General Meeting

Up to the year ended 31 December 2020, four Board meetings
and one General Meeting were held for reviewing and approving
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and other matters. The attendance records of Board Meetings and
General Meeting for all Directors are set out in the table below. In
addition to Board meetings, the Chairman held one meeting with
independent non-executive directors annually without the presence
of executive directors.

Name of Directors
EEnE

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. CAl Zhuhua
BIRERE

Mr. DONG Honghui
EATIE S

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BkESE

EREFCETEM(LETHRADEEMEREE

RENRHFER  BRETEAREMRESRSE

HRIFEEERTROIBE o WO ARRHR
FTENREEFLHFEMRNEXRER -

ESHMBHRRNER

EFEENXFSHEEARAEE2020F 12 A
1AL FENTERROEL -

EXEREEEARANBHRNEE - AERE
AU BERREBE AV RMRASENEBR - I
NAMAEREEMREARBERETE -

EFRCUERAEEERHEIERD  LEH
HHARAR - A EEES RN A
AT -

EsegBrRRAE

HE2020F12A31BILEEMIESEE S
EE—ABRERSERTT USHLILEHZ
2019F 12A31B L FEMHHRELEMSE
B 2RESHFREZTCCRLMBRERSLHEH
RTER -BREFSLRIN  TREBIIFNTE
BRITT —RPTESHENTESH -

Meetings attended/
Number of general

Meetings attended/
Number of Board

meetings held in 2020 meetings held in 2020

02020 HE %2020 HE
HITRRAERY BITEEERE
11 4/4

1/1 4/4

1/1 4/4
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Name of Directors
EEnE

Non-Executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. REN Jingfeng (resigned on 11 March 2021)
FELEE(ER2021F3A 11 AFF)

Mr. YANG Zhigiang (resigned on 11 March 2021)
BEREE(ER2021F3A 11 AFE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BAFHTES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

HEE S A

Mr. FENG Tao

B E

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

BRI R k&

Notices for all regular Board meeting and the agenda and
accompanying Board paper will be given to all Directors at least
3 days before the meetings in order that they have sufficient time
to review the papers. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors or Board
Committee members for information and records. Directors who
have conflicts of interest in a board resolution have abstained from

voting for that resolution.

Meetings attended/ Meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board
meetings held in 2020 meetings held in 2020
R 2020 %, A 2020 &,
BITRRAERH HOTESERE

11 4/4

11 3/4

1/1 3/4

1/1 4/4

11 4/4

METHESSSRAN  SRERENEME
EEXMHOREZETELIAMKETEEE
= UERSAGBTRNEENAEXt - 22
CHABEARNERT LRAE2RESAES
SLESNEEMBEIE - UHSH R - BE
FERBRENEFRNEFTHEOHENZRZE
ERR
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Tao, Mr. YANG Zhifeng
and Mr. JIANG Guoliang. Mr. FENG, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, serves as the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include examining
independently the financial positions of the Company, overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system, the audit process and proposals of internal
management, communicating independently with, monitoring and
verifying the work of internal audit and external auditors.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings were
held by the Audit Committee to review the annual/interim financial
results and report and major internal audit issues, re-appointment of

external auditors and relevant scope of works.

Name of committee member ZEGHRENHA
Mr. FENG Tao (chairman) BEEE(EE)

Mr. YANG Zhifeng TGRS
Mr. JIANG Guoliang BERKE

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function), risk management systems and processes and the
reappointment of the external auditor and fulfilled duties as required
aforesaid. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation
given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor. They also reviewed final
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit. There
are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

EXeZET
EREES

RRABEZEZESGH=RBE I IENITESHX -
BEBELE « BEBLERERR LA - BLAE
REZZESXF  FACLETHRANDES10(2)
EREI2VEMRENBEE EHEER -

ERZEENIERBEEBIEEARANMG

B - ERARRNHHEREHE - BRERE

RARMEHIGE - EROBRERANEERR &
M BB AT Y AZ RAD M SN R BB A E - W E
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HZE20206F12A31BIEFE  ERZEEE
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ANHEZEE - ENEEINEZBEN A KAEH
T{EHRS -

Attended/number of meeting(s) held
HEEBRY BOIERRE

2/2
1/2
2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
FENG Tao (chairman), Mr. DONG Honghui and Mr. JIANG Guoliang,
the majority of them are independent non-executive Directors. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to recommend
the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior

management.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting was held by
the Remuneration Committee on 27 March 2020 for considering and
recommending to the Board the remuneration and other benefits
paid by the Company to the Directors and senior management and
other related matters. The table below sets forth the details of the

attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member ZEERENSA
Mr. FENG Tao (chairman) SEE(ERE)
Mr. DONG Honghui BAEEE
Mr. JIANG Guoliang BER L

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the
Company, made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management

and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
Remuneration of senior management

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company (who are not the Directors) is shown in the following table
by band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z% 1,000,000 7T

e ES -

FHEZEEm =R EBEK  BIBEBEE(E
B) BABEENEEREL  KBIKER
BIUFATEE - HFHZESNI2RBER/MA
SEEELSREEBHFMOFHEREARER
BERgRMES  IYHANEFMBERIERA R
FEHNERF A2REFSNELEXERERER
A RHEEEEHIES  URBATEZES
RERBNFHGTEANESSRMHEE

BE2020F12A31HIEFE  FMEZEEE
M2020F3 27 HREIT—Rg#H UEBEKM
EEQRRARARNESFRaREREZNNE
B B ERIAREMEFEEE - TREAIGHE
RS

Attended/number of meeting(s) held
HESERY BTEEAY

1/1
11
11

FMZE e MR EERARASRERE
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B o
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. CAl Zhuhua (chairman), Mr. FENG Tao and Mr. JIANG
Guoliang, the majority of them are independent non-executive

Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, to make
recommendation to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or in the management, and to assess the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to

the Board for decision.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting was held by
the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2020 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendation
to the Board on the re-election of the retiring Directors. The table

below sets forth the details of the attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member ZEEHENS
Mr. CAl Zhuhua (chairman) BIRESLE(LE)
Mr. FENG Tao BEE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang BERKE

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, considered the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment
required from the non-executive Director and fulfilled duties as

required aforesaid.
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NOMINATION POLICY
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “BD Policy”)
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules with
effect from 26 March 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the BD Policy and will from
time to time review the BD Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the BD Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors which include:

. to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Period, the joint company secretaries of the Company
are Mr. GU Chunbin and Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty. The primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. GU Chunbin, one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company.
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Biographical details of the joint company secretaries are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of the
joint company secretaries has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2020.

AUDITOR

Financial statements contained in this report have been audited by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited. Service fees which shall be paid
by the Company to Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited for the year
amounted to RMB1.6 million.

Service rendered

R ARNENERAEHRAFRIEERS
TERE|—& - RIFELETRANFE3.291% » B /%
NAMEZEEREE2020F 12 A1 HILEE
BSOS/ RRBREE -

B ED

AREMBIBHRREARBE B S EBR
BERABERZ - AEERNRBEESER
FBERAFNRBERAREI16BET

Fees Payable

Frig MRS EAER
(RMB)

(ARH)

Audit service ENZIRTE 1,600,000
Non-audit services IEE I RTE —
Total 4 1,600,000

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements
is set out in the Auditor’s Report on page 87 to 99.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of
such systems on an annual basis. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group utilises an integrated risk management system to
minimise and protect against a range of strategic, business,
financial and legal risks. Through our risk management system,
we seek to manage and reduce risks, encourage effective and
reliable communication, maintain legal compliance and improve the
efficiency of our business and management.
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Our risk management system is implemented on three levels. Its
implementation starts with the manager of each department who
is responsible for organising the daily work in accordance with the
relevant policies. The second level involves the active role of the
internal audit department which centralises our risk management
policies and supervises the individual departments through periodic
audits. The Group has also engaged external consultants to perform
a review of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. Finally, the highest level involves decision-making by the
board of directors regarding certain risk management decisions.
The relevant personnel at these three levels are in frequent
communication in order to ensure accurate information is shared
between all parties.

In order to formulate and implement effective policies, our risk
management system emphasises continuous information gathering.
Our risk management system collects data on a variety of business,
financial and legal risks such as market demand, technological
trends and innovations, comparisons with our competitors, our
financial performance and results of operation, costs of services,
changes in intellectual property law, company laws and possible
legal disputes.

The information gathered is used for risk assessment. Our risk
assessment procedures take into account our Company’s overall
risk philosophy and seek to accurately evaluate how a potential risk
may affect our objective in the strategic, business, compliance and
financial reporting areas. We seek to identify both internal risks,
such as employee ethics, our financial condition or product quality,
as well as external risks, such as economic and legal developments,
technology advances and environmental factors. Identified risks are
assessed on the basis of likelihood of occurrence and the degree of
influence it may have on our business. Risks with a high probability
of occurring are more closely examined in order to ensure accurate
results. We then determine what countermeasures should be
implemented in order to avoid, absorb or reduce such risks and any
negative consequences.

The Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as
practicable in accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules. It
ensures, through its internal reporting processes, the appropriate
handling and dissemination of inside information. Reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

. The access of inside information is restricted to a limited
number of employees (mainly senior management and
Directors) on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.
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o The company has adopted the Model Code as its model code
for securities transactions by the directors and guidelines on
insider dealing on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the Model Code for the relevant employees who are or may be
in possession of inside information.

o The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply with
all inside information policies.

During the year, a review of the effectiveness of the group’s risk
management and internal control systems and procedures was
conducted by the Audit Committee and subsequently reported to
the Board. The Board is not aware of any significant internal control
and risk management weaknesses nor significant breach of limits or
risk management policies, and considers that the current monitoring
systems of the Company are effective and that the qualifications
and experience of the staff, performing accounting and financial
reporting functions and the training programmes of the Company
as well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget
of the Company are adequate. The Company has complied with
the requirements under C.2.1 to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the CG Code
relating to risk management and internal control.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
shareholder meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any two or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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EXEBRSE

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other
than a Director for election as a Director at the Company’s general
meeting (“Proposal”), he/she should lodge a written notice setting
out the Proposal and his/her contact details at the principal place of
business of the Company or the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. The Proposal should
include the biographical details of the proposed Director and a
written notice signed by the proposed Director confirming his/her
willingness to be elected, the accuracy and completeness of his/her

biographical details.
Shareholders’ inquires

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings, please
write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor

Investor Services Limited, at:

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricorglobal.com

Investor relations and communications

The Company has set up a website at www.gzwigang.com as a
channel to promote communication, publishing announcements,
financial information and other relevant information of the Company.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate

manner.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company have

been amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been no

change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®RSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1845) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the
“Group” or “We”) are pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020, entailing a detailed description of our
sustainability efforts throughout the year. The Group would also
like to take this opportunity to thank all stakeholders who have

contributed to this sustainability journey with us.

The Report is prepared both in English and Chinese. In case
of inconsistency, the English version shall prevail. Electronic
version of this ESG Report is available on the website of HKEx at

www.hkexnews.hk, or our company website at www.gzweigang.com.

Reporting Scope

This Report details the operations of the Group’s core business for
the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (‘the
Year” or “the Reporting Period”). The reporting scope covers our
major segment, turnkey solution for hazardous waste incineration,
which occupies around 90% of the Group’s revenue. Other
segments, such as oilfield peripheral service and waste treatment

service are not regarded.

Our business scope has changed significantly this year, due to the
suspension of the oily sludge treatment business, which consumes
a large amount of natural gas translating into 90% of air pollutant
emission and 96% of Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission of the
Group last year. The business suspension also saves the use of
electricity and water significantly. Therefore, readers can expect a
much lower number in emissions and consumption in this Report,
being in line with the Group’s commitment on carbon reduction, and

comparison with last year may not be necessarily meaningful.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®SE

Reporting Principles

The Report has been prepared according to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange. The Report is based on the four report principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. To serve the
best interest of readers, we conducted a materiality assessment
and selected the key issues concerning our business, which
are covered in the later part. We adopt consistent approach in
computing environmental KPls, making reference from the ESG
Reporting Guide and the standards of Greenhouse Gas Protocol,
which makes our ESG performance measurable, in terms of carbon
emission, resource usage, waste generation and so on. Also, the
Report aims to provide a comprehensive and objective view of our
ESG management efficacy, the Group therefore, is committed to

revealing statistics and numbers to the best of our knowledge.

For convenience, an index is available in the last chapter of the

Report, for the location of KPIs within the Report.
Confirmation and Approval

The company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for KPI
setting and disclosure, and hereby confirms that all information

presented in this report is as accurate and reliable as possible.

This Report contains forward-looking statements that are based
on assumptions and expectations at the time of its publication. No
guarantee is expressed as to the accuracy of the statements and
the Group expressly disclaims any liability for and assumes no
responsibility to correct or update those forward-looking statements
in the event that any of the statements does not materialize or turns

out to be incorrect.
Contact Us

For more information on the Group’s business, please refer to our
official website and other parts of the Annual Report. We welcome
any comments on the Report and are eager to improve our ESG
disclosures. Should you have any enquiries, please contact us via

the following channels:
Tel: 020-3221-1246
Email: gzwg@gzweigang.com

Official website: www.gzweigang.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®RSE

About the Company

Our business can be divided into three major segments, namely
hazardous waste incineration system solution, oilfield peripheral
service and waste treatment service. Incineration solution, where
operations spread across 16 provinces in China, brings a revenue
of RMB 490 million for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, while oilfield brings a revenue of RMB 64 million. As waste
treatment is a new business which started in 2020, it does not
generate revenue for the Group for the reporting year, but the

treatment facilities will start to run in 2021.

Being a major engineering solution provider of hazardous waste
incineration in China, we are deeply aware of the environmental
impacts, regulatory requirements and social expectation regarding
waste handling. Therefore, much of our emphasis in the Year has
been put into improving the design of our products in terms of eco-
friendliness and efficiency. We will continue to promote sustainability
concepts and improve our corporate governance standards, in order
to raise our management quality, protect the interest of stakeholders

and create values for all parties of society.
ESG Governance

To lead the company to be socially responsible, a solid ESG
governance structure is essential. The Board acknowledges its role
in identifying ESG risks and opportunities and has been involved in
the determination of major ESG strategies. To fulfill the strategies,
we have formulated an ESG working group comprised of senior
managers of functional departments, to discuss ESG issues from
time to time, serving as a bridge between the Board and the
departments in communication of corporate sustainability strategies,
to show great determination to improve corporate governance and
ensure effective implementation of our ESG policies in the course
of operation. In the future, the company would consider to involve
external environmental professionals in our working group to further

stress our focus on ESG improvement.

BRALDH

BMOEBAIDA=EEEHE - BEBREDR
BEE RGERS R - RHEERES REYREE
fR7% o RIEMART REBKERMGPE16EE D -
MNEZE2020F 12 A31 AL FE BAREBE K
WAARBE40E ST - MomHEEZERBSAS
RMAANRECABETT - BEWEEANE@MR
m%iﬁ?%%%ﬁ'%ﬁiiﬁﬁﬂiiw
CMERR IR R MG A 2021 FIG A EIE

ERTEIENEREDIRERE TRMRTE
RHE  RARNEVEESENREZE B
EREMEEHE - At - HPARAFENTIE
EHENEERERRIME T AR ﬁf?ﬁ
H#Ztitﬂzl AREERESMEFEEEARK
CRMEARMANEEEE 4%5;%@%5’9%
ﬁ?&&?%%i@%ﬁéﬂ%ﬁfgfﬁ °

HER %ﬂiAﬁ,\E’J RIS - BEAERE - i
%ﬂ&am/ BREEZWHEZ - EFSHAEHR

H:A&E./u e REBHBE  2HEETEE
Efii,‘% . X\i"%&ﬁmﬁﬂx o RIEEMBRE - K
ME R BB P IR AR E IR A BEKRIRE -
Mg REBIENM - TRARERS  HgkE
BEH  EAESEHENMIZEBBLEHE
BREBOBR  ZBREMRSLES /R
MIERERE - S REABRTEERREFREFE
BHER - KR - ARRKEEBHFINPIRIEE
EATIATENE - — H IR R AFIE R R
5o REARENET

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E R RRFEIEBRERER A T



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HE8RERRS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

It is the Group’s direction to take stakeholders’ view seriously, as a
company’s success cannot be independent of stakeholders’ input.
We wish to establish a transparent mechanism that consolidates

the voices from stakeholders so that we can integrate them in our

corporate decisions.

Stakeholder Group
B & A B

Concerns and expectations
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Communication channel

BERE

Shareholders and investors

Transparency; risk control; long-term

development of the business

Annual General Meeting; corporate

communication; announcements; Annual

Report
MRER B & FHE  ARER  EBNRERR BEAFRE : RAREA - DNE TR
Employees Work-life balance; safe work environment; Employee activities; Intranet;
adequate welfare performance appraisal and interviews;
conferences
(= THEEEFTE  R2TERE  BEN BIE  ABHE  RRFEREK @5

&+

Suppliers and business
partners
e HE TR R

Timely settlement of accounts, purchase
quantity, reputation
MG REBHE  BE

Conferences, supplier management
system; site visits
% HEREEHE  EHER

Government departments and

regulatory authorities

Conformity with the environment-and

safety-related laws and regulations

Supervision and assessment; formal

meetings; information disclosure

B B0 P SR B B M A FEREMNZEHEERER EERE  EXEHE  EREE
Customers Product quality and safety, maintenance Comprehensive feedback system; daily
policy, product lifecycle operations, communications
Y EnBEEREE  AEREX EoEaBH TENERREGHE: BAEEE - ER
Community Support local economic development, News; charitable events
resolving solid waste problem and
improve the living environment
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RE HERERB®RSE

Materiality Assessment

The Group has obtained the views of management on the Group’s
material issues and sustainability strategy. After a series of
managerial-level meetings and the Board's discussion, the Group
has assessed the ESG topics and produced the following materiality

matrix to clarify the ESG issues that concern our business most.
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In view of our business nature, impacts on local communities
are unavoidable since construction is a big part of the project,
which creates noise and disrupts the landscape. Even though
we do not assemble the parts ourselves and the majority of the
construction work is outsourced, our workers often climb up to
heights to monitor and test the production, posing risks of injuries
and deaths. Additionally, as our product can be of significant social
consequences, it is critical to make our product safe, render the
functionality required, as well as continuously improve product
design according to the rising social expectations on waste

management.

For environmental areas, since we are mostly providing consultancy
service this year, we do not produce significant emissions or waste,
or consume a large amount of resources. They are therefore of
lower importance and will not be the highlight of this ESG Report.
However, we acknowledge the impact of climate change on our
business as to having us to make our product adaptive to the
environmental challenges. For corporate social relationship, the
Group will continue to transform the opinions and supports from all
stakeholders into services that meet the modern living standards,
and contribute to social well-being through donation and community

projects.
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RE HERERB®SE

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
Product Responsibility
Product Quality

The Group seizes every opportunity to improve our product quality.
As an evidence of the Group’s ambition and commitment, we have
obtained the ISO9001 accreditation, with a focus on standardization

and strategic sourcing.

We require contractors to follow standard production procedures,
making sure all critical steps are taken and executed in a
reasonable timeframe. We established KPIs for production, such as
resource input, quality of outcomes, and structure robustness, in
order to measure contractor's performance and identify rooms for

improvement.

Apart from process improvement, we source raw materials carefully.
This can produce a huge impact on the output quality, as a single
point of weakness can result in structural collapse and system
failure. To guarantee product safety, we constantly compare the
valves and pipes against the specifications. Knowing intense
heating and a chain of chemical reactions would be involved during
product operation, mechanical components must be resistant to

high temperature and acidic gas.

Being a solution provider in hazardous waste incineration, it is of our
first priority to ensure a complete decomposition of waste and no
unwanted materials remain. Hence, we have made product testing
a compulsory part of production, focused on equipment capacity,
decomposition rate and emission tracking, so as to make our clients
aware of the risks and not to overwhelm the system. Only after we
obtain all sorts of experimental data with a sufficient confidence

level would the product be delivered.

As one of the leaders in the industry, the Group does not sit on its
laurels and is keen on researching waste treatment technologies.
Facing the complex environmental problems today, we are
obliged to resolve the solid waste problem in a more efficient and
environmentally-friendly manner. We look into every possibility of
getting more energy out of the waste and reducing the amount
of pollutant that results from the combustion process, and have
been integrating relevant concepts into the products, for example,
harvesting the heat to facilitate waste pre-treatment and installing

detecting sensors that monitor pollutant emission levels.
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RE HERERB®RSE

Customer Opinion

It is always important to listen to the opinion of customers. While we
serve our customers, they in turn feed us with valuable insights of
how the products can be made to fit their business needs. Hence,
we cherish the relationship with customers and have carried out in-

depth surveys in assessing their satisfaction level.
Advertising and label

The Group complies with the laws and regulations related to
advertising in Mainland China and Hong Kong and confirms the

accuracy and authenticity of all published materials.
Privacy

We do not collect more information than we need to complete the

projects, or share customer information with any unauthorized third
party.
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers is one of the key stakeholders to the Group who cannot
be independent of production materials. Hence, we value our
relationship with suppliers and are actively developing a sustainable
supply chain that meets the Group’s ethical, environmental, health

and safety standards.

During the Reporting Period, our main suppliers are material
vendors and contract manufacturers responsible for installation.
They are mainly distributed across China, especially in Guangdong

Province.

Selection of suppliers has been made according to the ISO9001
Framework. We established an assessment scheme and review
the performance of suppliers each year. We study their price,
steadiness, quality, and long-term potential to identify those who
are in good fit with our criteria. As a reward, we establish long-
term relationship with well-rated suppliers and engage them in our

corporate meetings regarding supply chain management.

To ensure we have sufficient knowledge on their operations and
products for fair judgement, we conduct regular visits to their
production facilities. A quality control personnel is assigned to

monitor the manufacturing process of equipment.
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RE HERERB®SE

Health and Safety

The Group places occupational health and safety at the first place.
In compliance with relevant laws and regulations of mainland China
and Hong Kong, the Group has formulated a control system for

labour safety and sanitation with certification of OHSAS18001.

As a consultant in hazardous waste incineration system
development, we instruct, monitor and make sure the equipment is
built in strict accordance with sketches and diagrams. For structures
that have been established within the project phase, we scrutinize
every screw and joint in search of possible faults and malfunctions.

This requires us to be close to the source of risk.

We have established a risk management system, which entails
precautions and handling procedures for hazards. Guidelines are
reviewed periodically to ensure alignment with industry consensus
and regulatory requirements. Apart from documentation, we assign
safety managers to maintain communications with employees at all
levels to make sure they are well aware of safety hazards and the

steps to take in case of occurrence.

We strive to reduce risk. Through observation and laboratory
procedures, we evaluate the health of incineration system
structures. For every flaw or mismatch identified, we would look
into the issue and broaden the range of inspection to dig out other
possible defects that pose risks of system collapse. We cherish
such experience, despite an unpleasant one, and report our findings

to contractors.

Where working at heights, in confined space, or where mobile
machineries are involved, we offer protective gadgets to workers to
reduce the magnitude and chance of incidents, for example, safety
harness that ties the body of the workers to the working structures
and helmets that avoid objects falling overhead. We also delegate
a site supervisor to monitor operations, including the adoption of
safety procedures, the maneuvering of vehicles, and the division of

labour.
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Last but not least, we provide safety trainings for workers who
are stationed in construction sites. Workshops are held to inform
workers of the safety concerns of production practices, hoping
they would exercise extra caution when performing relevant duties
and not trigger accidents that may harm other people or the
environment. Regardless of seniority, workers are required to attend
trainings regularly, even if they have accessed similar materials
before. This is to remind them of the correct working postures and

operating procedures, and promote corporate safety culture.

Thanks to the joint efforts of workers and site supervisors, during
the Reporting Period, the Group has recorded O safety incidents,

meaning 0 deaths and injuries arising from work.
Employment

The Group regards talents as one of its core competencies, and
has optimized the use of human resources through a dedicated

recruitment process and appraisal system.

The management regularly reviews the Group’s remuneration and
welfare policies with respect to market standards and is committed
to safeguarding the rights and interests of the staff. With the annual
performance appraisal, we offer bonuses and salary increments to

reward employees for their diligence and dedication.

In any circumstances, the Group offers wages not lower than the
minimum wage as stipulated by law. In addition to the statutory
benefits such as insurances and public holidays, the Group
provides paid holidays such as annual leave, bereavement leave,
maternity and sick leave, as well as subsidies in travelling and

studying.

Our Group embraces a diverse workforce that includes employees
of different ages, genders, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, ethnicity, and religion. We encourage our employees to
work closely with one another through teambuilding activities, inter
and intra-departmental conferences, and sports competitions. These

ensure their well-being and a healthy working lifestyle.

To maintain the relationship within this one big family, we open up
communication channels for workers to express their concerns,
such as General Meetings, in favour of the reflection on operation
and management. We also distribute notice regarding the significant
changes in our management directions, to make sure workers are

all informed and comply.
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At the end of Reporting Period, our Group hires a total of 332
employees, increasing by 45.6% from last year. Across our
business portfolio, females accounted for 25% of the total labor.
While the gender gap may seem big, we are glad to see more
females joining us and we must understand that the professionals
in engineering consultancy are dominantly males. Regarding age,
most of our employees concentrate in 31-45, accounting for 43%
of total. This is good for the company as employees at this age are
often experienced and productive. We would develop retainment
strategies accordingly.

Employee Statistics
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Development and Training

The Group treasures talents and encourages employees to grow
both intellectually and professionally. The Group has formulated
training plans for employees, including seminars and workshops.
During the reporting period, the Group has organized two core

trainings listed as below:

BRE R

AEEERAT @ YBEREEMNRIEXTE
FERE - AEEEREBBIEEIE - 8%
MRk ITEY - REREAN > AEEABTH
AL REIMT

Training Subject
HEHIERE

Training purpose and content
BIENRAR

Technology of Hazardous Waste

1.

Analysis of possible hazards

Treatment BRI
&R BE Y B B AT 2.

Latest technology that allows decomposition in higher resolution

TR BRRN B RE

S RTPAR R 0 P R HETT 0 R D B BT

3. Heat extraction after the incineration process

Operation Project Safety Training 1.

BEIEHLEE operation;

2. Emergency response;
SR

HiER 22 HBEER

Standard procedures for thermal load debugging and trial

AaRHARRETHORERRR

3. Other project safety related issues

Labour Standards

Child and forced labour violate international labour conventions and

are strongly opposed by the Group.

We inspect carefully the candidates’ identity to prevent the hiring
of underaged labour. We form a voluntary employment relationship
with each of our employees and prohibit working hours exceeding
the regulatory limits. We also promote such concepts within the
supply chain so as to protect the well-being of labour of the entire
community. If, unfortunately child labour is found, their employment
will be terminated immediately and remuneration will be made

according to the agreed wages.

During the reporting period, the Group did not recognize any
material irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to labour

standards.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group does not accept any form of corporate misconduct and
is committed to upholding the core values of honesty, responsibility
and integrity in daily operation. We comply with the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC, the Supervision Law of the PRC, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) and other relevant
regulations regarding the subject. We do not allow employees
to derive benefits or opportunities with one’s position, company
resources or information. We also implement an Anti-Fraud system

to control the risk of corruption.

During the reporting period, the Group did not observe any cases

involving bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.
Social Investment

The Group is committed to building a harmonious relationship
with the community. The Group harnesses its know-how in waste
incineration to serve society. By devising solution in handling
industrial and municipal waste, such as heavy metals and
electronics, the Group helps free up the landfill and improves the

living environment.

Not only did the Group provide waste removal solution, but we also
added lines of greenery for the city. We held tree planting activities
along the roads during the year to facilitate clean air production and

make our journey more pleasant.

We would continue to encourage employees to do good to their
surrounding communities by drawing their attention to diverse social

and environmental issues and organizing charitable activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Impact on Communities

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable
development and has always regarded environmental protection as
one of its key tasks. The Group’s management acknowledges its
responsibility in monitoring environmental impacts and the use of
natural resources. We abide by relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations, namely Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, Energy Conservation Law of the PRC and so on. We actively
search for opportunities to reduce our environmental footprint, which
stems primarily from noise, emissions and the change of landscape

during the production of incineration system.

The Group values the harmony with the environment and has
received the 1SO14001 Environmental Management System
Certification. We plan ahead of the project, taking into account
the site-specific factors and demands from clients, for the sake
of minimizing disturbance to the neighbouring communities.
This includes limiting the height of the establishment to prevent
the output from being incompatible, if not peculiar, with the
surroundings, or ruining the urban scenery. For sites with high
proximity to dwellings, we work only in the daytime and enclose the
area with noise barriers. For sites in suburbs widely surrounded by
vegetation, we make the equipment as compact as possible so that

it is not taking up too much space of the nature.

Aside from planning, we assess the environmental performance
during the construction phase of the project. We continuously
monitor the operation to make sure contractors have adopted
environmentally-friendly practices, such as the spraying of water
over the ground to prevent the sand from flying into the air. This
helps contractors and us to beware of the environmental impacts
we are making, and not to forget about our mission — to solve
environmental problems in face of the rising living standards and

changing social behaviours.
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Emissions

The Group has always emphasized environmental friendliness and

reducing emissions of all kinds. Since we are mostly providing

consultancy services for hazardous waste incineration system this

year, our emissions are rather limited.

Air and Greenhouse Gases

The following charts set out the relevant statistics for the reporting

235 8]

AEE—ERFRERIBRD ZEHEEY - ARE
MRAFEERRHERENRERSTT ENE
RS - PR ERED -

ERRBERE

TE 7 HRE AR RS BUE

period:

Indicators Unit Total (2020) Total (2019)
BE By #8751 (2020 F) #5H (2019 F)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg 6.39 1,784.26
AELW (NOX) T

NOx Intensity (Per Employee) kg/Employee 0.0193 7.83
NOxZE(BHEE) Fr/EE

Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg 0.11 144.97
Fab¥) (SOx) T

SOx Intensity (Per Employee) kg/Employee 0.0003 0.64
SOxHE(BRES) Fr/(EER

Particulate Matter (PM) kg 0.47 19.30
FERLY) (PM) T

PM Intensity (Per Employee) kg/Employee 0.0014 0.085
BRYEE(BRER) Fr/RBE

Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of CO.e 90.25 6,001.25
BERBHRES ME— S IRE &

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/ Employee 0.27 26.32
HE(SEEE) W—AtiEE EE

Scope 1 — Stationary combustion Tonnes of CO,e 0 4,536.38
BE1 — BERRE MR — (LR E 2

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/ Employee 0 19.90
mE(84ER) W_EtikEE EE

Scope 1 — Mobile combustion Tonnes of CO,e 20.79 177.75
HE1 — BERME ME—SLIRE &

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/ Employee 0.063 0.78
HE(SEEE) m_AtiEEEE

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 69.46 1,287.12
& & 2 e MR — (LIRS B

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/ Employee 0.21 5.65
HE(BEEE) WA tiEE EE

Note: GHG emissions are computed based on the ESG Reporting Guide and

Emission Factor from Cross-Sector Tools prepared by Greenhouse Gas

Protocol.

Bret : BERBHREDNRIBRE HERELHEIES

LS|

BERERERRARENETE T AN MR
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Due to the suspension of oily sludge treatment business, which
consumes a great deal of natural gas in boiler and electricity, there
is a significant reduction of GHG emission this year. Apart from the
narrowing in business scope, we also come up with plans to cut

emissions.

The Group strives to reduce air and greenhouse gases (GHG)
emissions through improving process flow, for example, we ease
the moving of cranes by clearing obstacles on the paths and avoid
acceleration, thus consuming less fuels. Not only do we modify our
operation, but we also integrate sustainability concepts into our
products, including flue gas cleaning and the harvest of waste heat.
Through scrubbing and bag-house filtering, acidic gas and fly ash
is removed from the incineration process so that the resultant flue

gas is much less harmful to the environment.

Since incineration requires a huge heat input and the decomposition
of waste does not consume fully the heat, the system is made able
to store the leftover for alternative usages, such as pre-treatment
of waste and the driving of turbine for electricity generation,

substantially saving energy.

We also avoid the use of refrigerant for system cooling, which
otherwise would produce GHG with a much higher global warming

potential than ordinary fossil fuel combustion.
Solid Waste Emission

We uphold the principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace
and Recycle. In our offices, we produce only municipal waste,
which is unharmful, disposed through legal means and collected by
governmental services daily. Hence, we do not consider this a big

issue to the business and do not report the figures here.

As we outsource the installation of incineration system to
contractors, we do not generate waste in system production.
However, this does not mean we do not contribute to waste
reduction. Instead, we actively assist them in retrieving materials for

future production, such as metal scrap.
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Wastewater

The wastewater of the Group comes mainly from lavatories. Since
living wastewater should not pose huge harm to the environment,
we assume this topic insignificant. The Group strictly discharges
wastewater into municipal sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in
accordance with the “Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers”. The Group also calls on employees to conserve

water resources.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-
compliance in emissions with the relevant environmental laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on our Group.
Use of Resources

The Group earnestly reduces resource consumption and improves

economic efficiency, including fuels, electricity, water, and paper.

The following table shows the figures of resource consumption in

our business operations:

Bk

AEEELNBKEIERERTH - AREES
IKTEHRFERNBERET » HMIRRUEEL
PREKX - REBBBRBOTKIEAMBTKE
IKERENE BERK B AT KE BETR R
2 o AEBETEE TEKIKETR -

RmEME  YEELIHAEEEEAZENE
RBBRFERERF R EN -

BERER

AEBETERDERER - BSME - E K
RBREFERE RN B

TRINREMNEBLEMERERNEE

The Group Unit Total (2020) Total (2019)
EH B # 5t (2020 F) #5t (2019 F)
Electricity consumption kWh 86,376.0 1,949,592.0
AE2 FRE

Intensity (per Employee) kWh/Employee 260.2 8550.8
HE(BEEE) TRE, 1S

Water consumption tonnes 2,039.0 102,266.3
ke ]

Intensity (per Employee) tonnes/Employee 6.1 448.5
mE(FHEE) W EE

Natural gas consumption m® 0 2,167,961.0
RARAE AV N

Gasoline consumption liter 7,677.8 65,669.0
R E nF
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The Group endeavours to cut fuel consumption. In addition to
avoiding idling engines, we seek to introduce hybrid vehicles
to reduce the dependence on gasoline, which generates GHG
during combustion. On the other hand, the Group does not back
down when it comes to energy saving. We adopt smart lighting
in the stairway of office area as to if no person is detected,
lights will be off. We retrofit office equipment when in need,
such as air-conditioners, lightings and lift, in order to prevent
obsolete components from hindering performance and taking
up more electricity per unit of work delivered. We also maintain
environmentally-friendly indoor temperature to ensure comfort both

inside and outside the office buildings.

For water resources, the Group adopts a robust management
system, which keeps track of water use patterns and compares
usage among offices. In the events where water consumption is
significantly higher on a year-over-year basis, we would delve into
the issue and develop responsive strategies, such as replacing the

leaking faucets.
Climate Change

Climate change is an issue that troubles a multitude of corporations
and countries around the world. The Group is not likely to be
unaffected and will not leave ourselves unguarded. We have, apart

from reducing GHG emissions, developed adaptive measures.

In view of extreme weather, in particular up-scaled floods or tropical
cyclones, we have considered to use storm-resistant materials in
our products, which digest hazardous industrial waste and are
critical to the well-being of the community. If leakage occurs during
the incineration process owing to weather events, results can be
catastrophic and irreversible to the ecosystem. Therefore, we will
continue to strengthen the physical ability of the system to prevent

damage or loss of functionality arising from natural disasters.

Climate change does not only involve physical risks, but also
transition risk, according to the Taskforce on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures. We expect the Chinese government to raise
emission requirements and impose carbon quota in the future,
and have hence further researched the incineration technology
on using less energy and releasing less pollutant, to improve the

competencies of our products.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Index BB -HdERERREED|
Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes

BE

A&

HIBRS| M

A. Environmental

RE

A1 Emission

292 €7)

General Disclosure

—RIE

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste:
BRAERIOREREBYN - MR EDS  EEAERESE
BEEYEN
(a) the policies; and
HE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABERYENERERIERNER -

For more details, please refer
to Page 61-63

FHEZHE  B2HE61E
63 E

A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. For more details, please refer
HER AR AR R BE R BUE - to Page 61
EHE 215 F2HE61E
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 61
per facility. AHEZHE  F2HRE61E
BERBAYNE(ABAE) R(NER)BE(NASESSE
i - SERIEHE) -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 62-63
per facility). EHE 25 F2HEE
FESEREYEE (UEAE) R(ER)ZE (MAGEEE | 638
fi - SERIEHE) -
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 62-63
per facility). BHEZHIE  #E20HF622
FEEEZEZYES(UBEFE) R(WER)BE(WMAGES | 638
B - §EREAE) -
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigates emissions and results For more details, please refer
achieved. to Page 61-63
o ORE HE B B0 HE e M PR S AR ERAEZHIE  F2HF61E
63 &
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes For more details, please refer

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEEREZFEZYMNSN  BIEELEENRBERAE
MR

to Page 61-63
EHEZFE  F2HE 612
63 8
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Bm AR HWRS| M

A2 Use of Resources

ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, For more details, please refer

—RRHEE water and other raw materials. to Page 63-64
BEREAER(BIELIR - KEEAREME) B - EHE 215 F2HE3E

64 B

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. For more details, please refer
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity to Page 63
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). EHEZFHIE  E20% 638
RS S WEE R SHEERR(NE - flon) B2 (AT
EFRFAE) REE(WAGESEN - §HERERMTE) °

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of For more details, please refer
production volume, per facility). to Page 63
BREKENEE(WMNGES SN - BERMAE) EHE %15 - F2HFE63E

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results For more details, please refer
achieved. to Page 63
H B TR ARG 5T 8I PSR © LR ZIE  F2HFE63E

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water For more details, please refer
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results | to Page 63
achieved. BHESZHE  F2H% 638
AR EGE A KR A ERRE - A RIEF AR T8 K&
FI{SACR °

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not material
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit TEKX

produced.
YN TR BEEMEMEE (AMEETE) X (EH) S EEE M
HE o

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

RERRRER
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the | For more details, please refer
— R E environment and natural resources. to Page 60
BIRETABRRRERRAERERERATZENBOR - FHEZHIE  F2HF608
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the For more details, please refer
environment and natural resources and actions taken to to Page 60

manage them.
R EBESHRBERANERNEAZERERNEEAH
HEHTY -

BRWEZFHE  H2H%E60A
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RIE-HERER

HE

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
=gl AR BEWR| M
A4 Climate Change

RIREL

General Disclosure
—RRIRER

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHE R LA HBETAEETENERRIKERESE
HRIBUR °

For more details, please refer
to Page 64
EAEZHIE  F20%648H

A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which For more details, please refer
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, to Page 64
and the actions taken to manage them. EEEZHIE  H20%F648H
BB R HBETAEEYENEAAGEREE - &
JEEITTE ©

Social

o

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

BRRETIER

General Disclosure

— MR

Following information on:
DATEE@%?H&H&%@E CHBEREA  TERE - RE) - TS
CEZb  REBRAREMFBRENY

(a) the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATENEBERIER

Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits welfare.

BB R -

For more details, please refer
to Page 56-58

FHE 25 H2HEeE
58 B

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, position level, age group and For more details, please refer
geographical region. to Page 57
RIS Bk - FicER bR D ES B - EREZHIE  F2HFE7E
B1.2 Turnover Rate by gender, position level, age group and For more details, please refer

geographical region

RIER - BAR - FERAN MR EI D HESRA L X

to Page 58
BAEZHIE  F2HE8E
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
Bm AR HWRS| M
B2 Health and Safety
BEEZ2
General Disclosure Information on: For more details, please refer
— AR R ERRHZ2TERRRREREHEBENL BTN to Page 55-56
(a) the policies; and EAEZFIE  B2HEE
B+ & 56 B
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHBETABEATZENBBERIER
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
B
B2.1 Number of work fatalities For more details, please refer
AT Tl A to Page 56
BEHMEZE  F2HE568
B2.2 Lost day due to work injury For more details, please refer
ETEIBRTIERE to Page 56
EAEZHIE  F2HE568
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures For more details, please refer

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
AP ER AN A B R R R IR 216 - U RMERIT RERFE -

to Page 56
BHAEZHE  H2KHE06H

B3 Development and Training

R R

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for For more details, please refer

—REIRER discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. | to Page 58
BERIHEE BT TIERE VA LB HIBUR - HF i BT 215 - F2HE8AE
& o

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Will provide next year
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle AR IR 4
management).
RERREERN(NERERRE  PREZES)IHNZII
BEBADL -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Will provide next year

gender and employee category.

BRI REBBRE D - BREETKZIIN TR -

AR

68 WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B R HIZERERBABR A T



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HE8RERRS

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
=gl AR BEWR| M
B4 Labour Standards

BT AR

General Disclosure

—REE

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

BRI IEE T REGIZTH

(a)  the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BITHEITABEAZENERMERLERNER -

For more details, please refer
to Page 58
BT 215 F2HE8 A

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to For more details, please refer
avoid child and forced labour. to Page 58
iR E BB E Pl LA 2 T o5 T - EHEZFE - F2HE8E
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | For more details, please refer

discovered.
H TR IR RIERRERE EIERPTEREE F5 -

to Page 59
EHEZHE  H2HE98

B5 Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

General Disclosure

—MRIER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ETRH RN TRIE M E Rl R

For more details, please refer
to Page 54
BHEZFIE  F2HE4H

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Will provide next year
RibE B D HEREE - AR LR

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, For more details, please refer
number of suppliers where the practices are being to Page 54
implemented, and how they are implemented and EHREZFHIE  F2HEME
monitored.
R B RIERMHERNIED - mERITEBEN N HERE
B UKREEBOORTRERETE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental For more details, please refer
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are to Page 54
implemented and monitored. EHAEZHIE  H2HES4E
M BRAZNHERGERGORRE LS ARNOED - UKk
HEARTRERAE -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally For more details, please refer

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

MR BRI R (8 2% IRIRE m L RAFHIIE B - LAKAR
BT MBS T% -

to Page 54
BHEZHE  H2HEM4E
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
Bm AR HWRS| M
B6 Product Responsibility

EmEHE

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress:

FEMRHERNRENRREEZS  BS  BRELEER

AR RT AR
(a) the policies; and
W R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BITHETABEAZENERERLERNER -

For more details, please refer
to Page 53-54
BT ZHE
54 B

F2HESSE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Will provide next year
recalls for safety and health reasons. AR IR 4
EERCDEXERAHPERBERIEAMARDKNB DL -

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Will provide next year
received and how they are dealt with. ARt
BEENE m M RTSEVIRF BB LA MBS 7% -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Will provide next year
intellectual property rights. AR
ot B o I AR (B R E R R BB I

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Will provide next year
procedures. AR
M B i0F 812 R E m BIGEFF -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy For more details, please refer

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

U BB ERRERLBBER - ARBERTRESTDE -

to Page 54
EHEZFE  F2MHE4R
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Aspects
=gl

Summary
nE

Page Index/Notes

BB R M

B7 Anti-corruption
RES

General Disclosure

—RREE

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering:
BRI IR - B1R - BMEFROEBER
(a) the policies; and
B R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BITHEITABEAZENEMERLERNER -

For more detail
to Page 59
BHREZHE

s, please refer

EEE =R

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt For more details, please refer
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during | to Page 59
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. EHEZFHE  E2M%E598
RERPANEETAREEERDI D EENETHARTD
A NFDER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing For more details, please refer
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. to Page 59
AL E A N B MAR T - LA RABRABIT REERITE - EHE %15 F2HE9E
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Not material
and staff. E=-VN

HulmESE N E TIRENRESE -

B8 Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RSERTREEMELEFENRRELERZHDG
ZREBAEEBR o

For more detail
to Page 59-60
R ZHE
60 B

s, please refer

EEIDETES

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental For more details, please refer
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). to Page 59-60
SEIERER(NHE  BRRFE SIFTR @R e -8B | BEESHE  F2HFE59E
B 608

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus For more details, please refer

area.

EEIBEMHAER(MEBERERE) -

to Page 59-60
AR ZHIE
60 B

EEE L ES
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May
2017 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Shares of
the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

on 3 January 2019.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration
turnkey solution provider in China focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste treatment systems,

particularly for hazardous waste incineration.

A list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2020 and their particulars are set out in note 40 of the consolidated

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided on page 8 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided on pages 12 to 19 of this annual report.
Details of the capital structure of the Company is provided on page
19 of this annual report. Details of the significant capital investment

of the Group is provided on page 18 of this annual report.

In addition, information of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in environmental, social and governance
report of this annual report. The Company’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are provided in the section headed “Compliance with Laws

and Regulations” of this directors’ report.

EECMAREAFHRERALEEE F 2020 F
12 A 31 Bt FERKEZYEHRE °

RIRBE

AARINR2017FE5 A 18 HERS B S ML
BERRARAR - ARAML2019F1 A3
BB ER LT -

FEXEBIEE

AEBZFEELNGERREY NGRS EE
R ERRMHE > IR EREYREIERGE(L
HRBRENTERERG)NME  Rit &

RNRATR2020FE 12 A31 B E 2 B 2 75
KEEFBER AT EREMFEL0 -

E3 a0

BRAAEEFNEBHEE RS AN EERRER
EROBUHENAFTHRESH - EAVBEER
B EHAEBFARBEITOD T H N AF R
F12EEF 198 - AR AR EALBOFE
BN AFRE19E - AARNEEBERERERE
R BN AFERE18H ©

AN - BEAARRIRERRERENEH T2
AERIRTE - HEREBWE - NARAETHA
SEBERFENABERERNBERERA
ERQWEETERIESR 8 -
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RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out on pages 100 to 256 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the
Company in general meeting may declare dividends in any currency
but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out
of the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve
or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies
or for paying off any loan capital or for equalizing dividends or for
any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied, and pending such application may, at the like
discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or
be invested in such investments (including in the repurchase by
the Company of its own securities or the giving of any financial
assistance for the acquisition of its own securities) as the Board
may from time to time think fit, and so that it shall not be necessary
to keep any investments constituting the reserve or reserves
separate or distinct from any other investments of the Company. The
Board may also without placing the same to reserve, carry forward
any profits which it may think prudent not to distribute by way of
dividend.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved that no final dividend was declared for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

ES

AEBEHZE2020F 12 A31HIEFENLEGA S
BEEHARFRE100EEFE 256 5

IR EBE

ERERE(RRIE) RA R BB ER XM N A
AMRRT - ARBARBERAEHAMEMEE
EIREE - RETNSHAEETSEZENETH -

EEBZEAREZA - EFGAUHARBENH
BEERSRENTREAEHE EFEAUBR
REBRBREINARRERENSE A
& HEEE ABMEEETAERAEERIAH
B BB SR A E b R E B B A AN A ] A e A
7w BEBRMBAZA - REAREHERRA
NAEBREZSTHRRRENKRE(BER
AREEEESRFIABNEEE S EFREHR
EMBHEED) Rt EEEL ES BB
AR IRE AR B E IR E B DK -
EEe i ABTAERR/TEUERE IR
M MAGEEE AR

RER S

EECFRHEE20200F12A31HIEFELTE
EIRAERE o
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 31 May 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021, both days inclusive
and during which during which period no transfer of share will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Friday,
28 May 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$200,000,000, divided into 4,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.05 each. Details of movements in the share capital of
the Company during the year 2020 are set out in note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year 2020 are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 255 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out on page 255
and page 105 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its

subsidiaries made no external donations.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ZEnERMBFEER

RARIBRhBPELER2021F5H31H
(EH—)Z=2021F6 ASH(ZEHM) (BEERE
MA)HMEE BT E®ITROBPERL -
AREEREERREFASIRE LR - &
BEARRANARBLEROIFE ARRAERGBES
SO R AR B AR =78 70 2021 4F 5 A 28 H (£ £
F)TFOR=T2RERRARNRGBFE
HEEEESFECLERAR  HIEAFTEZ2EX
BER18IFAFANLG4E  UPHRBFEELTF

N

SN

M20206 123318 RRAAIWMEERAR B
200,000,000 % 7T * % 4 4,000,000,000 & & &
EE0.05 BTG - BRAAR LR RAH 2020
FARNEBFEH NG E M EIREMFES -

fEE

BB R AMEER 2020 F A K E B I EH N A
FIREE 255 B NHIARA BT ISR MI5E 46 ©

Ak E S

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE - AR MAE
B RESESFIBEHNAFHRE 255 X 105 8 °

BB

HZE2020F 12831 HIEFE - AQF) N EH
BRARWEHIMELIBR

MITERREMBER

BEARNRIRENEBERFR2020%F12 431 H
RERITIE AR R A SRR MIFE 30 -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customers and the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 13.9% and 49.1% respectively of the

Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total amount of
purchases made by the Group from the its five largest suppliers
amounted to RMB107.6 million, and accounted for 24.8% of the
total purchases for the year. The amount of the purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to RMB25.6 million, and accounted for

5.9% of the total purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates, or
Shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares
of the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company

are set out in note 14 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following seven Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Zhuhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. DONG Honghui

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan

Mr. GU Chunbin (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

Mr. FENG Tao

TERFRHER

AEBGZAEERARBFEDAMEAREERE
£2020F 128318 IFF E WA £13.9% &
49.1% ©

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE  ASERER
AEEEIEENRBEECEARARKI1076EE
TC B F NIRRT 24.8% - FARRHAEER
EENRBEESEAARKE26EETL HK
BE1BRE5.9% ©

BREXFEEES  BESHAN HEES H
ETBMBEAXARARR(BEEMAHEER
ARES%ALECETRNDBE)IRAFEER
SEAAHERRE,THEAER -

M BERRE

EEAARRYME  BERRENESHFBEHRY
EREMIFE14 -

BEx
ESSHRANA T EBESEX
HITES

BIREALE (FFRFTHAEF)
BB E

BkExRE

HIEW R (R2021F3 A 11 HEZ(F)
BYFHITES

BEEEE

BERSAE

BB
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises of seven Directors in total. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Directors” above. There are three
senior management in total, including Ms. HUANG Ying, Mr. CUI
Jinhong, Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan.

Information about the details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with all Directors
for a term of three years following each Director’s respective
appointment date or until the third annual general meeting of
the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, or
which shall be terminated pursuant to relevant terms of respective
contracts or letters of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which was not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

EENEAEEBNERES

EXeo mtREFTER - BB F2H
EXTEE |8 - SREEBREABR=%" &
EEB LT - ERBEL  BRTEE -

BFRESRARASREEEABNERER
[EERSRERRE|—4 -

BYFHTESH
B MBRAE

ARRE R BB FRTEEREC(LTR
ANEIABFRBELNFREB U ERE - URR
BB IFNITEEIRBIAL °

EERBEN

ARRIEHEMBESIURBAN  BRRESF
EENZEAYEREEARR A LHAHES
ZERRBFRE IF(AREERE)SB=F -
HRBEMAENRZEENRBIERRBTRL -

FIERNERARBRIBFAS LERETEZ
EEHEERQARAEEAMBELATIRN—F
NBARRREMB AR TIALIEMEELEEE
(—ROEERERIN 2 MR ERIREEL -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for service contracts, there were no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business, to which the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which any of
the Directors , an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholders of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN BUSINESSES
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors,
confirming that other than business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly

competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short
position in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

EENERRRRRE ZHREES
WWE KRR

MERSBEBREAEE - RRBSLH - K
AE - BERAR - EEANE QAR R B
REAMET I AAEREZBEAEABMENZS
RHKEH BEF BREFEMENERNL
ARAEBRBRRNBERS - KEREHOTEE
SRR A E AL ©

EEAYN

RB|BERN > BEFT LR FEEAABEARRE
AHREME BN EBNEERITHAL

EERERQNTBREFH
EBhHER

ARRERBEFTHANER L  BRAEFHE
TAZN 62 B S 755 LA SIME ] 9 A 5= B S A R AR 38 P
BRERSEESFOEG T EAEAER -

EERBEITRABRAAFAR
HEREER®D - HERO R
EEETHEERAR

REERERATAY  EFRARARBTHEA
BRARR REABEE(ExA(EHFRERK
PIDEXVE) A - AR N ERETHEE
RIBGEF MG GO FEXVERE 7 R FE 85 A
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(FEHEARGRIDHNZFEIERRIEREE
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Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares NGO REBROTHNEAE
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number the Company’s
Note of ordinary of underlying issued share
Name of Director Nature of interest Kzt shares held shares held capital
AATF
FrsEER FrfsEE ERITRAEAN
EEpR EEME A RHEE BHAESE
Mr. CAl Zhuhua Interest in controlled corporation 664,418,000 — 49.83%
BIRESLE REEB PR
Interest of spouse 1 — 3,933,338 0.29%
i s
Mr. DONG Honghui Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.29%
BABEYE E=mlEAA
Mr. DENG Zhaoshan  Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.29%
BhREEE EnBEAA
Mr. GU Chunbin Beneficial owner 2 — 1,333,335 0.10%
ZEWEE ERBERAA
Note: Kiat -
1. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG Ying. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. 1. BEERARZTHORS - RIKEFRPEK
CAl is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG Py BEERERARERLLIHEARENMER
Ying is interested. MHERER -
2. Mr. GU Chunbin was appointed as an executive Director on 11 March 2. ZEWERER 2021 F3 A 11 BEZERPITES -
2021.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at M ENFIEEIN  BESHA  REBEEEA
Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executives TEH BEELESTHAERBELQNHE

flhnd t:elr reschtllvelz assrcimates hj(ij atr;y Tterestfotrhshcc:)rt |o05|t|ons'|tn AR A A T S AR A E (F3% B(BE R
e shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its e e g A g S A A 1 e s N
EEBINEXVER) G ~ RN REEETE

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) . e 1 e
) o o c . S 2% 27 A
(i) which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be A () IRECGE 7 LB GO )E 352 &2 & i

recorded in the register kept by the Company, or (ii) which will be ARAFEEMAERESESIOXR - (i)
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock BIEGEESF AN @ NN R R E BT F
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. (AIREZR KA ©
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at Latest Practicable Date, the
following person (other than the Directors and chief executives) had
interest or short positions in the shares of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company:

Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares

Name of Director Nature of interest Notes
EEgE EatE et
WeiGang Technology Beneficial owner 1
BRI ERBEAA
Weigang Green Interest in controlled corporation 1
AR E REEB PR
Mr. CAl Interest in controlled corporation 1
BEE REEB R R
Interest of spouse 2
[
Ms. HUANG Interest of spouse 3
BsUL [
Beneficial owner 3
EnEBA
DHW Holdings Beneficial owner 4
KA EFER EnlEBA
Mr. ZHANG Weiyang Interest in controlled corporation 4
SRAIN ST E REEE D R
Beneficial owner 4
EnlBA
Ms. ZHOU Wenying Interest of spouse 5
EhE S e EofBfkes

FTERRER

BEEMAN RNEREBRATAH U TAL
(BFEXRFTRABRINR AR BB HHEE
ARB(EZ R EKRPDEXVEFE2R30 &
1630 T LA BR SR AR RE 77 I A B 16k 151 ) 28 336 16
R AE BGH P LS R MR M SRR T -

RROREBERGHNER
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number  the Company’s
of ordinary of underlying issued share
shares held shares held capital
PN
FREFERR FR¥EHEER BBITREMN
#A R BB RS
664,418,000 — 49.83%
664,418,000 — 49.83%
664,418,000 — 49.83%
— 3,933,338 0.29%
664,418,000 — 49.83%
— 3,933,338 0.29%
191,671,000 — 14.38%
191,671,000 — 14.38%
46,710,000 — 3.50%
238,381,000 — 17.88%
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Notes:

1. WeiGang Technology is wholly owned by Weigang Green which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. CAl. Mr. CAl and Weigang Green are
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by WeiGang Technology
under the SFO.

2. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. CAl
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG is
interested.

3. Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAl. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. HUANG
is deemed to interested in all the Shares in the Shares in which Mr. CAl
is interested.

4. DHW Holdings is wholly owned by Mr. ZHANG Weiyang (“Mr. ZHANG").
Mr. ZHANG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by DHW
Holdings under the SFO.

5. Ms. ZHOU Wenying is the spouse of Mr. ZHANG. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. ZHOU Wenying is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Mr. ZHANG is interested.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate for the Reporting
Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors and senior management. The permitted indemnity

provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

Hpit -

1. EENEARBRESEREE  MEBREHEE
R ERA - BEGEERMEED)  BELRNS
B OB AREERRBE ORGP EEMR
H e

2. BELAFLLHEE - REGEHRBEHED) -
BEAWRARER T RARBONABRG RS
s -

3. ERTARELNRE - BEGESRBREDD -
BT W AR S AR A IR R
s o

4 KRTERBEFEDEE(REE DR ERAE - 18
GRS RIBRED) - RS WA AR AT R
55 0P PR o A R

5. AXKRTARELMEE - REGEERBEE
B B L AR AR R S A A T
B 1A P IR M 25 -

EERERDUEEZHER

BARFERZEREIN  BEATMNEFTIESS
BEMEBHIBEATHFRARIEBBEAR
AR ok (A R M ARG A as MR - TR FIREAT
EERBEERN - kAR R REFNEB AR TR
BRIV EAZH  REEFIRESENEMBHL
18 BRIA T B F 2 A 3 &5 B N BRAS I A ] E )%
ABEBHBRER -

RFFRERX

ARREREEZERSRERBHIBEENET
R - BRABTRIRET A2 FFRER -
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to incentivize the Directors, senior management, connected
persons and other grantees for their contribution to the Group and
to attract and retain suitable personnel to the Group, the Company
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 10 December 2018.
Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period
commencing on the 10 December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”) and
ending on the tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date. The term of
this scheme are not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules as this scheme will not involve the grant of options by
the Company to subscribe for shares subsequent to the Listing of

the Company.

Details of the Options Granted under the pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

As at the 31 December 2020, the total number of outstanding share
options was 41,946,719, representing approximately 3.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. No such provision regarding
maximum entitlement of each participant under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The details below set out the movement of the Share options
granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

During the reporting period

RBEHE
Balance as at
Grantee 01/01/2020 Exercised Cancelled
R2020F
ARA 181 BMEe 217 G
Directors
=
DONG Honghui 3,933,338 — —
BAE
DENG Zhaoshan 3,933,338 — —

HikE

B AR SRR RER S

AEEHESR  afEEE  BEALREMEAR
AEAREEELNER - WAKEERS| KB
EEMAT ARFER2018F 12 A10H K
MERAFAEERERETE - BRRERAR
BHEABRESSINGH  BRAREEAH
PerEst a8l B 2018 12 10 B ([HRA A H1 ]) #2
ERMABMETAFILHRRARRER - BRI
FTEIN TS RAR R HEREARARRE T
BRERD - BULFBIOERAETE ETRRIE
17 B ZAEFTHER -

REEXLHABENBRESERENBRES
&

202012 A31H » MARITERBERERY
741,946,719 - HER AR QBB EHITRAL
31% c BRARBERNBRETEVERTSR
SE AN ERERRTE LR -

REIA - REERRFAEENBRESRHN
BREZZEHEIINT

Balance as at Exercise price Option
Lapsed 31/12/2020 per share period
12020 %
BAX 12 A31 B4 BRITEE BRERR
(HKS)
(1)
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
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During the reporting period

REBEHE
Balance as at
Grantee 01/01/2020 Exercised Cancelled
#2020
ARA 171 B M4 [SE5x;d 2
Employees
E&
HUANG Ying 3,933,338 — —
(wife of Mr. CAl
Zhuhua)
BR(BHRELER
£F)
30 other employees 32,653,375 — 2,506,670
0EHEMEE
Total 44,453,389 - 2,506,670
M5t

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at the
date of this annual report, which was in line with the requirement

under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any member of the Group has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the period

under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands that
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

Balance as at Exercise price Option
Lapsed 31/12/2020 per share period
120205
BAM 12831 BRI BRITEE BRELR
(HK$)
(1)
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
— 30,146,705 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
- 41,946,719
AREARERE

REARBMBARERMRESEHA - RAF
BEH ARARICHFERITRMND DR 25%
MARTBRE - FTACLETRADKRE -

BE HEIFEEEAQANLEHES

REBEMA  ARBHEAEEEAKERRALE
BE  HENBRARREMKRD -

BRBEE
ABERAARANXHSHEERLESHTE
RELEERNE - REARRBERLLHIRR
BRIRBEEMBL
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EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance of the Directors
and senior management and comparable market practices. The
Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share
based payments, pensions, and other social insurance benefits.
Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors
receive compensation according to their duties (including serving
as members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject
to the approval of the shareholders general meeting. Details of
remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 11 to
the Financial Statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

BE - HMKRAKEFE

HNEZE D EKIL - Rigil AEBRBNEBER
NEBEERAEEGRELEREBHMORE -
HAEZ@AAKENEEREE EFNSRE
EEMEATIERRARBETSIED - KXAF]
BEREFE - RRL - BWREN - ERIELA - RO
P RAREREMEEREENSEI ARG HE
BENBTESTRSRETEBIRMEFB - JE1T
EERBUFNTESREBEERE(BRELE
EFEZBeRE T E)WEFH B -

EENFMIBRERSNBRERBELL2ER
N RNRBRFHMBER FRITTARETE - A
FRERNERARE LIESAEE - BRAEEN
RN A EA RS B A 5 8RS B 80 BN
BA TR RE 11 o

EERABREHALHHMH

FHEERAE RS FATHOMESF BN LGS
R HmEMITE 1T -

FEEE
R2020F 12 A31H  "EFBWESEAKEE

o

5

s
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. CAl, Weigang
Green and WeiGang Technology, has executed a deed of non-
competition on 10 December 2018 pursuant to which they have
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for the
Company itself and on behalf of the members of the Group) that,
during the period that the Non-Competition Deed remains effective,
he/it/she shall not, and shall procure that his/its/her close associates
(other than any member of the Company) shall not, directly or
indirectly, develop, acquire, participate in, hold any right or interest
or invest in or engage in, render any services for or otherwise
be involved in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activities of the Company
in the PRC or any other area in which the Company carries on
business. The Company shall seek opinion and decision from
the independent non-executive Directors who are responsible for
reviewing and determining whether to accept or decline such new
business opportunity provided by Controlling Shareholders or its
associates. The details of the Deed of Non-competition have been
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship

with Controlling Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-
Competition Deed and had determined that neither Mr. CAI,
Weigang Green and WeiGang Technology has been in breach of

the Non-Competition Deed during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures,
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and
integrity in all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and
operations are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and to enhance the transparency and accountability of

the Board to all shareholders.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period except
from the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

P55 B R

TRRAR R (BNER e & - B G REAR) & A
MR2018F 12 A10B B THFRIE - Bt
BEEAHE REKEMARRT(ABERAT
RERRERNEBMEE AR ARHE - EREER
HMHBRZHE A (KA RIS RQRIBRINTE
ETBMFREEFEIEEESBERSE - K
B QEBEARRQE R ES AR BEITEFHT
A H it EHR A EBEDREX TR
BRBRENEMER - IRRSEBPREEA
REF LR FIIEE RN FHIRE ARG HIAE
M RNSHZEER - AARERBEERERE
ERLEMNIIBRIERR R EHE ATRED
BEAFARNBYIERTESSRKERRIREK -
BEATHIRBENFBERBRER mEZERRR
MRAR | — B PR R -

BYHATEECENTHIRE  YOBEES
S - B B REBRHEN RS SR Mg R
TR -

ARBBANHER RIEBBHEEENR - ARF
MEREBRAUBEETRNOAIESEE &
FRKFNEREE REMBXBHEEBENRE
BEERE  HREXBEREEHETERERR
R RN E RS HAMARROEREERM

Bl

RARRHRE A BT ETARADK AT
A EBRTAN(REESRTRD]) R E
FASFANESC - HEIRBEC R F B AT RIDEY ST BIE ST
BA21 AEBRIN
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Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cai Zhuhua serves as
chairman as well as chief executive officer of the Company and this
dual role leadership has been in practice by the Company since
2009. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered
to be more efficient to have one single person to be chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of
a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals. The Company will review
the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, each Director
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the reporting period. The Board has
also established written guidelines to regulate dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred
to in code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited, certified public accountants. Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited has been appointed as the auditors
of the Company following the annual general meeting of the
Company on 5 June 2019 to fill the vacancy from the retirement of
the previous auditors. Details of the change of auditors were set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 26 April 2019 and 9 May
2019.

(EEERTADHTAMRXFA2IERE &
ERETRAHENACEERY X TEA—A
FIEFRE - BREAER/NRBEETRRITHAE
o MitEAeREEN B 2009 F LR A QA
—H#ET ARRERELRE/RE  REEA
RA—ALTREARREZRFEITTHRAERNHR
TRERGAEARE  APREREHKNE
HREMATRE - EFERREFEUETZ
RpEERATBNAL  HBEBERERTIAR
RIED RBAEFE - RRAHRE LB RRTE
IR -

BIESETEZXZN(RESAD)

A2 7 B ER T4 B DM 8+ BT G E 7 B

A1) - (EREFEEARRERFNTTR/ER -

ERAZBEHEFHBEERNR  SEFHOER
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group did not enter into any other connected transactions
which should comply with the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For certain material related party transactions disclosed in note 38
to the Financial Statements which were also connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Company, the

Company had made disclosure as required under the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or

threatened against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has allocated system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain
well relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year, the Group has complied, to the
best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Company.

By order of the Board

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited

CAl Zhuhua

Chairman

PRC

26 March 2021

FEBRERS

AREBEWETAEFMEMAET(ETRDE
TOASETRE - AERBIBRRIEREN
HERS -

SRS MR LS8 T BE N E T E R T X
(A ASARRMNLETRADE+MAZTET
MBERZ)ME » ART SRR ETRADD
HREEHEE

BERERER

ARFARE NBRES EAEARRAANE - B
BEEHA - WELHARRREA T HOER
SR -

BFEERER
AEBECHEREBRANER  WRFEETH
AIRERR - WEBAREREEE MRS RET
B - SLRFIFTRA - AEERNFASRETHAE
HARBBAEAZENRRIFOER

GBARPMEEREAFRLQE

BIRE
EER

T

202143 A 26H

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B R HIZERERBABR A T



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 100 to 255, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BERRRBREREEERAARRZ
BYREEERE
(RASEBEMAIZNARRA)

=R

RIZEEN (A T EBIERM DB RTEHRNE 100
Z 255 BBIRRBIEIEREEERAR([ER
A REMBAR (GBI EEE ) 2K HHR
- BER2020F 12831 B2 6Bk
®BEZALFEZEGERREMEARE
R CBARDEHRIEEBREMNER - URE
BB HmENTE  PEEESREME -

BMRE  ZERAVBREREBEEERSE
B BB HA R SRE ERDEE MR
BHRET BHEEMN20204F 12 A31 HH4R
AUBRAREEZALFENGEEMBRER
BARERE  WOEBREBS(RMEHDNEE
TR B -
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

ERER

BPEREBEEESHMASRMAEEEALE
ANETTES - RPEZFENTAENREIE
EARES[ BB R M B RRAENE
EIMo R EE— Mt - REFEEAMAE
B EEEFEERTRD(TTR]) - HFIB
IR BERE - YEETTRTHEMERER
B - #f18(E - RPIMESHETREERR
FEEHRRMNEAERREER -

REESEE
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HEaMBHREANEITR/ERNSER - FLF
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

ARETEE
Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers
for hazardous waste incineration solutions services

BREEFREREYRBEEEHE R RRBEIETLERH
KA

We identified the recognition of revenue from contracts
with customers for hazardous waste incineration
solutions services as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the
determination of the timing and recognition involved
significant management judgement.

B REFPRERENRERERRT RIRBAFILEH
EENBABNASBREFEERE  REREUGSBEERE
MEHARERAEFEATE  AEERHERETERATEE
B EEH EXRHE -

As set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has recognised revenue from
hazardous waste incineration solutions services
amounting to RMB468,528,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

BANAR A M mAM 6 FrEal - B E2020F 12 A31H 1k
FE - B5ECHEIARACREVRERBR RS EREN
W AN 468,528,000 7T °

BEEEHG)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EAHEFT N AEERETBEETERE

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue on contracts with customers for hazardous
waste incineration solutions services included:

AP R RE R BT P B kR BE W UG B B R R T SR ARTS AT AT
STAHHRANETETFRE

° Obtaining an understanding of the revenue
business process and the key controls
over revenue recognition performed by the

management;
TRBEAZEBIRIE R E T E R WA R AT HETT ) B 2%
&l s

° On a sample selection basis, agreeing the

contract sum to signed contracts;
RMERAEERBERITAOREEHTER

o On a sample selection basis, agreeing the
estimated total contract costs to signed
contracts, visiting selected construction sites
and interviewing project managers for the
progress of the construction work and evaluating
the reasonableness of estimated total contract
costs prepared by management by performing
gross margin analysis and comparing the
actual outcome of completed projects against
management’s estimation of total contract costs;

BRMERAZERBDRITANRYEEHEEHOK
AN ZREITEN - WETHIEER CRHAEE TR
EE - AREBETENDITRKE TRIER NERLE
REEEEHESHRANGHEETHLBRATEERE
Frim i aT A KA S EIE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BERETER
Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers

for hazardous waste incineration solutions services
(continued)

BREEFREREYRBEEEFRT FRBITLENR
KA (&)

The accounting policies and estimation uncertainty in
relation to revenue from hazardous waste incineration
solutions services are set out in Notes 3 and 4
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group recognised revenue from hazardous waste
incineration solutions services over time by using the
input method with reference to the estimated total

contract costs.

AR AR EMIEREFIRT RIRBEO WA ST HER
LGt A EEED I ER B HRMEI R4 HEE
2REAEEHNRAEARNER —BREBAERRE BR
R IR B E AR IR TT RIRFEHIMA -

BEEEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MBS N AHERBITBRETER

Tracing, on a sample selection basis, the contract
costs incurred for work performed during the year

to supporting documents;

BREEE  HRFAXMTEEFAMETIRELZ
/E.\%(Uﬁk$;

Arranging confirmations to selected customers
by agreeing the contract amount, the progress
billings issued to customers, and relevant balance
of trade and note receivables, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contracts based on the

confirmed information;

BERHANSRE REPEHMNANEETARER
BHRKFAREEEERAEGAR  THREEERP
EHIER - URRBECHERERFEEESOTRE D
LA B

Performing alternative procedures for the
unreturned confirmations by tracing to the
relevant supporting documents, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contract based on the
supporting documents; and

EBEERMENX AR A TEORRERTE R
B - WREEBX AR OHRIAD LHAE
1T AR R

Recalculating the percentage of completion based
on the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the estimated

total contract costs.

REBZEAMARIEEENSHRAER-ESD
BRARLS - EFAETIAESL -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BARESNER

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets
ESRKZERSHEENHEHE

We identified the estimated impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to their significance to the consolidated statement
of financial position and the involvement of management
judgement in evaluating the expected credit losses
(“ECL") of trade receivables and contract assets at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets, with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB172,950,000 and RMB278,733,000 in Notes 22 and
24 to the consolidated financial statements respectively,
amounting to approximately RMB451,683,000 in
aggregate.

HMEESEBGRERAENEENTEDREHR A BRES
B RAAHHSREUBRRARABEALERNTER
EHRNBE SRR S BERANEENTBREEEERIRE
HEHIE - R2020F 128310 EXEEZEKFIER
EREEEHBEEES HOARK 172,950,000 T &k AR
278,733,000 L (B4R G B IRERME22 Rk 24)) & HH A A
¥ 451,683,000 7T °

BEEEHG)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MRS N AHERBITBRETER

QOur audit procedures in relation to the estimated
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

included:

BMARESRURAR S NEENETRENETEFE
&

o Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of assessing the ECL of trade receivables

and contract assets;

THREREFHEZREFBRANEENTRAERES
B BIZ

o Obtaining management’'s assessment on the
collectability of individual trade receivables, and
contract assets, and corroborated management’s
assessment against relevant supporting evidence,
including subsequent settlements and credit

history of these customers;

BSEEEHERE 5 EUGRIE kA K& E AT E A
FE WARBHEEHER(BEZERPNERERLE
REERESL)BEEREMTMG

° Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
grouping for those trade receivables and contact

assets that were not assessed individually by

considering the credit risk;

BREBEERRNE BREEHRETEMNFGEOE
SERBGKRIARANEBEED ENEEE
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8 M % BED | E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BAREESER

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets (continued)
BSENZEARGHEEN AT HE(Z)

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group performs
periodic review on the construction projects and
individual credit evaluations on significant customers.
These evaluations focused on the customer’s settlement
history and current and future ability to pay, and took
into account the information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the current and future economic

environment in which the customer operates.

AN AMBRENEAFEE - BEEEREYNEAT
FAMMESER RAMERNERFHETTHEY - %5
5 BT 25 1038 45 B HROR A TR 88 AR R SR 9 5 3B
A 2 5 BT A T B A A 9 8 T R A
WREABOER -

HARETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MBS N AHERBITBRETER

Evaluating the reasonableness of the default rates
of different groups by considering the actual
losses recorded during the prior and current

financial years;

BBERBENE M RFEZSHEREBERFETR
AR OERNEEE

Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and

forward-looking information;

FRBREEEERAMEEEBABNER (BFARB
EENBENEREERHEBEBREETREENRL
ERR KA EERMEHEE BE)  FHEEEER
BABEFTA IR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BARESNER

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets (continued)
BSENSERGHEENATHE(E)

For trade receivables and contract assets which were
not subject to individual evaluations or individually
assessed as not impaired, management collectively
assessed expected credit losses taking into account
of the nature of customers, the aging analysis and
historical bad debt losses incurred in respect of
those group of customers. Expected credit losses are
estimated by grouping the remaining trade receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information affecting the ability of the

customers to settle the receivables.

B R A 1T 18 51 BT A S BB BT B X R (E 9 B 5 B W R IR
RAWEEMS  BEELIREPME - REDMT RHZ
ERFPHERIELANBEERER SRTHEHEEEHE -
BHEEEEESEREARGEERREHE KT E S E YR
HET D BME I%?¥EW@%T“@°@EEE$E
REBRNRRTZ BT ZHERKGIRGE NN E Bl RATHE EE
e

As disclosed in Notes 22 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, the impairment loss of the Group
on trade receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2020 amounted to RMB7,494,000 and
RMB9,753,000 respectively.

AR A B S IRRM 22 R 24FT I E - S EER 2020 F
12A31HNESRKFIERANEENRERBES I AAR
#& 7,494,000 7t & AR % 9,753,000 7T ©

BEEEHG)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MR N AHERRITBRETEE

Checking the subsequent settlements of any
credit-impaired trade receivables, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of
the current reporting period and challenging
management regarding their reasons for not
considering a provision against any unsettled

past-due balances; and

BREEREEREEZ S BRFIANPEEEE L - W&
FREPEREERBHME S EB AR S YA E A
- WHERENEBRERAE T B G AT IR EB
MIERIRHER &

Evaluating the appropriateness of the disclosures
in respect of the credit risk and impairment

assessment of trade receivables and contract

assets in the consolidated financial statements.

FESEVBHRRTEREZREFRRENEENE
SRR MREFENRELTIRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BAREESER

BEEEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MBS N AHERBITBRETER

Impairment of goodwill

BE Bl

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to the judgement and estimation involved
in determining the recoverable amount which was
prepared and used by the management in considering

impairment of goodwill.

BMBEEBREZNSERESFZTR RAREEEEER
Z B R RRE RS P AR B R R RO AT AR B & BROS Je A R (A5

Impairment of goodwill is assessed by the management
by comparing the recoverable amount and carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating units at the
end of the reporting period. The recoverable amount
is determined based on the value in use of which the
calculation involved significant assumptions such as
discount rate and the forecasts of future revenue growth
rates and gross margins used in the estimated future

cash flow.

BEREREEEEBLRERRESELEMNREHRN
A E R R REEET G - TRESEDREEREE
BE  HFAESRERARR  NUHARRMGEHRARRESRE
P AR AR SRR ASE R R R B F R IEA -

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported goodwill in oilfield
auxiliary services business with a carrying amount of
RMB18,277,000 as at 31 December 2020.

BN AT RRMEI7THTIEE - S5 BN 2020F 12 A
31 B 2WMRFMEEA AR 18,277,000 7T #Y5H A B RIS E 55
MR -

Details of the related key estimation uncertainty are set

out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

EHIEMF I EERZNFERNGA M BRRMES -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment of goodwill included:
BMEEEREYHBERENGNEF 2

o Understanding the Group’s key control over
the management’s impairment assessment on

goodwill;

T BESBEHELREETHERERN G R
I

o Obtaining the future cash flow analysis prepared
by the management and checking its mathematical

accuracy;

BEERERENARREREN MU ME LT HER
M

° Reviewing the valuation report prepared by the
independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, checking its mathematical
accuracy and assessing the capability and
qualification of the valuer;

HHE BEBERENE L EEGEMRENTE
HE MEEAEEEE L EGEMOE I RER
o Evaluating the discount rate used in the

discounted cash flow model, by comparing with

the industry practice;

FRETEEETER  FERRREREER D E
FREAEIR R
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B %A RS

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRETER EAHET N AHEAERTBEETER
Impairment of goodwill (continued)

AEFRE ()

o Evaluating the key assumptions used in the
estimated future cash flow, including the forecasts
of future revenue growth rates and gross margins,
by comparing with the historical performance and
future strategic plan of the Group in respect of the

cash-generating units; and

FRLER BEEEFMReEEBUMNBAERBRARR
REEETE - FEEFARKRSREMBNEIEZRE &
FEARRBAE R ERENEOHTA - &

o Assessing management’s sensitivity analysis for the
key assumptions, to ascertain the extent to which

adverse changes, either individually or in aggregate,

would result in the impairment of goodwill.

FHEEEEH I Z2BRIOGUBEDNT - AT E 5
BN HEBEERENRE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

HifE 8

BERFESRYEMEERE - RMERRED
FRFHRANEE - BTRERZRAS M%#E%z&ﬁz
[RESE- G

BAYGEAMBRRANBEEL PREEMER
ERREMAMANERS

BT EZEH MG
o

BAEBMBRAMBHRRNET  RANEER

BB L AT EMER - FiBRET - T8
Hip5 BT BEAMBHRRA B MEFER
AT T RIS ﬂ?‘ﬁé?ﬁﬁ%iﬁi%ﬂhﬂﬁﬁik
SRR R V1S

ERBRASHITHIIE - RBFRBFSEMER
FEEA#HRRL - RAFEHREZEE -
HE - BIPREEARE

ct

il
nlg

EERAEBEEBRAS
BfE

MBHBRAREN

BERAREFAAEREER ST EAEEEMMA
i BOC B B B 75 3 25 2 B ) Il B B2 B 6 1 ) A9
BEZRBBEEMTENGEMHRE EE"T
/\u«u%ﬁﬁ,m/\ﬁ?fﬁiﬁ?@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ?fﬁmﬁé

oK 55 7R 1T 28 BUEY B A 85 AR PR L P 75 B P B4 %IJE

Eo

ERBREMHREAE  EFRENE E5HE
FEQEMEE N XHEBERBR TRERSEL
LEANER  UREARELESETER
BRIFEEAER BEREBBRIELLE X
BHMERNERSSR -

REERBEEE HEENMKHREHERE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHEARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

R ET e M BRREABNEE

BANER  REGEMBEREREBES IR
BRRFFERMERNERERULRSAE
R - WERZERREABSERMERORE
¥R - BRULDASN - AT IRE TR AER LA
& o BPIALARARE 2 AR EEAE M A L&
EEMEESRZEMEE -

EREREFZBKFOHRE  BTRRERB(E
BB EADEITHRGT - AR —EAHERRL
PR BRI - SRR AT A B IKFF 8 AR 5
2 MRSERHNCMEBRERERATERTE
RAMBHRRERERBEAMBERAELEN
RERTE - R AR RRA AR EERX ©

ERB(EBETEUNDDETETNRIER - &K
THER T HEEHE - RIFTEXEHREE o B
DI

o BRIMFHEARKFFRBRMEBEEM
BHRRGFEEAERRANOREE - Rt R
HITEETFUAREELRRE - A RER
FERMEZENETERE  ERARMELN
it o ARBFFARES RPR BE - F
BAER - EREL - EBERAEESZ
£ FBREEEIREA MM E R E A
AR R R SR RREE T REFR MG
B ERFRRRR A R o

o THRERFHEMMANIES  URFTEE
BEEER - BEEMILIEH BEEANI
THIMBRIEBERER -

s HEEFMRASHERRNRBEMEREL
SR MER R EN S EIE -
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M A% B AT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguard applied.

RBAREAFSUMBERRAENEE

s NEERARELESHERNREME
Hismm o RIBFIEDRMNEEE TR
EFEREEABRABNEATHEE
M AT ERY BERENFELE
RRNELEEARE -  MREMRBREFEE
ATHEEN  AALEEZBEN RS TR
FEREIBKRAVMBHRRTOAER
B-RBREAHENEETR  AIRMEE%
REERBER - HPINEREERN X
¥R s B ILFTEVSHRETERRE - A - K
RERLIEATEEH BEEETERE

@ AL

s FHESRAMBHERNEEI®IN  EE
MAR  BEKE  URESFBHRERE
BRFRRZZFNEIR o

e 3 BEEEAERIEXFIDOUBKER
EMFRE  BENERRE  UWHERAW
BHREABERER - KMAE BEREZFA
B3 BEBEMET - BRPIREFER A

ERAEE -

BREMEIRS - RAEGEERB T A EIMEST
#E - FETH BEREFERE  BREEMAAE
BT AP BRI L P BRI O (E (] B K ERPA -

HFTFAEERRER - SAKMETEERE
BYERABERERER  YERFEBEN
BRI WA RS T BB IEH P B R
HibE1H - UREEBRWNERLT - RBERBEM
REXETTE) M T B b B0 AR B P 815 1 ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHEARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lo Wing See.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2021

Lo Wing See

Practising certificate number P04607

BRBARESFSUBRRAENEE

45 )
(48)

3/

RERE BB ERT - RIFIEE WL EIRE
APGAMBRENETRRER - AMEKE
REFFE HMELBERETHAELS
B BIFERERTATARKEELER &
ERmERNBERT - MRABFEMHERMBE
TRBRXEHERNAEKRBBELHNDRF
& BfIRETEERSTABZER °

RS A BED 5 M AT IR B AR B R AR K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEREaRREMGEEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 A 31 H It F[E

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR A2 (7)

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥TFTT AREFT
Revenue A 5,6 536,811 537,509
Cost of services BRAE A AR (453,929) (393,273)
Gross profit EF 82,882 144,236
Other income, gains and losses B - e & EE 7 7,484 11,862
Administrative expenses THAX (55,483) (39,764)
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERE (2,481) (2,280)
Impairment losses and write-off B 5 FE WK IE & E A FE UL
of trade receivables and other HIBUAREHNEERRE
receivables and contract assets, 518 R as (F0BR )
net of reversal (15,449) (767)
Other expenses HibR (21,890) (21,058)
Share of results of associates EIEBEPENER (953) (13)
Finance costs A R A 8 (2,429) (1,094)
(Loss)/profit before tax Fian (E8R),FH 10 (8,319) 91,122
Income tax credit/(expense) i8R e,/ (FxX) 9 949 (13,091)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),/FH (7,370) 78,031
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Htp2mE (X)W
income
Items that will not be reclassified to T8 B# A Z Bz H
profit or loss: HA -
Fair value (loss)/gain on equity BERAREEFEWE A
instrument at fair value through 2HE(FX),/ /AR
other comprehensive (expense)/ TAMNAREBEER),/
income Iz (950) 1,795
Income tax relating to items that will BTG EFHHEEIBENE
not be reclassified to profit or loss BBRANAER 237 (449)
(713) 1,346
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FRE2ME (X)) WHEBE
income for the year (8,083) 79,377
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkAMEERE X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 A 31 H It FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA REE A B A7)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
H et AR FT ARKTFr
(Loss)/profit for the year UTEHEEER(ER)
attributable to: FIHE :
— Owners of the Company — ARAHEAA (10,929) 66,984
— Non-controlling interests — FEERER 3,559 11,047
(7,370) 78,031
Total comprehensive (expense)/ UT&FEEFERZE (R
income for the year attributable X)),/ WEBEE
to:
— Owners of the Company — RRRHEA A (11,256) 67,753
— Non-controlling interests — JEIERRE R 3,173 11,624
(8,083) 79,377
(Loss)/earnings per share R (E5E) B2F
— Basic (RMB) — ZEAR(AR%TT) 12 (0.008) 0.050
— Diluted (RMB) — #E(AR%T) 12 (0.008) 0.049
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEBIFI s Bz S A ISR 2K D o

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

As at 31 December 2020 72020 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R A8 (L)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT ARMFr
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment N E L 14 132,205 81,065
Intangible assets EEE 15 22,047 15,765
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 18 11,775 6,310
Goodwill EES 17 18,277 —
Interests in associates RE & DR R 16 594 581
Equity instrument at fair value BARBEFELFAEA
through other comprehensive 2HREMRATEA
income 19 3,825 4,775
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEEYE BELREDN
plant and equipment 2 16,551 7,971
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 25 7,382 24,715
Deferred tax assets BRETIBE E 20 13,764 9,703
226,420 150,885
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 21 6,952 5,250
Trade and note receivables B 5 e W sk E & R I 22 234,951 143,874
Deposits, prepayments and other e - TBTRIE R E MR
receivables HIE 23 63,737 57,120
Contract assets BHEE 24 278,733 274,408
Amounts due from non-controlling JFE Uy — FEI BT B 8 B FEE AR
shareholders of a subsidiary fi% 5 K18 26 4,523 —
Pledged bank deposits BB IRITF K 25 36,053 28,284
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 25 87,354 142,206
712,303 651,142
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade payables B ENKIE 27 151,962 119,606
Other payables and accrued E Ao PE A SRIE R BT X
expenses 28 25,211 15,264
Contract liabilities AHEaE 24 105,089 44,179
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 2,670 2,802
Income tax payable FEAFRSHL 1,087 15,478
Borrowings &= 30 44,384 26,598
330,403 223,927
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

As at 31 December 2020 712020 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R A8 A7)

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

k23 AR¥TFTT AR FT

Net current assets REBEEFE 381,900 427,215

Total assets less current liabilities BEEAHERMTBHEE 608,320 578,100
Non-current liabilities FRBaE

Borrowings =4 30 11,344 —

Lease liabilities HEA®E 29 1,275 3,959

Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 20 617 —

13,236 3,959

NET ASSETS EEFE 595,084 574,141
Capital and reserves EXRHE

Share capital A& A 31 55,100 55,100

Reserves B 450,245 461,715

Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AEMLER

the Company 505,345 516,815

Non-controlling interests JEfE IR MR 89,739 57,326

TOTAL EQUITY RSB 595,084 574,141

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2021:

Mr. Cai Zhuhua
EHRERE

Director

EBEZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

R 20214 3 A 26 BEEE S & RIRERM

Mr. Dong Honghui
BEABLLE

B P BT T

p=113

%

Director

EF

SRAPBWMR2AKID ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 20204 12 A 31 HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R A8AL)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARL
Share-hased Statutory Non-
Share Share payment Other  Revaluation surplus Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
HRfAER
e BRAEE  HXAEE  EBEE  EGEE fEEBEE  REAR Mt FERES aif
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NRETr  ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR
(Note 31) (Note (a))
Crg) (W (y)
At 1 January 2019 01951518 H413 23,983 2,160 (50,425) 1,110 1211 101,156 131,708 21220 158,928
Profit for the year B = = = - - - 66,984 66,984 11,047 78,031
Qther comprehensive LR ENE
income for the year, (T eas)
net of income tax - - - - 169 - - 769 577 1346
Total comprehensive income - ERAENGEE
for the year - - - - 769 - 66,984 67,753 11,624 1931
Issue of ordinary shares RERARBELTER
rlating t1PO (Note (3 B 1068 271% - - - - o e
Transaction costs aftibutable  EfHRAELH
to issue of new shares REA = (13,648) = = = = = (13 648) = (13648)
Derecognifion of obligafion RIEBRDERRE Y
aising fiom a put option Bt e)
(Nete c) - - - m - - - m - mw
Capital contrbuton fom anon- 43 ARRETE
controling shareholder - - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
Change in ownership interests ~ BAFIfAZ LSS
In subsiciares without (Tzmsle)
change of conirol (W)
(Note c) - - (136 - - — o (BRm 1360 -
Transaction with non-controlling ~ EFHERERHRS
interests (Note 44) (i) - - - 2611 - - - 2611 2289 4900
Recognition of equity-setted TREEENRARE
share-based payment EigR e 59)
(Note 39) - - 1,301 - - - - 1,301 - 1301
Trangler to statutory suplus ~ BRZETES - - - - - 12,905 (12.905) = = =
At 31 December 2019 20198128318 55,100 27,130 3461 38,304 1879 25,616 165,035 516,81 57,326 574144
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204F 12 A 31 HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥E A8 AL)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARRARE
Share-hased Statutory Non-
Share Share payment Other  Revaluation surplus Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
HRfraER
Ra  REEE  HRAEE  HBEE  EGEE  fREMEE  REAR Mt FERER ait
AMB1000 RMBU00 RMB100 AMB 1000 AUB1000 RMBU00 RMB100 AMB1000 RUB000 RMB100
NeETr  AREFr ARETr ARETr AREFr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR
(Note 31) (Note (a))
Crgl) (Wi )
At 1 January 2020 R2020%51R18 55,100 237,130 3461 38,304 1679 2,616 165,235 516,815 57,326 574141
(Loss)profit for the year En(ER)/7lE - - - = = = (10929) (10929) 3559 (7.370)
Other comprehensive EREHRERR
expense for the year, (MBAHER)
net of income tax - - - - (321) - - (321) (386) (119)
Total comprehensive EhRE(R)/WiatkE
(expense)fincome for
the year = = = = (327) = (10929  (11.2%6) 3173 (8.083)
Recognition of euity-settled  ERMELENRHAE
share-based payment W)
(Note 39) - - 1,006 - - - - 1,006 - 1,006
Acquisition of subsidaries YEHELA
(Notes 41 and 42) (K41 k42) = = = = = = = = 19575 19575
Change in ownership interests KB R AZRRS
In subsiciaries without (Fug i)
change of conirol (i)
(Note (c) - - - (920) - - - (920) 92 -
Capltal controution fromnon-~~ SFARAE 4
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 8,445 8,445
Transaction with non-contolling ~ EeERERNR S
interests (Note 44) (Hit44) - - - (300) - - - (300) 300 =
Transfer to statutory suplus~~~ ERZERRS - - - - = % (295) = = =
At 31 December 2020 H200F12531 8 55,100 237,130 4467 37,174 1,662 25911 144,011 505,345 89,739 595,084
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 20204 12 A 31 HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R &A1)

Note:

(b)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after tax as
per statutory financial statements determined under the PRC laws and
regulations for the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve reach
50% of their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributing dividends to equity owners of the subsidiaries. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital
of the respective subsidiaries.

On 3 January 2019, 312,471,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.88
per share by way of public offer. On the same date, the shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang Environmental Protection
Technology Limited (“Guangzhou Weigang”), WEIGANG HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED (“Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong)”), Jade
Road Investment Limited (“Jade Road”), Jade Fly Investment Limited
(“Jade Fly”), WeiGang Technology Limited (“WeiGang Technology”)
and Orient Landscape Group Environmental Protection Co., Ltd (“Orient
Landscape”), an independent third party, entered into investment
agreements whereby Orient Landscape agreed, among others, to
subscribe for the registered capital of RMB40,000,000 in Guangzhou
Weigang, for 10% of the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang, at a
consideration of RMB94,444,444. Upon completion of the subscription
on 11 April 2018, an amount representing the proportionate share of
the carrying amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang at the
date of the completion of the subscription was transferred to non-
controlling interests. The difference between the capital contribution
from the non-controlling interests, the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-
attribution of its statutory surplus reserve and retained profits have
been recognised in other reserve.

On the same date, an amount representing the present value
amounting to RMB94,444,444 of the amount that the Group could be
required to pay to Orient Landscape pursuant to the put option over the
10% equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient Landscape,
with a corresponding debit in other reserve, was recognised in
obligation arising from a put option.

Upon the successful listing of the Company on 3 January 2019, the
put option was lapsed and all the previously recognised interest
expenses were reversed through equity without any payment to Orient
Landscape.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has made
several capital injections to Guangzhou Weigang for a total amount
of RMB9,198,900 (2019: RMB136,930,920). Upon the completion
of capital injections, there has been no change in shareholding of
Guangzhou Weigang and the amount representing 10% of the above
capital injections has been transferred to non-controlling interests.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z 20204F 12 A 31 HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
et AREFT AREFr
Operating activities RESER
(Loss)/profit before tax Fian (&) /FH (8,319) 91,122
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Share of results of associates FE & I R AR 953 13
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary B E—MHEARMEE 10 — 6
Depreciation of property, plant M - WERERETE
and equipment 10 7,596 3,559
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 10 2,839 2,051
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 10 3,330 945
Bank interest income RTH B UA 7 (2,972) (1,504)
Finance costs A R AR 8 2,429 1,094
Impairment loss and write-off of B 5 WK IA & B A R U
trade receivables and other HRIEAREHEED
receivables and contract assets, VERIENSEi=P5E 67z
net of reversal (fNFREEE) 10 15,449 767
Net foreign exchange losses/ SNE SR (WS ) R
(gains) 805 (2,107)
Share-based payment expenses AR D BERO T AR 1,006 1,301
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME - BEREEN
property, plant and equipment BB, () 10 3 (3)
Operating cash flows before EELSSRBANKCERS
movements in working capital RE 23,119 97,244
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,702) (3,267)
Increase in trade and note B 5 M GRIE R B E R
receivables 3 (67,632) (1,689)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e  BAIFIEREMER
prepayments and other IR A3 0)
receivables 9,347 (83,375)
Increase in contract assets ABHEELM (641) (97,552)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B o EMNRECRD), /N
payables (52,507) 32,830
Decrease in other payables and H fth JE < R IE R BRI 2
accrued expenses > (8,919) (4,294)
Increase/(decrease) in contract EHBEEMCRd)
liabilities 60,809 (28,706)
Cash used in operations REFMARS (38,126) (38,809)
Income tax paid EFREH (16,915) (8,718)
Net cash used in operating RETHFIARSFEE
activities (55,041) (47,527)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 20204 12 A 31 HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAREE A ERL)
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AREFT AREFr
Investing activities BRETEH
Purchase of and deposits paid for BEYE BELRZEBERE
property, plant and equipment Fize (48,365) (66,365)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE — (12,727)
Addition of right-of-use assets /Jxﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁfx (8,304) =
Investment in associates B ENIRE (966) (590)
Interest received Euﬁlﬂ 2,972 1,504
Proceeds from disposal of items of u“j‘*%% BEREEER
property, plants and equipment FriS k18 339 6
Withdrawal of pledged bank RIME BB AER
deposits 43,265 27,936
Placement of pledged bank deposits 17 A2 KRR ITIF K (33,701) (37,023)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, W B BT /2B 2 & (H1BR B A
net of cash paid BE) 41 18,552 1,080
Net cash outflow on acquisition of BRUEE — KB R R
assets through acquisition of a BEMNRSRLFE
subsidiary 42 (1,500) —
Proceeds from partial disposal of a 5 H & —EHBATIME
subsidiary without losing control A (R KT %‘JT%E) 44 — 4,900
Disposal of a subsidiary, & —HEHE AR (kR
net of cash disposed EHE) 43 — (10)
Net cash used in investing activities R&FEFFAR L FE (27,708) (81,289)
Financing activities AEEE
Capital element of lease rental paid BEfMHEELHARELIH 35 (2,816) (2,024)
Interest element of lease rental paid TANELHFEZHD 35 (261) (270)
Interest paid ETFE 35 (2,078) (824)
Issue costs paid B BT A — (9,277)
Advance to non-controlling B IEPNGIE R
shareholders of a subsidiary A& SR 2 50 (4,523) —
Repayment of borrowings BEER 35 (30,137) (10,450)
Proceeds from new borrowings MEERBRIA 35 59,267 27,048
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary ER AR E LT E R
shares upon IPO, net of other Fr{S 3078 - kR HAb 31T
issuance costs %N — 240,882
Capital injection by non-controlling  FFIERRAY SR T A
shareholders 8,445 2,500
Net cash from financing activities BEEHFESEESTE 27,897 247,585
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRESEEWCRED)
and cash equivalents 3 hnFEE (54,852) 118,769
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERESEEY
beginning of the year 142,206 23,437
Cash and cash equivalents atend E£FXBEERBESEEY &
of the year, represented by bank RITEREERS
balances and cash 87,354 142,206

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BEMI MRt Rz HAR A

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E R RERIFE IR ER G R A 7

FITEERR MR ER D

4 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

GENERAL

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 18 May 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands.
The immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company are WeiGang Technology and
Weigang Green Technology Limited (“Weigang Green”),
respectively, both of which were incorporated in British Virgin
Island (“BVI”"), Weigang Green is wholly owned by Mr. Cai
Zhuhua (“Mr. Cai”), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Group, who is also the chairman and executive director of the
Company. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 3 January 2019.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008 Cayman Islands and the address of
principal place of business of the Company is Unit 3507, 35/F,
AlA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
a “Group”) are principally engaged in hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution provider in China focused on
the research, design, integration and commissioning of solid
waste treatment systems particularly for hazardous waste

incineration and oilfield auxiliary services.

A list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31

December 2020 and their particulars are set out in Note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

— &R
HERRBEEREEBRAA(AA
RI)R2017F5 A 18 AR ERSEE R
AERHASHEFMA L AEREERA
Al e RRRIMEEER QA REKRZERA
AR AEERE REBZEREARA
A([#EEEE])  MEYRRBER A
S(RBHEBRES ) FMKT - #5%
EHEBERELE((REE] AEEHEK
ERBRR)2EHRS  BERENARARE
ERBITES - ARAIRMHDEMNR 2019 F 1
ASBEEAMER S AR A ([HAR
BT ER £ -

N A Al 8 5 3 S M 4k & Cayman
Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
9008 Cayman Island ' MARAT T EL %
Rt A BB AERIE 183 R F
&35 3518 3507 = ©

ARBR—HEREEZEBRAR - ARBIRE
MEBAR(GEEAIARE D EERTEIR
HEBRBEMREREXBBRTER  Bx
REEREYRIE RS (LE 2 BREDR L
BRERG)NTE - &t - KFREHAR @ F
B IR B 4 A RS AR TS o

AATR2020F 12 A3 BT ERHBE R
A)BB R HAFBENHIE40 -

HEMBHREAARE(TARE DIIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material
IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
IFRS16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions”. Other than
the amendment to IFRS 16, the Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the

amended IFRSs are discussed below:

Impacts on early application of Amendment to IFRS 16,

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in
the current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the

following conditions:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

FE RSB PR Bt 75 3 5 2B Rl ) iz 18 /T

%

ARFE - AEEE B KRR 53R
HEEADF B SIEZRS| BB KA TH
RastERIBEGRMILN 2020 F 1 A
1 B sk, 1% 556 H) & 2 B R oR 1 A R B
RETHS RS ERIMERT - ARBAR A BT 3R
xR

(B ERIDE 15 BRNESR
R(ERR & R
85k 1ER]

(BB BREER) EBOER
FEIRZMERT

(BB ImEER)  FIREAERE
F 95 - (BFREE
ERI)ZE 39 5%
(B 5 s
ERNE 757 2185T

o REBERE R AKEEREZ B RE
ERE 165K BT HERIFHEEDR
%] FRKERM B REERDE165E 2 &
FION ARENEEREMR NS HE
AR AR AR R o RBKIER]
(EIRR B 5 s s R ER R T

REEACEBRYBEREENDE 165218
A e EEEESRS NS

AEEORAFREERERZER - ZE
FISI AT RIITHRET A AFAEAR
BAHEHEREREESRR TS BE
Bk - ZATREDEAEBER M E A
THREGREBENERBERSIFNESR
7R
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WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E R RERIFE IR ER G R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to IFRS 16,
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (continued)

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

P& FIC B FR Bt 75 3 5 2B Rl ) 2 A8 /T (40)

RREAEBRMISREERNFE 1658 215

Al FBREAERESRR N EE)

. FE AT AR A E R 2R E
H &202146 A308 s Z A & 1+

;iR
. there is no substantive change to other terms and o THE M H o iR R G B E
conditions of the lease. g o

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 “Leases” if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in

the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has
benefited from 3 months waiver of lease payments on a lease

in an office amounting to approximately RMB202,000.

ERZATERENEANABRARBESRE
EENHENREHMANAKST R - &
HE KBBR8 E 16 SREE R
AREBAMANARSA(HERZEIIFE
SEBOER - BENRNTRAHARIER
AEBEENRARK - HEBEERE T UAH
BEURRERAHRENERE  INZEN
A HMME SRR -

FERZAERT ¥/ 2020 1 A1 HEVRE
FlElEr e KE@B—REHASHERE
e 3@ AHE (K AR 202,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &EBM)
2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2 FERACKERREIS R EER) 18R] (&)

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective B M ERAE KB FTRT R &S T B B B 7%
&R

The following new and amendments to IFRSs, potentially AT Al g A AN E B IS 3R R B RE T 5] &

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been LSRR M IS TR & R E B AR M R

issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early EN o AREEWEIZFRP

adopted by the Group:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

(BRI TSR E LR NE 35E 2 155] BIERS|I A

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°
and IFRS 16 FlREREYE — B[RS

(BB B IS 3RS 2ERIDE 955 ~ (BB &5t 2ER])
£ 395 (B MBHREEANDE 75 - (EERT
BEEADE 457 RCEBR M BHREZADE 165K 2

cHl
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
CEIBR B 5 3 5 22 R )88 10 5% I Associate or Joint Venture*

CEIBR & 528D 28 5% 2 &3] BEHEEHBECEREECECREERFALE"
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current'
CEIRRGEHERIDE 155 2185 HEESBEARBSGERE
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
(IR ERDE 16 55 2185 Use®

ME - BERSE  RERBRALZATERIE?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

CEIRR 5T 2R DS 37 5 218 5] BRMEEH — BITEHMA?

Amendments to IFRS Standards Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020°

(BB B TS 3RS 2R ) 2 (87T (BB BA TS 3RS 2RI ) 2018 6 & 2020 4F 2 G [E 2 ®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! R 2023%F 1 A1 B2 %BIRMFEBRELE
2023. B e

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 20224 1 A1 Bz &FRBeFE R4
2022. B e

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January N 202141 A1 Bz & BIRMFE BE £
2021. W o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 FETE B Bisk 2 1% A 0 5 2 BRRE AR 2K -
determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decision made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

P& FIC B FR Bt 75 3 5 2B Rl ) 2 A8 /T (40)

& TR AR B R 24 R B9 7 BT % AR 45 RT C BBl B B 75
BREER)HE)

ARAREERY  EAZENR] REER]
CEIFR B 75 o o5 22 R DI A 5 SR & 4R
EMBRRENEATE -

REMBBRRZEREERTES
TR

REMBBRIEREE

FEMBHRRDIREBEREHENEES
RGEKBEBRFBREENDIRH - AiRE
FAEMBHREAMS  HX-—HENSER
HeYETREREFELIORE  AEH
ERRRAREK - 1IN GRaMBHRRE
HBEMARSABRAAEZ LHR
ADEBEBC(RBERGDRENEREKE -

HEMBHRRERELRAELERE - I
MTXEABRAFAANERERAREZR
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in

use in IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
(i) has power over the investee;

(i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

(iii)  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative

to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
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. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and o HAhERLHEFTELMER
. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate o NEEELRER - RPAREEB A

that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and

the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under “Financial
Instruments” (“IFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain

purchase gain.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 “Income Taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

respectively;

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3 HEUBHERZGEREERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2

“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed

directly of the previously held equity interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the

unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating

units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3

AN BRRZGREERTES
TR &)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESHBEE)
Investments in subsidiaries REE A apRE

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the statements of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

KB A B YR E R AR AR AT 2 2351
EEERAR B BARRRATER

Investments in associates REEDPENKE

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant BEPERAEEHEAEEATE NN
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in B BATENEREFRREFUBE X
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee BEBRRKZEN  BEEHZERRLE

but is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purpose is prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes result in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3 HEUBHERZGEREERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal

of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group

uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: lIdentify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfied a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Control of the goods or services may be transferred over
time or at a point of time. Control of the goods or services is

transferred over time if:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;

or

. The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If control of the services transfer over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress toward complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:
i) provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services,

i) provision of pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions

services,

iii) provision of technical upgrading services,

REMBRERZHEREERTES
sTEUR ()

FTEEFHEERE)
WA TR ()

729 A 3 AR 7% O 422 1) P AE — BREF R A S K
—RE R - MR TIIER - RIEMAER
TSR I — B RN

s EFHEASRBERAONFRESRK
HEASBEREOMRHENNE -

s AEBNBATRAEERRRTE
PRARNEEBLORERINEE 5

s AKBEMENTRTERIERHBA
SESELANEE  BASERY
25 B ERM B R S N 5
B R & B I THIRER o

WARTS AV B — RS REABE - A

DRENBM2RBRBHNEE TR EEE

R BRI WARE P RS B an 3R

745 EO 122 B M RO B B HEERR

WAREFAOTRIANEENE - &%
B 70 HL (R 7 5 85 R 7 m o PR A5 ) 422 A
BRBA - REBERERIATEZHRRNK
A

i) REHEREVRERERRIER
7%

i) REEREMEANMBEIEFRRT
ESi

i) BRI ARART -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT £3§

125



126

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

iv)  provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment

services,

V) provision of maintenance services, and

vi)  provision of oilfield auxiliary services.

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions services,
ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions services and iii)

technical upgrading services
Recognition

Provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services and pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions
services represent the services on design, integration and
commissioning of solid waste treatment systems which
comprise a range of equipment and other components, on a
made-to-order basis pursuant to the technical specification
and requirement of the customers. Provision of technical
upgrading services represent the upgrading services provided
for existing hazardous waste incineration systems and certain
cement production facilities. Since the Group’s performance
creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs, revenue from these services therefore
are recognised over time using input methods, i.e. based
on the stage of completion of the contract, and the stage
of completion of the contract is measured based on the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to

date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

For warranty embedded to the contracts, the customer does
not have the option to purchase a warranty separately, the
Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
unless the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the contracting work complies

with the agreed-upon specifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions services,
ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions services and iii)

technical upgrading services (continued)
Contract assets/liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade and
note receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the progress payment exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the input method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.
Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services
represent the service provided for an oil service provider
which has the relevant operating licence, to lease and
provide operation and maintenance services for, an oil sludge
treatment facility designed and commissioned by the Group
in Karamay, Xinjiang, by charging a leasing and operation fee

based on the actual treatment volume of oil sludge.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Provision of maintenance services

The Group provides maintenance services, including repair
and maintenance services to customers. Income is recognised
over the contract period when the relevant services are
provided by the Group and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance.

Provision of oilfield auxiliary services

The Group provides oilfield auxiliary services, including the
provision of petroleum transportation, meter maintenance,
oil pipe repair and water treatment. Revenue from providing
services is recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered by the Group and the customer
simultaneously receives and uses the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
make strategic decisions.

Lease
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to lease of office and machineries that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
— any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.
The lease payments include:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related-rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts

for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

— the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

—  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following

conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 if the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in

which the event occurs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial

disposal of the Group’s interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.
Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the year in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit

or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the year in which they become receivable. Such grants

are presented under “other income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling

them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-

based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3 HEUBHERZGEREERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including facility held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes other than properties
under construction as described below are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3

HRENBRRZHEREERTIES
TR )

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESHBEE)
Intangible assets BREE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective

basis.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, intangible

assets and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating

units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model

whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and

collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 “Business

Combinations” applies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset

is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

GBEVRBERIGREERTES
TR )

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESHBEE)
Financial instruments (continued) THITAE)
Financial assets (continued) THEEF)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the

equity investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gains and

losses” line item in profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (including trade and note receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
a subsidiary, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) and
contract assets which are subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are conducted based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BEVBRBERIGREERTES
TR (E)

ETEEFHEERE)
EMTRGE)
EHEEE)
EREENREE)

EEFENBREESERERNABETAR
PEEDRAEEENMEROEESE
MEHMEEEE - AR 12@ARBEER
EBR(12EABRREEER]D EERN &K
SRHMKR12 MARTREENENER
BN HLBREFTERRAGESSE -
HAFEEREAREELEEERLR
B UBMEBARERER  BREER
AR SR E B HE AT R R KA S TR
B RHE R SR -

AEBEBEHESRBKBARANEERE
RBEFERRREEESE -

RAAEREMTAME @ AREFENER
BESM2EARBEERSE  BE5871
MERAREERBRBEZEN  AAKE
BREECTEPNRBEEEE - FEEE
EREREEFEPRRAEEBEREIDERK
AR ATE MR R K AT RE1E = & R
EI-0 -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B IR Bl IZR EH A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment

grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence of that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or

has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and note receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not reclassified to

profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accrued expenses, lease liabilities and borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3 HEUBBRZGREERTIES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT TR (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESHBEE)

Financial instruments (continued) THITAE)

Derecognition of financial liabilities IR HBE

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only AEBRAEENAEEERKE BT« HE
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or FERHRRIEERSRHAR - RIEFER
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of MeMmBERAERSN RENEHEZHE
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid MZEREREEPER -

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties Ly
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@ FEMATHEAHROFTEUTE
related to the Group if that person: S BV BRZRES [ A5 Ra s
(i) has control or joint control of the Group; (i) EIAER B A 50 il e 5 2 R4
R

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBBERTE X

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) RAEEXAEEZGAFTAE
the Group or the Group’s parent. ZEBAE o

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) f(H—THEBFEA TG - BNAEK
conditions applies: SEEEE

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEROAXAEEAR—5EN
same group (which means that each parent, KERABI(ANE&AF - B
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AEIRFARMBARKILE S
others); Rau)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —HERAS—HERBNEE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a rEXIEELEE RS —MH
member of a group of which the other entity is a ERMBESEKE TS
member); ENEEDRE)

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEAERBHRA—F=A0E
party; B

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy, —HEBA—RE=-THEE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; Tt ME—HEEBARZE=

Dal) e

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZERAAEENBEAEESF
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an BB ERNESEMNMER
entity related to the Group; RIREFETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) The entity, or any members of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers for

hazardous waste incineration solution services

The Group recognised contract revenue using the input
method and contract costs are recognised on actual incurred
basis. The input method is measured by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the

estimated contract costs.

The estimated contract revenue is determined in accordance

with the terms set out in the relevant contract.

The estimated total contract costs are based on contracted
amount of suppliers’ contracts, and in respect of amounts
not contracted for, management’s estimates for the amounts
to be incurred taking into consideration historical trends for
the amounts incurred and adjusted for any price fluctuation
during the year, where applicable. Significant assumptions
are required in estimating the total contract costs which affect
the contract revenue recognised to date based on the input

method.

Management review the contract with customers for
foreseeable losses whenever there is an indication that
the estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
contract costs. The actual outcome in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the

amounts recorded to date.
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ZTERERIESE TR IRRMELENE
RIRAE B R A AR L FIRTE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The management estimates the amount of loss allowance for
ECL on trade receivables that are measured at amortised cost
and contract assets. The Group uses a lifetime ECL model and
estimates the expected loss rate for the trade receivables and
the contract assets based on the assessment of probability
of default and loss given default with reference to historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. The assessment
of the credit risk of the trade receivables and contract assets
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty as details
in Notes 22, 24 and 34. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss may

arise, accordingly.

As at 31 December 2020, the total carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB451,683,000 (2019: RMB393,618,000), net
of allowance for impairment of approximately RMB17,247,000
(2019: RMB7,838,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-
generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or
upward revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB18,277,000 (2019: Nil). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
commenced the business in oilfield auxiliary services along
with the acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 41). It is
considered as a new operating and reportable segment. The
Group is organised into two business units based on the
internal structure and management strategy, which is also
the basis of information reported to the Group’s CODM (i.e.
the executive directors of the Company) for the purpose of

making strategic decisions.

The two reportable and operating segments are set out as

follows:

(a) solid waste treatment segment is engaged in the
provision of comprehensive solid waste incineration
turnkey solutions focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste systems

by the Group to external customers in the PRC; and

(b) oilfield auxiliary services segment is engaged in
petroleum transportation, meter maintenance, oil pipe

repair and water treatment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decision about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment result,
which is a measure of adjusted (loss)/profit before tax. The
adjusted (loss)/profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax except that bank interest
income, net foreign exchange gains/(losses), certain finance
costs, and income tax credit/(expenses) are excluded from

such measurement.

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o All assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than certain right-of-uses assets, certain cash and cash
equivalents and certain other receivables as these

assets are managed on a group basis.
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B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION(continued)

o All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other

than certain lease liabilities, certain other payables

and tax payables as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Prior year’s segment information has been represented to

5 EEIHER#E

e KRERAHNEEEFEEMNETHE

(R

ETHMENFKERENKE

Sh FREREHNEEEATZ2HmNED ©

BEFENDBEHNCDED - AFEARF

conform with the current year’s presentation. EWEIF -
Segment revenue and results DEUMA R EE
The group’s revenue and result by operating and reportable REEREERTE2HRDIE DB AR
segments are presented below: HEE25W0
Solid waste Oilfield auxiliary
treatment services Total
EREYEE HEARRE @st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019F 2020 F 2019F 2020 F 2019F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL |AREFT |ARETFLT |AREFT |AREFT | AREFT
Revenue (Note 6) WA (HiiZ6) 488,304 537,509 48,507 — 536,811 537,509
Segment (loss)/profit A (ER) /FE (2,047) 96,741 2,314 267 96,741
Bank interest income HRITFIBHA 2,972 1,504
Unallocated corporate AOMEEEMBA -
other income, other Hit iz R E1E
gains and losses (943) 2,677
Unallocated corporate ROMEERT
expenses (10,590) (9,855)
Finance costs BERA (25) 55
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (B18),/FH (8,319) 91,122
Income tax credit/ FiEkiEe/ (Ax%)
(expenses) 949 (13,091)
(Loss)/profit for the year  ER(E5E) /FIH
(7,370) 78,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
Bk MR ~

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 =EEIPERE)

Segment assets and liabilities PWEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT ABAREBIZA 2R K EEDILE DA
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. BENMBEDT -
Solid waste Oilfield auxiliary
treatment services Total
BEENEE S E AR a3

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20195 2020 F 20195 2020 F 20195

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL |AREFT |AREFT |ARETFT |AREFT |ARETFT
Segment assets PREE 787,561 752,679 129,240 — 916,801 752,679
Interests in associates R E S EMER 594 581 — — 594 581
Reconciliation: 4R
Corporate and other PERHMRDLAE
unallocated assets 21,328 48,767
Total assets EEHE 938,723 802,027
Segment liabilities SHaE (282,305) | (196,716) |  (58,139) | (340,444) | (196,716)
Reconciliation: 4R
Corporate and other PEREMAAEAR
unallocated liabilities (3,195) (31,170)
Total liabilities aENE (343,639) | (227,886)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 BEINERE
(continued)
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss or A BERR I BEETENESE

segment assets:

Solid waste Oilfield auxiliary
treatment services Corporate Total
ERENEE plitlE Ee % &3t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 019F 2020F 20196 2020 2019% 2020F 2019F
Other information EfEH RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000 | AMB000 | RMB’000 | RMB000

ABBTL |N\EETT |AREFA |A\RKTT |ARBTT A\EETT |AREFI |\KETT

Addition to non-current assets REFRDEE

— Property, plant and equipment  — %1% - BERRE 49,143 | 61,096 4,806 = - — | 53,949 | 61,09
— Intangible assets —BYEE - 27 - - - — - 27
— Right-of-use assets — FRESE 8,304 2,403 - — - — 8,304 2403
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR

— Property, plant and equipment  — %1% - BE LR - — | 1452 = - — | 1452 =
— Intangible assets — BVEE 9,612 = - = - = 9,612 =
— Goodwill —BE - = 18,277 = - — 18,277 —

Depreciation and amortisation nERER

— Property, plant and equipment  — 1% - BiE RikfE 4,590 3,503 3,006 - - 56 7,596 3,559
— Right-of-use assets — FREEE 2,310 1527 - = 529 524 2,839 2,051
— Intangible assets — BVEE 3,330 945 - = - = 3,330 945

Allowance for impairment of trade 2 FEAFERELRES

and note receivables HERE 1,960 650 1,736 = - = 3,696 650
Allowance for impairment of ANEENERE

contract assets 5,713 17 - — - — 5,713 17
Write-off of trade receivables HHE S ERFE 6,540 = - = - = 6,540 =
Reversal of impairment of EfEKHERERR

other receivables - — (500) — - — (500) —
Geographical information i#h =& R
The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially NREBFEFEREIBRNEIE - KEFLT
all of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial 2HAERBEE(TESEr T AU NIEIE
instruments and deferred tax assets, are located in the PRC, MIBEE)HMNNRBE - BAREFHUA R
and revenue of the Group is generated from customers TBRARBEHNEE

located in the PRC.
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Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi) F

(KAARM BEAL)
6 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue from major services FERBEA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its TREINAEERBEEZZRBHKRAZ
major services, which is recognised over time within the scope DT BB B 7% s RIS 1557
of IFRS15: &5 [E] A B IR T RERR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
Hazardous waste incineration TERR BRI G R B AR IR T 2R
solutions 468,528 452,990
Oilfield auxiliary services i E i AR 75 48,507 —
Pyrolysis solid waste treatment EANMEBENERERRTR
solutions 577 22,773
Qil sludge thermal desorption SRR B B 22 AR 75
treatment services — 45,436
Maintenance services HEERR TS 16,177 12,191
Technical upgrading services BT AR 3,022 4,119
536,811 537,509
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.

WA D #)
REFENIEERTEINEEINZE
%

TR 5 R R 20204F Kk 20194F 12 A 31 H
PEERBIT(EIBO KRBT NBHEL
R 5 ER4REE -

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARHTFT
Provision of hazardous waste REEREYMRGER B RAT R
incineration solutions 576,293 432,008
Provision of pyrolysis solid waste REEANREBEMRESRR
treatment solutions R 5,561 1,699
Provision of technical upgrading R AR AR
services 2,640 5,672
Provision of maintenance services R MRS 4,475 2,646
Total i 588,969 442,025

Based on the information available to the Group at the end
of reporting period, the directors of the Company expect
the transaction price allocated to the above unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) contracts as of 31 December 2019 and
2020 will be recognised as revenue during the years ended/
ending 31 December 2020 to 31 December 2021 in respect of
provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions, provision
of pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions, technical

upgrading services and provision of maintenance services.

BERNEBNREARESHER - AA
Al E E BT R 20194F KX 20204 12 A 31
AREEZE L KRBT (B RETINE
AR ZEEK DRI EZE2020F 12 A
31 E2021512A31H L FE 12 #
ERENRERERATR  REEAH
fRE BB R MR B AR T R - BN AR RS
RIR MRS R BB -
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Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)

6 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE (continued) 6 WADHF@
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance REFANIEEZEH TEBIEEINRZE
obligations for contracts with customers (continued) (&)
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph A& BRI A B2 RN A 4 E R
121 of IFRS 15 to its contracts for the provision of oilfield BREF TSRS ZER ) 1557 55 121 BR i /]
auxiliary services such that the above information does TEERE A ElRBERTTIEER
not include information about revenue that the Group will AAEBRETIREHAFEERES DR
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance FEHHRA—FIUAT)ETHR TEAOEME
obligations under the contracts for the provision of oilfield BrEREESHRARNELR -

auxiliary services that had an original expected duration of

one year or less.

Major customers FEEF
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REREEEEAEBEBRW AP 10% AL
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as HEFWALT :
follows:
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AR TFT
Customer A BEFA 74,635 N/A* 38 A *
Customer B ®FB 67,670 N/A* T3 A~
Customer C BFC N/A* R3E A * 138,391
Customer D ®FED N/A* R3E A * 68,977
* Revenue did not account for 10% or more of the Group’s * A 7 55 B P48 18 3 5 HA 48 W A B9 B B S
revenue during the respective reporting period. B 10% °
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
7 OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7 HMEWA -  BWmREE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR T
Bank interest income H|ITHF B WA 2,972 1,504
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (H7aE) 2,256 8,106
Value-added tax refund HERRT 2,449 —
Sundry income FTEWA 413 148
Other income E bl A 8,090 9,758
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains  SME(EE) Wz F 5 (805) 2,107
Covid-19-related rent concessions TEREEBES RS 202 =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary e —RHNE AR ELNEIE
(Note 43) (Hiat 43) — (6)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERREELED
plant and equipment, net (B8), M= 58 (3) 3
Other gains and losses H iz R E1E (606) 2,104
7,484 11,862

Note:

Government grants represented immediate financial support granted

by the local governments. There were no specific conditions attached

to the grants and the amounts were recognised in profit or loss upon

the receipt of relevant cash.

BT B) A B R 4a T 8O BN B 15 32 3% W BT
Mi# A E R - B2 ENRIERRESRERET

27
e ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR¥EREN)
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 MEMRK
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARKTFT
Interest on borrowings ERrllSS 2,168 824
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 261 270
2,429 1,094
9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9 FMBHUER) BX
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARKTFT
The income tax (credit)/expense IS (Ee) HZeE:
comprises:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"): PRI EAST(TREMEH])
— Current tax — BNHEAFH IR 2,320 20,389
— Under provision in prior years — BEFEREETR 195 —
2,515 20,389
Deferred tax (Note 20) EERLIA (K7t 20) (3,464) (7,298)
(949) 13,001

The Company and its subsidiaries, WeiGang Environment

Limited, Jade Far Investment Limited and Definite Thrive

Limited, were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and BVI

respectively. All these entities did not have assessable profits

in the Cayman Islands, BVI or other jurisdictions in both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised

in the consolidated financial statements in both years as the

Group does not have income which arose in, or derived from

Hong Kong.

AREREMBAR(EBRREER AT -
NEREARARMBEEARAT) DR
RENENRBHEBRESEMMAL - 1
ZMEFE  PAZSERERSES -
AEERAAREREMAZEERSER
SR o

HRAEELESEFTENRA - FER
ZMEFE  WARREGREMBREDER
FENGHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”)
effective on 1 January 2008, Guangzhou Weigang obtained a
“High and New Technology Enterprise” (the “HNTE”) in 2016
which Guangzhou Weigang was entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021 and eligible for renewal
every three years. Xinjiang Tiansheng Xinhong Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Xinjiang Tiansheng”) and
Karamay Shuangxin Company Limited” were entitled to a
tax concession of Western Development at a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2020.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries of the
Company was 25% (2019: 25%) during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Income tax (credit)/expense can be reconciled to the (loss)/
profit before tax as stated in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FrEBi(E%), X

BAE2008F 1 A1 B £ R EFRER
ENIEMGRIE]D - BEMN#EEH 2016
FERAT B BIEMEE (ST E
¥]) BENBABE2019FEFT2021FER
15%MEBEBE WA B=FEH - &
REFEREREERAR(HEXRE])
kRIS EEBR AR ZH AR
FRURER - R 2020 FIR D EFTSHEERR
K 15% FL

R H £22020F 1283180 It F - &
AR EMPBEMBEARMNEAR KA
25%(20194F : 25%) °

iR (Ee) MXEGaEaREMD
H =R ATE B AT (1) FEE R0
T :

2020 2019
2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARKTFT

(Loss)/profit before tax Fian (&) /7 H (8,319) 91,122
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 1R AFTEHIE R 25%

25% (2019: 25%) (2019 %F : 25%) B HIBIE (2,080) 22,781
Tax effect due to preferential tax rate RAERHEMEENHEFE (866) (8,971)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT IR R L T F5 2 &

for tax purposes 1,911 1,806
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBARBIMA DT B8

tax purpose (825) (69)
Tax effect of share of results of an EIRBE P ENEENNB TR

associate 238 8
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised  KRIERZFHEBENHRGTE 3,821 1,022
Tax effect of super-deduction IMFHOBR I 2 T B S e 2

on research and development

expenses (3,343) (3,481)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 195 —
Income tax (credit)/expense Frig®i (Ee) FHx (949) 13,091

#

The English name is for identification only.

! R ATEEHRHT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
10 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10 BiAT(EEE) FE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBFor
(Loss)/profit before tax has been Al (&18) FIBE MR,/
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (GTA)ToIEE :
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRAKN(BREESMHE)

emoluments)

Directors’ remuneration EEHMN 3,534 3,272

Other staff: EMET :

— Salaries and other benefits — FeHEMER 47,100 32,147

— Bonus — fE4T 4,941 3,500

— Contributions to retirement — RIKERFT IR

benefits scheme 5,358 6,340

— Share-based payment expenses — AR AEROZ AR 776 1,071
Total staff costs B8 TR A 61,709 46,330
Auditor’s remuneration G 1,660 1,746
Research and development costs MERAR(GTAEMFAS)

(included in other expenses)* 21,890 21,058
Loss on disposal of subsidiary e —HWNE AR EENEIE — 6
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - B REEHITE

equipment 7,596 3,559
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,839 2,051
Amortisation of intangible assets fm A 3,330 945
Allowance for impairment of trade and & 5 &Yk 1E K fE W Z R E

note receivables BiE 3,696 650
Write-off of trade receivables HiEH 8 5 FE IR 6,540 =
Allowance for impairment of contract & #1& E R (E R

assets 5,713 117
Reversal of impairment of other A e U R IE R B )

receivables (500) —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BEMRBEELED

plant and equipment B8, () 3 (3)

Amount included staff costs of approximately RMB7,511,000
(2019: RMB8,770,000), and materials and other related costs of
approximately RMB14,379,000 (2019: RMB12,288,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

HZAERERZE 2020612 A31 BIEFER
BIKALNAREE7,511,0007T (2019 F :
ARH8,770,000 78 ) LA R AR R H ih A8 BAAK
AHANREE 14,379,000 7T (2019 F : AR
12,288,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &EBM)
11 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11 EE  BeTHAEREEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
ESRESTRAR

RiE ETRA - BB QG EH 5 383(1)
) RN IERAR(HEEZESF
HERBROFE 2B ENFRNEER RS

Directors and chief executive

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed, pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (a) ~ (b)
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits TERABFHMOT :
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F 12 531 HILFE

Salaries Retirement
and other Share-based benefits
allowances  Discretionary payment scheme
in kind bonuses expenses  contributions
i DRBRER RIKER
R BT EGEE BELE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFR AREFR AREFR AREFR AREFR
Executive directors HES
Mr. Cai (Note (i) BEE (i) 317 421 80 - 30 848
Mr. Dong Honghui EiELE AR 301 70 115 29 816
Mr. Deng Zhaoshan BRERE 21 389 70 115 30 815
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Ren Jingfeng (Note (i) ERBREMWR(I) PAR| - - - - 211
Mr. Yang Zhigiang (Note (i)~ BE®RSEE(ME (i) 21 - - - - 211
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Yang Zhifeng BEEEE 211 - - - - 211
Mr. Feng Tao BEEE 21 - - - - 21
Mr. Jiang Guoliang BEREE AR - - - - 21
1,794 1,201 220 230 89 3,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
11 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11 EE ESTHRAEREEME @)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors and chief executive (continued) BEERREITHRAEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2019F 12531 HILEE
Salaries Retirement
and other Share-based benefits
allowances  Discretionary payment scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
s AR R B ER RIER
we  HEthEWEE BB AXHAX HEES At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFIT  ARETZT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Cai B 317 325 26 — 68 736
Mr. Dong Honghui BB 211 325 20 115 68 739
Mr. Deng Zhaoshan HhELA 211 328 20 115 68 742
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Ren Jingfeng (=% il 211 — — — = 211
Mr. Yang Zhigiang ooty 211 — — — = 211
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Yang Zhifeng (Note (iii) ~ BEEELE (A2 (i) 211 = = = = 211
Mr. Feng Tao (Note (iii)) BB (Wt (i) 211 = = = = 211
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (Note (iii)  BBIR &4 (M (i) 211 — — — — 211
1,794 978 66 230 204 3,272
Note: Hiat -
(i) Mr. Cai is also the chief executive of the Company. (i) BEETARARZERITERAS °

(i) Resigned as non-executive directors of the Company on 11

March 2021.

(iii)  Appointed as an independent non-executive director and

member of the audit committee of the Company on 3 January

2019.

(if)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
11 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors and chief executive (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management affairs of

the Group.

The discretionary bonuses payments are determined with
reference to the operating results and individual performance
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Details of share-based payment transaction are set out in
Note 39.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2019: three) directors, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2019: two) individuals for

the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

11

oo}

= ITHRAEREEME &)

Zn

ESRESTRARE)

EHEHTEEMES I RARERAREE R
EBRERBMIE -

BB IEAL T2 EH 2 2020 F KX 2019 F 12
AS1BIEFEMEEHEERBEARBEME

5 o
AR D RER AR B R BEH N E
39 -
==}

HE2020512A31BLFE A% H
hAEZERFTMALBEIE=R2019F : =
B)VEE  HEZHMEER EXHE - #E
2020 N 2019F 12 A31HIEFE H
RN (20194F « MB) ATHIBHE T -

2020 2019

2020 2019 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFT ARHTFT

Salaries and other benefits in kind TERHMEYEAF 1,268 1,297

Discretionary bonuses BIBIELL 106 73
Retirement benefits scheme RN R B 5K

contributions 32 45

Share-based payment expenses LARR ) RERO T AR 100 61

1,506 1,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
11 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Employees (continued)

The number of the five highest paid employee who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T

A

11

BEE  BSTHRAEREEME @)

BE(E)

heammTNEEPIIIFARAESEFH
N FATEHENABLT

2020 2019

2020 § 20194
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEHE EEHA

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals including directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Each of the directors of the
Company did not waive or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

R & E 20204 & 20194F 12 A31 8 IFF
B AEEHERLEERTHALT (BRI
RRABESR)ZANEMME - fERMBARSE
i MBERr RE S ERREME - KNE
E 20204 201941231 B EFE -
RAREEFTHERNESRERNEETME
@H o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SR(EE) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per KRNBEA NEE TR EAR N EE(ESE)
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on S BT E T ER T 80E -
the following data:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR T
(Loss)/earnings (E58) B
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of RAUGTEEREARE S (FEE)
calculating basic and diluted (loss)/ /&R (EE),&F
earnings per share (10,929) 66,984
Number of shares R&oOHA
Number of shares for the purpose of FARFHEEREN(EE), B
calculating basic (loss)/earnings EolEvE 4=
per share 1,331,622,830 1,331,622,830
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BB EEEEERNTE
shares:
Share options BE P e 20,318,327 31,830,822
Number of shares for the purpose of AR EFREE (E18) BH)
calculating diluted (loss)/earnings Eoliigvp-4=!
per share 1,351,941,157 1,363,453,652
The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share during R Et & B £ 20204 k2019412 A31 H
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 has adjusted to IFFEMNSRES(BER), B BF
reflect the effect of the exercise of all dilutive share options. B DA S B P S B U O RE AR i
TENZE -
13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company B ZE 20205 % 20196 12 A1 BIEFE -
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has RAARWERNKEREMEKE - BB
any dividend been proposed since 31 December 2020. 20204 12 A 31 B AR IR 22 23 IR -H(E ]

BB e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi) ;
(AARBEREN)
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - WERRE
Oil sludge ~ Pyrolysis Plant Land
Leasehold treatment treatment Office Motor and and  Construction
improvements facilities facility  equipment vehicles  machinery buildings in progress Total
a538

BRRE MRAERE  AERE  BOMR 8 HRRRE  iHEET  fRIE it
RUBOD)  RMBOOO  AWBODD  RMBOD)  AMBOOO  AWBOWD  RMBODO  AMBOOO  AWBOW
ARETE  ARRTT ABRTL ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETE

(Note) (Note) (Note)
() ) W)

COST A
At 1 January 2019 B019%1 818 1276 20,859 - 2315 1456 - - - 25,966
Additions e 974 - - 689 357 - - 59,076 61,09
Disposals it - - - (10) (30) = = = (40)
Transfer from construction in REERTRNES

progress - 6,468 - - - - - (6,468) -
At 31 December 2019 and RO19F127318R

1 January 2020 N0E151H 2,250 21321 - 3,054 1783 - - 52,608 87,022
Additions HE 168 82 - 203 3,559 314 - 49,633 53949
Disposals e = (388) = = (343) = = = (731)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries N

(Note 41) (W41) - - - % 8402 1,38 389 - um
Transfer to inventories gAEhE - - - - = = = (9.397) (9.397)
Transfer from construction in RekRTRmER

progress - - 5,941 - - - - (5941) -
At 31 December 2020 RONE12A318 2,408 21,021 5,941 4,166 13401 1,700 3829 86,903 145,369
ACCUNULATED DEPRECIATION - B31#°%
A1 January 2019 H0I91 318 ) 656 - 1066 wm - - -
Provided for the year Enkfe 29 247 - 903 158 - - - 3559
Eiiminated on disposal RHERHE = = = 8) (2) = = = (37)
At 31 December 2019 and 019812 331BR

1 January 2020 NNE1A1AH 570 2,903 - 1963 51 - - - 5,957
Provided for the year Epri 626 2,62 384 44 2816 13 228 - 7,59
Eliminated on disposal NHERHE = (63) = = (326) = = = (389)
At 31 December 2020 R 128318 1.196 5465 kY 2007 3071 113 o - 1
CARRYING VALUES EER
At 31 December 2020 RONE12A318 1212 21,556 5,557 1459 10,330 1,587 3,601 86,903 132,205
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12A318 1,680 24,424 - 1,091 1,262 - - 52,608 81,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14.

Note: Amount represented the costs incurred for the construction
of a thermal desorption of oil sludge treatment facilities and a
pyrolysis treatment facility. The oil sludge treatment facilities are
being used to provide oil sludge thermal desorption treatment
service to customer, while the respective operating income is
charged according to the tons of oil sludge being processed.
The pyrolysis treatment facility is being used to provide
pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions to customers, while
the respective operating income is charged according to the
quantity of service provided.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, after taking into account their
estimated residual value, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following useful lives:

Land and buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Oil sludge treatment facilities 10 years
Pyrolysis treatment facility 10 years
Office equipment 3 years

Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

ME - BERRE#E)

Hiet - B RAEERIE R R B M R I R R
HURBRIE R BT MUK o BB IR ARG
AR mE PR AR BRI MR IR RS - M4
2 4 S WA T AR 928 P B2 322 ) R JE B SR
EANMBEEREANATPREEANRE
EREMRIERATER - MARKERATY
RIB TR A RIS H BB URER ©

Lty BEERHFEEREB (ERIRER
SMEZ BB EMGARBREERATIIER

FRIZEAFENE

+ i RAEF 20F
HEXE 5%
S B BRI AR b 104
EANMEIRRE 104
WRERE 3%
Bl 104F
k] 3-54F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR¥EREN)
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BREEE
Concession
right Patents Total
NErRERE =] a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®For AR®FT AR®FT
COST 2%
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1H — 17,153 17,153
Additions NE — 27 27
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 831 A K&

1 January 2020 202041 A1H — 17,180 17,180
Acquisition of assets through % B3 — T B D 51U EE

acquisition of a subsidiary BENFE42)

(Note 42) 9,612 — 9,612
At 31 December 2020 R 2020 12 A 31 H 9,612 17,180 26,792
ACCUMULATED Rt #e

AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2019 MR2019%F1 A1 H — 470 470
Provided for the year FNEE — 945 945
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H — 1,415 1,415
Provided for the year FNEE 481 2,849 3,330
At 31 December 2020 R 20204 12 A 31 H 481 4,264 4,745
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 7K 2020412 A 31 H 9,131 12,916 22,047
At 31 December 2019 7K 20194F 12 A 31 H — 15,765 15,765
Note: et -

The other intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised HitEB\EEAGARAIMCAFEH - WK T5HME
on a straight-line basis over the following periods: PREECVS 3l

Concession right 20 years FFETAS 204
Patents 5 to 10 years =) 5ZE104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBRER)
16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 REELEER
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARKTFT
Cost of investment in associates NN OE G - DN 1,560 594
Share of post-acquisition losses FE1E Wk BB 18 518 (966) (13)
594 581
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting RNBERRAEFEBHRECENFBHRT
period are as follows: x:
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting interest
Place and date of held by the Group at
Name of associate Principal activities establishment and operation 31 December
rEBBEMERERR
RREHE
BEtELRE TEED R EREER I A S W12A31H
2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194
Jiangxi Ruicheng Environmental  Provision of project The PRC, - 15%
Technology Co., Ltd.* management service for 11 September 2019

(“Jiangxi Ruicheng”) (Note (i) solid and hazardous waste
ISR REREREEAA FEBKEZEMRMEBEEEE B 2019F9A11H

(DT ) (A2 () R
Guangzhou Weigang Hongda Provision of project The PRC, 37% 37%
Environmental Company Ltd.* management service for 21 May 2019

(“Weigang Hongda") (Note (ii)) solid and hazardous waste

BM @B ERRER A REBKAEENRMER R - 2019F5A 218
(TR R (M2 (i) BB IRH
The above associates are accounted for using equity method LBt A EFAESEESRASMBHRE
in the consolidated financial statements. N
o The English names are for identification purpose only. * EXETHEREZR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I 75 8 & Y &

Fal=g:

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note:

()

(if)

The Group was able to exercise significant influence over
Jiangxi Ruicheng since it had appointed 1 out of 5 directors
of that company under the Articles of Association of Jiangxi
Ruicheng. Jiangxi Ruicheng was deregistered on 25 August
2020.

On 21 May 2019, Guangzhou Weigang made a capital injection
which represents 60% shareholding of Guangzhou Weigang.
On 8 October 2019, the Group and the shareholder of Weigang
Hongda entered into a share transfer agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group and the
shareholder of Weigang Hongda agreed to dispose of 19% and
13% equity interests of Weigang Hongda to an independent
third party at consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion of
the disposal, the Group’s shareholding of Weigang Hongda has
been changed from 54% to 37%, accordingly, Weigang Hongda
became an associate of the Group since then (Note 43).

(if)

16 MEELENERS2)

HRAEEBRRBI AR AEMERMA
RZARSZREEFRE1E - MAEERE
IR M EIEEATEN  IRRMNER
20204 8 A 25 AT IHFAE ©

M2019F5A21H » BM#@EBELITE -
15 B M # B 60% A% # - 2019410 A 8
B AEEREBMENRRE—ZBLE
=R ERRE B NEERH#
BAENRRABR - BB LE=ZF UL
BARKEITH &S 8B 5LE19% R 13% &
RiEm - REEFETHE - AEEREMN
W R R 54% & B37% °
U EBGEB R AR KRB B
(HtsE43) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16 MEELENERS2)

W IFE RN E R B L B ERFTER -

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material.
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARMFr
The Group’s share of loss AEBEGEE (953) (13)
The Group’s share of other AEBBEGEMEEKE
comprehensive income — —
The Group’s share of total REBEEEE AR
comprehensive income (953) (13)
Aggregate earning of the Group’s AEBPBECENERNERET
interest in the associates 594 581
17 GOODWILL 17 BHE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
At 1 January m1A1H — —
Arising on acquisition of the WS T BB A Rl EE A R P
subsidiaries 18,277 —
At 31 December ®12A31H 18,277 —
The goodwill arising from acquisition of the subsidiaries has HZE2020F 12 A31HIEFE - AFEE
been recognised by the Group during the year ended 31 WRIE B ERE AT U B AT s B & E & T
December 2020, based on valuation by an independent valuer W B EN AL BEETHHERRLE
on the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and MBARELEMEE - SFBRMENE
liabilities acquired. The details are disclosed in Note 41. 5E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAARM BEAL)
17 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill has been
allocated to the CGU representing the Xinjiang Tiansheng and
its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “Xinjiang Tiansheng
Group”).

The recoverable amount of Xinjiang Tiansheng Group has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and discount rate of 19.5%. Xinjiang Tiansheng Group’s
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
a steady 2% growth rate, which is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin to provide basis and explanation of
significant changes in key assumptions, where appropriate,
such estimation is based on the unit’'s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate
have been assessed as at 31 December 2020 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including

potential disruptions of the Group’s oilfield auxiliary services.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, management
of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
goodwill. Management has performed sensitivity analysis and
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill

to exceed its recoverable amount.

17

]
BERERNH

URERARMNE  BECHEERERMNE
REREMBAR(SHEFEREEE])
IR EEEN °

i

MEREEEMAINE S EDREGERE
Bt EEE - ZTEERENEREE
NARFHPBBEENRERERR KRR
E195%  FTEAEEEH BB FHAIE
EREHA2%MIBEILRERE - ZIT
REDENBATEIGERER - BT~HEA
HBTENTEORALRE - FHEMEE
ENHMFEBRZERSREA LA
HETEE - RREEEHEERENE - MU
HEERBOEARE B EE LR (L0
WA B DEREMMBRTRIE
LREREHMSERNES - RERER
Al 18R R ALIR R E 0 2020 F 12 A 31
HELfE - EREZBEAFERSNMGEET
WEN  REARNTEREIGHERKEE N
RermiZaRE - BEANEEHARE
AR 765 AT 82 3R A R B o

HE2020F 12 A31 ALLEE @ AEBE
BEETHEYENE EEECETH
RMES TS - EAZERENEME
B2 T eS8 mENEEAERA
HAJ R E 5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18 ERAREE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HE L HEME a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®For AREFIT ARBFIT
COST R
At 1 January 2019 ®2019F1 A1H — 5,958 5,958
Additions NE — 2,403 2,403
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 831 A K

1 January 2020 202041 A1H — 8,361 8,361
Additions NE 8,304 — 8,304
At 31 December 2020 M 2020412 431 H 8,304 8,361 16,665
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 M2019%1H1H — — —
Provided for the year FREHE — 2,051 2,051
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2020 20201 A 1H — 2,051 2,051
Provided for the year FNEE 83 2,756 2,839
At 31 December 2020 R 2020412 431 H 83 4,807 4,890
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 7K 2020412 A 31 H 8,221 3,554 11,775
At 31 December 2019 K 2019F 12 A 31 H — 6,310 6,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
Bk MR ~

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR® REA)
18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 18 EREEE@)
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT ARET T
Expense relating to short-term leases AR HAEHNRL 316 68
Expense relating to leases of EREEBEEERE
low-value assets RS 10 676
Total cash outflow for lease HEReRLBE 3,201 3,038
Rent concessions HERR
During the year ended 31 December 2020, a lessor of an HZE2020F 128318 IFFEE - — it
office provided rent concessions to the Group through rent NEH—ZEEAFE RN =@ A B mAE
reductions of 94% over a 3-month period. 4% A ANEBEIZHBLES o
These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence ZERSBERT TR EEEESE W F
of Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in A(FBRE TR E AR YE 16.46 BIEHI AT
IFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient El&H BAREBEERATEEFETT
not to assess whether the changes constitute lease HEEEHILHEKEEENR - BHEAR
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments due HEARERBRE RO AR 202,0007T
to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant leases HEENREGHHN T ERA LA EHE
of approximately RMB202,000 were recognised as negative B

variable lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
B Rk M h

(Expressed in Renminbi) '/

(AAREERER)
19 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI 19 BRAARBENEXTAHEMEZENK
mHRATR
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Unlisted investment: RETERE :
— Equity securities — BRARFH 3,825 4,775
The unlisted equity investment represents shares in a private RAREMBRARERR —HERRLEHE
entity engaged in oil sludge treatment facility operator in the RIBXRBESNLEERBIORD - HRZ
PRC. The Group designated its unlisted equity investment BRETDRFERERSE  WAEEEHERE
at FVTOCI as the investment is held for strategic purposes. MR EETE AR AR EBEFTELFTA
No dividends were received on this investment during the Hib2E M o F AR IR & AR
year (2019: Nil). The investment is measured at fair value AR B (20194 : ) - REMEHR » &K
at the end of each reporting period, details of fair value BUAREBEITE  AABEFEFER
measurements are disclosed in Note 34(c). BERMIFE34(c) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBRER)
20 DEFERRED TAXATION 20 EREBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) TXHEHBRE ZE2020F &2019F 12 A
recognised and movements thereon during the years ended SIHLFERANTBECHREEE
31 December 2020 and 2019. (BE)REZHER -
Allowance for
impairment of
trade and note
receivables and Fair value
contract assets Changes in fair adjustments Unrealised
and impairment value of equity arising from profit of
loss on advance instrument at ~ acquisition of inter-company Lease
to a supplier Tax loss FVTOCI subsidiaries transaction liabilities Total
E7RURER
EUZENR
aHEENAE BiAEETE
BERENKES BitAEf2E
@G WENRAIA,  UEKEAAE: AREREL
HREES HAEE  OABERD  HAAEEER FERAR HERE ait
RMBO00 RMB00 RuB000 RuB000 RWB000 RMB000 RMBO00
ANEETT ANEE T NeE T NE#TT NEETR ANEETE AEE T
At 1 January 2019 H01951R18 1030 1698 (370) - 434 62 2,854
Credt to profitor loss (Note 9) TAER(HHY) 114 26 = = 6976 2 7298
Charge to other comprehensive REf2ENETR
income - - (449) - - - (449)
At 1 January 2020 H00%E1R18 1144 1904 (819) - 1410 64 9,703
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41)  WEMBAZH#47) = = = (257) = = (257)
Credlt{charge) to profitor loss A/ (e)Ek
(Note 9) 9 1,687 8%2) = 0 2449 (12) 3464
Charge to other comprehensive REf2ENRTR
income - - ATl - - - 27
At 31 December 2020 H00%E127318 2,831 1022 (582) (35) 9,859 92 13147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
20 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

EERLIE (&)
REAMBRARM2THE - BIEHE
TEERELZERARE - P BRESIT
EEIER RS T -

2020 2019

2020 &£ 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT ARBFr

Deferred tax assets R TBE E 13,764 10,522
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (617) (819)
13,147 9,703

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profit earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB32,340,000 (2019: RMB149,449,000) as at
31 December 2020 as the Group is able to control the timing
of reversal of temporary difference and it is probable that
temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB27,112,000 (2019: RMB11,828,000)
available for offset against future profits for the consecutive
five years and will expire on 2022 and 2023. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB4,088,000 (2019: RMB7,616,000) of such losses as
at 31 December 2020. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
approximately RMB23,024,000 (2019: RMB4,212,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

BIBEPBECREMBRE) - 820084 1
A1HE  tHBERBARMEINEME
TEE IR B BB MTEINTL o 2020 F
12 A31 A& 84 A A R ¥ 32,340,000 7T
(20194 + AR™ 149,449,000t ) Ky
MEBARMGAE TR ERE - WELLR
B ERETIELEERBENEE  RE
TN 55 1B RE 5 2 I B 22 B ) 3 [ol RS A
MEAZEAERNERZEREEIETE
[ o

R2020F 12 A31 8 » ANEE & AR EAD
MIEEHBEOABARE 27,112,000 7T(2019
& AR¥11,828,00070) @ AJEE R F
85 R 2R FE - i 72022 F K 2023 F
f& % o M2020F 128318 ZEL
A R #4,088,0007T(20194F : A R %
7,616,000 7T ) KB B HERIELER B EE °
20204 20194 12A31H © HR K
RAERORAITEAYE - MARRESEALD
A R 23,024,000 (20194F : A R #
4,212,000 7T ) &) Tl A 0 T8 E5 48 FE AR IR ST B
HEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
21 INVENTORIES 21
2019
20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
Spare parts and other materials 1 R E AR 6,952 5,250

22 BEFRWHEREWRE

2020 2019
2020 20194

22 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFT
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 180,444 123,008
Less: allowance for impairment R RER (7,494) (3,798)
172,950 119,210
Note receivables eSS 62,001 24,664
Total trade and note receivables B 5 EKFIR R ER R IRARE 234,951 143,874
The Group normally allows a credit period generally within 90 NEE—HMREAEZESIEFLHE FI0H(2019
(2019: 90) days to its trade customers. F:90R)AWEEH o
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of TXHEHEEZ ZERKZBERERES LT
allowance for impairment at the end of the reporting period N LH2HMN K MER RN EE[E 2
presented based on payment schedule or invoice date stated BB ) BRI AT ©

in the contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

22 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

22 BEZRUREAREBVRRE®)

2020 2019

2020 &£ 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR TFT

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 129,838 75,109
91 - 180 days 91 £ 180H 30,571 24,944
181 — 365 days 181 £ 365 H 9,377 16,413
Over 365 days 365 HEA £ 3,164 2,744
172,950 119,210

Note receivables are bank acceptance notes and commercial
acceptance notes amounting to approximately RMB37,109,000
(2019: RMB24,664,000) and RMB24,892,000 (2019: RMB
Nil) respectively and the average aging is generally within
180 (2019: 180) days based on the issuance date, which
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary as there is no significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully recoverable. As
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all the amounts of bank
acceptance notes were endorsed to settle trade payables and
not derecognised until the maturity date of the notes.

The management of the Group considers the note receivables
are issued by the banks and reputable state-owned enterprise
with high credit rating and the probability of default is low.
Therefore, no impairment is considered necessary.

Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade
receivables:

EWEE AL BI# A AR 37,109,000
JC(20194F + AR#24,664,0007T) X AR
#24,892,0007T(20194F : AR ZT )
WIRITAN ZEREERALERE  BER
BITHHMFERER — A A 180H (2019
F:180H)A BEERA  BANEHE
EEBEAZYRZEEHLERABTHK
B - BENEERRERE - R 2020 F &
2019 12 A31 B EXEMARITEAL
EENRBENEEESRNKE BEEE
EEIEE W AR IEHER ©

AEBEEEERS  REREEREHAS
=5 B R MR AR R L BUE R RTT R A
FEACRET  WHAEHRE -

B 5 REae 2 2

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETFT

Balance at the beginning of the year  F#l#& & 3,798 3,148
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEIE 6,128 2,171
Impairment losses reversed EREREEE (2,432) (1,521)
Balance at the end of the year FEREH 7,494 3,798

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk

arising from trade receivables are set out in Note 34(b).

BERAKBEEERRRREE 5 REIA
ZEERBRIE — FRIFHRHIEE 34(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 & BARERHEAMERRKE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Advance to suppliers M4 FE R VR HE M B R 37,250 25,664
Deposits for tender bidding KIBRE 6,345 11,319
Other deposits Hithize 1,931 1,830
Value-added tax receivables FEUE BT 13,390 10,563
Staff advances B T#K 1,186 1,034
Prepayment for acquisition of a U B — FEI B BB 8 A1 O TR 3R IE
subsidiary* — 5,500
Others Hitb 3,635 1,210
63,737 57,120
* Represented the partial payment for the acquisition of 73% * 5 Uk BE — BT B A R 73% IRAEM I D 3K
equity interest of a subsidiary of which the transaction was HEXSER2020F 1 A 16 H5ERK © (RH
completed on 16 January 2020. (Note 42) $42)
24 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24 ANEE AR
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Contract assets ABHEE 278,733 274,408
Contract liabilities aHAaE 105,089 44179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
24 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, contract assets include retention
receivables of approximately RMB19,780,000 (2019:
RMB25,737,000). The Group generally provides their
customers with one to two (2019: one to two) years warranty
period. Upon the expiration of retention period, if the
relevant hazardous wastage processing plant has met the
requirements in the contract, the customer would conduct a
final inspection and provide an acceptance certificate and

pay the retention within the terms as specified in the contract.

The changes in contract assets and liabilities are due to i)
adjustments arising from changes in the measure of progress
of contracting work, or ii) reclassification to trade receivables

when the Group has unconditional right to the consideration.

Contract assets

Arising from performance under
hazardous waste incineration
solutions services, pyrolysis solid
waste treatments solutions services E3:)

and technical upgrading services

24

ELBAEENRERERART R
MRS - EAELRE R RIE
FROR T3 R AR B B Tt AR AR TS B9

BREE BfE@#)

R2020F 12 A31H - AWEEBERER
REBEH AR 19,780,000 7T(2019 F :
AR 25,737,0007T) ° REE—f A E
BERE—Z=ZMF(2019F : —EWF)H
RIEER - NMRBEE M 2B - BHEBAZR
BEYRERE MRS OMINESR  BFPK
EITRERBIVRERBKARESE BN
BHRENHRAZFRES -

BHEENRBENES AR )RAHNT
REENEGERELYMELNRE X
i ANEEEERGEHRAEREFORE
B SRR

EHEE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT AREFT
278,733 274,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
24 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

Contract assets (continued)

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating

cycle.

The contract assets have the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables, which are subject to the same ECL

assessment as the trade receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the allowance for
impairment of contract assets amounting to approximately
RMB5,713,000 (2019: RMB117,000) was recognised in
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated
allowance for impairment of contract assets is approximately
RMB9,753,000 (2019: RMB4,040,000).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk

arising from contract assets are set out in Note 34(b).

24

BHNEE RE@)
ENAEM)

AEBEBZERNEEIBARD - RE
RAREBRARELELEAMAGEE
3 o

BHEEREZRERYFAAGHRNER
REC RAENEEFLNBRBEEERRT
B E 5 EURIAER -

HZE2020F12A31BLEFE  HARK
5,713,000 7L(20194F : A R # 117,000
TR G HNEERERED RIBRPER -
M2020F 12 A31H - AWEERBERG
BB 4 B AR 9,753,000 7T (2019 4F ¢
AR 4,040,0007T) °

BHEAEEEZEBRERRAANEEZE
BEB A E— P IBEN I E34(b) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARM BEAL)
24 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EHEE BfEW
Contract liabilities EHEE
2020 2019
2020 &£ 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFIT
Hazardous waste incineration BEEBRYRERER R R
solutions 97,781 43,881
Technical upgrading services BT AR AR 7% 2,468 298
Maintenance services HEE RS 4,840 —
105,089 44179

EHENAEBRRNT —FRERSEA -

All the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as

revenue in the following year.

BB EREENFBRBE SRR ALE
RBEWA - TREEBEBITEREHET
B ERERREA -

Contract liabilities represent the progress payment exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the input method and
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs its

obligations under the contracts.

TRIVRRAFE E R YA BB
BEHENEENERIZE -

The following table shows amount of the revenue recognised
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities
in prior periods.

Hazardous waste Technical

incineration solutions upgrading services

192

CRENREEERRL R By A AR R
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F 2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT | AREFT | AREFT | AREFT
Revenue recognised that T AFHAE LB ELEHA
was included in the B HERUA
contract liability balance
at the beginning of the
year 31,072 59,441 78 240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

25

26

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank balances
held by the Group with maturity of three months or less and
carry interest at market rate of 0.01% to 1.35% (2019: 0.01%
to 1.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2020.

Pledged bank deposits represent the bank guarantee with
several customers for performance obligation fulfilment. The
pledged bank deposits will be released when the performance
obligation is met, the customer cancelled the requirement for
the bank guarantee or the bank guarantee is due. Pledged
bank deposits of the Group carrying interest at market rate of
0.35% t0 2.415% (2019: 0.35% to 2.415%) per annum as at 31
December 2020.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts are secured by their 27% equity interest in a
subsidiary, Qingyang Qingyi Petroleum Engineering Company
Limited® (“Qingyang Qingyi”), interest-free and receivable on
demand, except for an amount of RMB1,500,000 which carries
interest of 10% per annum.

# The English name is for identification only.

25

26

RITERRRS NS EFRTER

R2020F 12 A31H  RITEH KBRS
BIEREEEEH AR A =& A I LA
#0.01% % 1.35% (20194 : 0.01% &
1.35%) B iS5 F Rt B IR @ MRITA
ﬁ%o

BRI ERIERBTEANEARET
BEFIMARITER - DEBRITERS
EBRITRAOER FEPEUERITEREX
RERTTHER B EARF R BR o 7220204 12 A
318 - AEERHERMRITFERIZTSF
KGHF0.35% £ 2.415%(20194F : 0.35%
E2.415%)5H 8 o

FE W — 1 BfY BB 2 B) 3 2 IR IR SR AR OR

ZEFBHBEERHE A R ERBGEE AR
IRBBRAR(ERER )M 27% RIERE
A RERBREREERE HSEAA
R ¥ 1,500,000 TR & F & 10% 51 S K 5K
HRIN ©

! WXL TBIERBS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M |

(Expressed in Renminbi) '/

(AAREERER)
27 TRADE PAYABLES 27 BEFENNE
The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables NTARBREAREEZAHRZINES
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the B IERBRER DT ¢
reporting period:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARBFIT
0 — 90 days 0Z90H 117,828 98,797
91 — 180 days 912180 H 17,540 15,707
181 — 365 days 1812365 H 3,808 4,576
Over 365 days 365 B £ 12,786 526
151,962 119,606
There is no specific credit period granted on purchase of AARWERBERREREER TFIEE
goods and services. All of the trade payables are expected HWEEH - TBHMEE S EMNRIEEZER—
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are FRNENSHERBBRA S BIZERERE -

repayable on demand.

28 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 28 HttEEMNREREGHX

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AREFr

Other tax payables E fth FE S T IE 7,192 5,126
Accrued staff costs JEFT B TR 8,418 5,625
Accrued charges BT &R 5,441 1,603
Provision for legal claim EERREE 950 1,250
Others EAfb 3,210 1,660
25,211 15,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAARM BEAL)
29 LEASE LIABILITIES 29 HEARE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TERETAEERESBENAREHARD
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of reporting period: BTEAFNEE -
2020 2019
2020 20194
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total

minimum Minimum minimum Minimum

CET lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

Bi& RIE 54 &K

HEMFEE HBEANFEE REOESTIEIE N -{oE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT

Within one year —FR 2,670 2,797 2,802 3,063

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 1,275 1,296 2,684 2,811

After 2 years but within 5 years MEELBRFN — - 1,275 1,296

3,945 4,093 6,761 7,170

Total future interest expenses ARFIBHAZ BT (148) (409)

Present value of lease liabilities HEARERE 3,945 6,761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

30. BORROWINGS 30 f&EX
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFr
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEE
— Secured bank borrowings — BEMRITHER 28,000 —
— Unsecured bank borrowings — EEARITIERK - 14,048
— Secured borrowings from financial — R E£EENHEFER
institutions 16,461 —
Variable-rate borrowings: FEER
— Secured bank borrowings — BEARITER 11,267 12,550
55,728 26,598
The carrying amounts of the above FEROERERERRER
borrowings are repayable based on R FTEET BIE B HAEE -
the scheduled repayment dates set BT
out in the loan agreements as:
— Within one year — —FR 44,384 26,598
— More than one year, but not — —FLA L BTRBBRF
exceeding two years 8,642 —
— More than two yeas, but not — MENANLETBR=F
exceeding three years 2,702 —
55,728 26,598
Less: amount due within one year B RBBEEETR—FNRN
shown under current | HiR) & 58
liabilities (44,384) (26,598)
Amount shown under non-current FNBBEERTAREHE
liabilities 11,344 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
30. BORROWINGS (continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s

borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate: BERA=
— Fixed-rate borrowings — ELMEBR
— Variable-rate borrowings — FEER

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings of
approximately RMB39,267,000 (2019: approximately
RMB12,550,000) were secured by the pledged bank deposits
and the personal guarantee provided by Mr. Cai.

Other borrowings were secured by an oil sludge treatment
facility and certain patents in the PRC with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB 15,482,000 (2019: Nil).

Except for the borrowing denominated in US$ of approximately
RMB8,417,000 (2019: Nil), the remaining balance was
denominated in RMB which is the same as the functional

currency of the corresponding group entities.

30

H Eh /)
B FA (A2

AEBEFNOERMREELNT

2020 2019
2020 F 2019

5.22%
5.17%-6.18%

3.85%-7.00%
0.89%-5.05%

R2020F 12 A31H » RITERHAR
#39,267,0007C(20194F : 4 A R #
12,550,00070 ) B B IR IRITIF R R &L %k
R EAERIERR

HMWERAEAELABAH AR
15,482,000 7 (20194 : £ ) i 1 o B &9
— IR IR R A T EFEE IR o

Br LAZETTEME R B R4 A R % 8,417,000
TC(20194F « £E)IN » SR TN EEBRIAAREEST
B ARETABHEEEEEENINEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 B
Details of the movement of share capital of the Company are AAREASESHOFBLT ¢
as follows:
Number  Nominal value
of shares per share Share capital Share capital
REG#E SRAEE RE R
HK$ HK$ RMB’000
BT BT ABEFT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,  122019F1A1H  2019%F
1 January 2020 124318 202051
and 31 December 2020 1B%2020%12 A 31H 4,000,000,000 0.05 200,000,000 168,620
Issued and fully paid BERTRAR
At 1 January 2019 2019 1A1H 1,020,864,000 0.05 51,043,200 41,413
— Issuance of new shares upon IPO — BRARBERBITHRN
(Note) (Bt) 312,471,000 0.05 15,623,550 13,687
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020  #2019F 12 5318 »
and 31 December 2020 2020118 R
202012 A31H 1,333,335,000 0.05 66,666,750 55,100
Note: Vo

On 3 January 2019, 312,471,000 ordinary shares with a par value of

HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.88

per share by way of public offer. On the same date, the shares of the

Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

32 RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for

all qualify employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme

are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under

the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant

payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

R2019% 1 A3H * ARF 312,471,000 fx i E
H0.05 BT EBMKRE N ARBEENTAEER
0.88 BILMEREIT - AR » ARAIMD ERBER
FREAR £

RIKEFTE

AEBENBBRMAGERERETERG
HEREEFE - ZAtEMBEERAEEE
ENRANR  AXEARMEGHESRS -
AEBIRIAM T EKAR 5% [ ZaT 8
MR - MEBNAEHFREMR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
32 RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

33

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
as determined by respective local government authority to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions under the

scheme.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect
of the retirement benefits scheme for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in Notes 10 and 11.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of business. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, net
of bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the issue of

new shares and raising of new debts.

32

33

B ARBRIE BI(2)

AEBERTENERROEE BT ERA
MM BEREZRIREH G ENKE - 8
FAMBRREZRRARBNETEEL —=F
B & 5 b I RE B 397 B A AN 22 45 5 L B
MER - KARMEHRES - AKEEH
BB B R — R RAELF B TH

FEHER ©

A& E R E Z 20204 % 2019412 A 31
HIEFERBEREBATEELNERESE
WENHIEE 10 11 ©

EXmEREE

AEBNBRAERFRBENERNER
R ERAMTISEL » T ARKE
BEORAIRFERR - ARERERBERKER
EFEMER -

AEBNEARBE REER(HRRITER
RBRE)ARARRHEA ARIERE(EP
BREERAEREE)
ARREZRBEAKANRZBEARM
BEAMERR  HEBRRERNEE - REAX
REEFNER  AREHEERTHR
RESMERTOEBEERRSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
B Rk M h

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARM BEAL)
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34 €@mTH
(a) Categorises of financial instruments (a) SWMIEmER
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKANTEN S BEE 373,898 340,289
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BAREBEFENFARMLE
W EERAT A 3,825 4,775
377,723 345,064
Financial liabilities tRBE
Financial liabilities measured at REEKATENESRARE
amortised cost 221,236 157,478
Financial assets at amortised cost are as follows: BHERATECSRMEERNT ¢
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Trade and note receivables B 5 MR R B E R 234,951 143,874
Other receivables H b fE W 5k78 3,635 1,210
Amounts due from non-controlling  FEUx —FREIFT B 2 A1 FEFE AR A 3R
shareholders of a subsidiary KIE 4,523 —
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITER 43,435 52,999
Bank balances and cash RITEMEIRS 87,354 142,206
373,898 340,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Bt 5 ¥ 2= MY &

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and note receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, equity
instrument at FVTOCI, trade payables, other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of these financial

instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate borrowings. The Group currently
does not have any fair value interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market rate, the benchmark
lending rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China on
variable-rate bank balances, pledged bank deposits

and borrowings.

34

ETWMITEREE)

(b)

MERBREE B ERBE

AEENTEZSRTABTEESE
WA R R R % - U — ] P
RAGEEBRBRRAORE - iR
RIE - DEMRITER - RITER
ERE BAAEBEAELFAH
hEEEENRATR  BHEN
HIE - HiENRIE - EREEE
BE -ZEEMIAZFHBRIEE
B EEE

HZEeRMmTIARBENERSHET
KEk  BE¥ER - EERRNR
BiERRE - TXEIMAEEZE
RBROBE ARREEEERE
ERERER - AERNES U R
BUEE I

FIE @b

AEBEBETAEREENAL
EEFEER - A%EE B A&
AR S BEFELPRE - 8
EBERABERZRYHEAF
EEM -
AEENEERTLRTES BB
BBITERRERZTBFE  F
B A R ARAT 2 45 0 B 3K
BEHNBLREFEER -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT &R

201



202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities at variable rates as at the
end of reporting period:

(b)

ETWMITEE)
BERAREREERBE(Z)

FIEmpE (&)

TERFLEAEERRERRIZZY
MEABMEMEERAE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Variable rate financial assets/ FEANREHMEE (AE)
(liabilities)

Pledge bank deposits DR ITER 43,435 52,999
Bank balances IRITH R 87,339 142,184
Borrowings B (11,267) (12,550)
Net exposure R B F5R 119,507 182,633

Sensitivity analysis HIFE T

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and variable
rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period and
assumed that the amount of liabilities outstanding at the
end of each reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. 100 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

T X BURE DT T ERRIT AR
Bz CHARRTERRAERN
eSO B N Y
E o EBRERREREHRNKER
BEEREREBEFERKRER-
AERERABABERMNERR
B SRAB100ERMIER - KKRE
EESNENAEAIEEEIEL A
BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB896,000 (2019: post-tax profit would have
increased/decreased by approximately RMB1,370,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its bank balances and pledged
bank deposits and partially offset by the impact from

borrowings.
Currency risk

The Group’s certain bank balances and cash, other
receivables, other payables and borrowings are
denominated in US$ and HK$, which exposed the Group

to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

the end of the reporting date is as below:

34

EMITE#E)

(b)

MBEREEBBERBEK(E)

FZ /7% ()

BT (4E)

fis K SR 38 hn S A 100 2+ 0 A
BEMEHERTE  NAEEE

E2020F 12 A31B L FEMF %
BR8N A RE 896,000 7T
(2019 4F : FEFEKIE M, A4
AER#1370,00070) c EEXZ 2
RAEERRITER R EERRT
17 SR E EG F R R - W35 1% 18 X
VR EIRSH o

EHm b

AEEMETRTESRRRS  H
i RE U R IR~ LAt A5 SRR I fE K
BUETREBILE  EREAEE
[N

RIS - AR E LN SHE
HHAERES AR EEERY
mF :

2020 2019
2020 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AREFIT
Assets BE
uss$ E 9,397 56,103
HK$ BT 2,857 2,021
Liabilities afE
Uss E 8,417 —
HK$ BT 439 1,617
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates and
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusted their transaction at year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes bank balances and cash,
other receivables and other payables. A 5% increase
or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in foreign currency rates.

If 5% weakening/strengthening of US$ and HK$
against RMB, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB127,000 (2019: post-tax profit would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB2,119,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to foreign currencies rates of US$ and HK$ on its
bank balances and cash, other receivables and other
payables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

34

EMITE#E)

(b)

MBEREEBRERBEK(E)

BEmmE(E)
BREE T

TXHHRE D THIERINEE X
FEfREE - BESENUIMNEFHER
HMASNERIAR  WIAS% B IMNE
EXREFHNFRIERHHE - HRE
EAMBRRITEHREES - Hil
JE MR TRIA Je Bl FE A 5R0R A&
ZEE A B AEPERIMNE E XA
- BRAI5% HOIZR - RREIEES
SN O SR 0 & 2 T BE D (F th AV T
fili o

METRBTLEAREKERTH®,
£+ FA5% - Bl # =20204F 12 A 31
HLIEFE  ANEBFEEEBEN
SR8 A R #127,00078(2019
F BBFEERD G ARE
2,119,0007T) - EX ZERHNA&E
B R 20204 K% 201912 A31B 2
RITRBRIRS - HMEUKIBUR
H b A B M ERE T RS TTIMNEE
KRR e
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and note receivables, contract assets, amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary, bank
balances and pledged bank deposits.

The carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets and contract assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position best
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company estimates the lifetime ECL of trade
receivables and contract assets, after considering
credit risk characteristics based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information. Estimated
loss rates are based on credit risk characteristics
with reference to estimated loss rates assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, pledged bank
deposits and bank acceptance note receivables are
limited because the counterparties are reputable
financial institutions in the PRC. The credit risk on
commercial acceptance note receivables is also limited
because the counterparties are reputable state-owned
enterprise in the PRC.

34

ETWMITEREE)

(b)

MBEBREEBRRBEK(E)

1= BB R el 1 7T A

AEENEERRIZREEZE
BRERBKRER AHNEE &
W — PR P /B8 2 B IE FE AR AR R 5R0R
RITHBR RS BIRRITER -

REMBHRARRARSEEHERS
REERAMNEENHEREES
BERMRAEEEERNZAEE L

REEERRBRERE ARRE
R ESEREFBERANEEN
EEAFEDREREEBR  XRE
BEHEABRRFHRANELBRED
REREERRSRE WHATEME
BRELHE - HABEERIER
EERREE Y2EZEREEFN
REBEENGHBRE - 8t
ARAREFRA/AKENEERR
ERIEREE -

HRHFIOREERFZPEE
NEREE - MRTER  DHEP
RITERREYERITALRENE
ERBRER BHRHFAIREER
HZHPBEBEALE  BUEKEEA
AEBENEERRTEER -
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The management of the Group considers pledged bank
deposits and bank balances that are deposited with
state-owned banks or financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating
issuers during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The Group’s concentration by geographical locations is
mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all of the trade
and note receivables as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 20%
(2019: 36%) of the total trade and note receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer as at 31
December 2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44%
(2019: 90%) of the total trade and note receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
December 2020.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses as prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade and note receivables and contract

assets.

34

ETWMITEE)

(b)

MBEREEBERBE(E)

=B R R AT ()

AEBEEERA  FHRRBEAR
TERATRARENSREENE
HFRITERRBITERBEREE
BB S B E E o EREE 2020 F Kk
2019F 12 A31BLFEREAS
EEFRBEITA ARAESZRE
B AR AT RV AT 2B o

REBZRWES S 2EFEERR
FEMRFEEFEAN KR2020F K
2019 12 A31 B 15 & 5 fE WA
REEWZEO2EL

M2020F 12318 & &
EoRWFIEREREREBELE
20% (2019 : 36%) E A A& E &
AREP XA mEEREESEFRER

202012 A31H - K &
BORWFIERERERBERE
44% (20194F : 90%)FEMASEE R
ABEPENMEREESTRRE -

7N 5 [ FE R RS 1L 73 VA SR IR (K B B
BmEERDFE SRR ENTRIE
BB ZEAAFEREZIRK
PRENEBREBUARAHNEENE
EfrERREERE -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E R RERIFE IR ER G R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBRER)
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34 E@IA®E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERKBREEEEZRBEE)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EEE R EFFE(E)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment AREBEBHABEERRTRDTE
comprises the following categories: BIEA TR -
Internal Trade receivables/ Other financial
credit rating Description contract assets assets/other items
g3 EWHE HitbemEE
A AR AR BHEE Hitg
Group A The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
HE A HFEFHNENRRBEM - BWEAERBEEIFRIEA REFEREHEE 12E@ANEHEE
BB - TEEE 18
BIE
Group B Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
usually settle in full credit-impaired
#HEB B AR BREREBBER REFERHBEHEE 12@ANEHEE
BB - WEEE B8
A
Group C There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or externally
#HEC SERKRAFEAANITIIIBERZLNERVRE BEAFEREHEE BEFEPEDHEES
FRAE A B 1 AN B8 - WEEER BB - WEREER
=] (=]
Group D There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
#HED BREEEERENZE EEFENENEE BEAFENEHEE
B - E8RE BB - EERE
Group E There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in  Amount is written Amount is written
severe financial difficulty and the Group has off off
no realistic prospect
HEE BRNEBARNREMBRENER  BAKEL  FIED M FRIEE M

BB R H AT BE
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s trade and note receivables and contract assets,
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and

other receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

External Internal
credit credit
rating rating
IREE
LR REBEEFTR
Note
Hiat
Trade receivables 22 N/A (Note 2)
B 5 WK i A (Hiat2)
Note receivables 22 Low risk N/A
e i 15K 2 B i A
Contract assets 24 N/A (Note 2)
EREE i A (Kt 2)
Bank balances 25 Low risk N/A
RITHEER 15K 8 B TEA
Pledged bank deposits 25 Low risk N/A
BRI ITIE R 1K 2 B i A
Amounts due from 26 N/A (Note 1)
non-controlling TiE A (Hat 1)
shareholders of a
subsidiary
JE W — P BT B 1 )
FEFERR AR SR FRIA
Other receivables 23 N/A (Note 1)
H b pE YsR0R TEA (Hiat 1)

34 €RTEAE®E)
(b) HHEREEBEZRBE(E)

=B R R AT ()

TR A EEE 5 UHE R E
WEBURANEE - RIOTEH
EEARGTER  BK—EHEA
) 3422 R R 5 KO % L M OB
AHMEERR  BETEREY
RS fRATA -

BB A G B2 BB E

12-month or

lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
128 A REEFE
HEMEEER REAREE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT

Lifetime ECL 180,444 123,008
REFEREREER
I&518

12m ECL 62,001 24,664
128 AMBEREE
B8

Lifetime ECL 288,486 278,448
REFEHAEREER
&35

12m ECL 87,339 142,184
128 AEMER
E1E

12m ECL 43,435 52,999
12@AMTESREE
&

12m ECL 4,523 —
12 @ANERES
&518

12m ECL 3,635 1,210
12AAMEMER
&8
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(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

Note:

1.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
At 31 December 2020, other receivables and amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
with no fixed payment terms amounting to approximately
RMB3,635,000 (2019: RMB1,210,000) and RMB4,523,000
(2019: RMB Nil) respectively.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the expected credit losses on these items.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the

Group applies internal credit rating for its customers in

relation to its operation. The following table provides

information about the exposure to credit risk for trade

receivables and contract assets which are assessed

on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-

impaired).

34

SEMIA#E
(b) HMEBEBREZBAEERBE(E)

EEE R EFS(E)

BB A G EN AR E ()

Kz -

1. RABEERARETENBENMmMES
AEBFERAPENTIEEERR
REAMRERLE—BENBLEFA -
®2020% 12 4318 + ¥ & & & 1+
TR HA Y EL fth 8 U 3R TE R e U — R A
BARFFEBBREREDBLAA
K % 3,635,0007C(20194F : AR
1,210,000 7t ) & A R ¥ 4,523,000 7T
(2019 & : ARBZT) »

2. HRESEBFBERENEEMNS R
BRI MR EANE IR - A%
BRI AT R R AT A RS
EEBEBNEBREE AEEETEZ
FSHEEMBEHEERESE -

ERAKEEERREREMN — I
Do AEEHEREZERABNETR
ETABEETFR TRIEHER
EEFEDRBEEER(EBEER
B)RIREREEF B 5 EEK
AREHNEENERRARER -
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e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34 &I AME

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

(b) MERREEEERIEEK(E)

EE/mbE R B EFE(E)
BE KA B2 A E (E)

2020

2020 &
Gross Net
Average carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rate ABEETR loss rate amount allowances amount
FHEER HAREE EIREHE AR TE R E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Group A EEA 0.14% 316,586 444 316,142
Group B #HEB 3.59% 131,484 4,720 126,764
Group C #HEC 33.08% 13,115 4,338 8,777
Group D #HED 100.00% 7,745 7,745 —
468,930 17,247 451,683

2019

2019 F
Gross Net
Average carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rate WEME BT AR loss rate amount  allowances amount
TR BERHE(E BEEE BREDFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT AREFT
Group A HaA 0.11% 259,077 287 258,790
Group B #HEB 2.74% 136,459 3,733 132,726
Group C #HEC 21.04% 2,662 560 2,102
Group D #H&D 100.00% 3,258 3,258 —
401,456 7,838 393,618
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated. The contract assets have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same type of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for contract

assets.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period which
have been past due over 90 days are not considered as
in default based on good repayment records for those

customers and continuous business with the Group.
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects

of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables include

both interest and principal cash flows.

34

EMITE#E)

(b)

MBEREEBBERBEK(E)

=B R R E T (8
KBTI BN T BB E ()

B BEETIREBEEHSAREHE
BHRANBECEREDORMGE
Y EZBERAHIRANAERF
MATREEERMEHRAE - EEEE
BB EESE  UEREESNA
MEEBEBANEBEN - 8HE
EREFRBEAONESREFEAR
RBHERORRES - Bt - R
ERREZRUABNEEERE
HWEEBBENAEILE -

ARREZARR RAEEHRER
HiEB B 90 A 2 & 5 R M SIA R B #%
ERPZRIFEFHBERIFEER
KEETZEBB TR RRL -

TE /R R

EEERSIERRE  NEB R
REREEERRENRETERD
RERHESNASRRASEFEDY
KF - URERERERBNZE

TRFLARBEZEERGR  IF
EeRmABENBRTANIMEE-
FZERBBRIBAEE TR ERA
TREEARURRSRENRTEA
HWERRERERR - TRET
MERASHSRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M h

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR¥EREN)
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34 SRIEA#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERKREEEZRBEEE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEE R B (4E)

Weighted On demand or Total
average less than 4-6 6 months 1-2 More than  undiscounted Carrying

interest rate 3 months months to 1 year years 2years  cash flows amount
il REXY, ARRRE

FHNE 3EANR 4268 6EAZ1E 122 2ENE i £t K

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRFL  ARETZ  ARETR  AREFT  AREFT  AREFLT ARETR

At 31 December 2020 7202012331 R

Trade payables RN - 151,962 - - - - 151,962 151,962
Other payables Hf AR - 9,601 - - - - 9,601 9,601
Borrowings 5 44%% 10,719 12,462 2,704 9,208 2798 57,981 55,728
Lease liabilities HEaR 4,75% 763 733 1,301 1,206 - 4,093 3,945
173,045 13,195 24,005 10,594 2,798 223,637 221,236
At 31 December 2019 2019512531 R
Trade payables BAE(THE = 119,606 — — — — 119,606 119,606
Other payables EfEATE - 4,513 - - - - 4513 4,513
Borrowings e 5.49% 2,558 14,257 10,622 — — 21,337 26,598
Lease liabilities fEaf 4.75% 753 766 1,545 2,811 1,296 1n 6,761
127,430 15,023 12,067 2,811 1,296 158,627 157,478
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) MIBENQIAREEFTE
This note provides information about how the Group A REBBAEENWEEH
determines fair value of its financial asset, which is PRMEEZAABENER - TI
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. B2 E MR AR EBENE -
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- BHARBER  NEEFERTA
observable data to the extent it is available. Where M BRHIE - WEFE — R AH
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages BB AEEeZEBE=FH4
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The ERGEMETHE - EBESRS
management works closely with the qualified external BERINEHEMBEZEE FlF]4E
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques TG E M 2R A SR -

and inputs to the model.
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(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that is

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Group owns 3% equity interest in a PRC private
company that is classified as an equity investment
at FVTOCI and is measured at fair value at the end
of reporting period. The fair value of the investment
as at 31 December 2020 amounts to approximately
RMB3,825,000 (2019: RMB4,775,000), measured using
a valuation technique with significant unobservable
inputs and hence was classified as Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy under IFRS 13.

The following table gives information about how the fair

value of the Group’s financial asset is determined.

Fair value

Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy
tHEE RTRHANALER NREESR
Private equity investment classified as  RMB3,825,000 Level 3

equity instrument at FVTOCI -3% (2019: RMB4,775,000)

equity investment in a PRC private

company engaged in oil sludge

treatment facility operator
LERBRENEARAABE B ARKS8250007 F=

A2 AREHBRATE-3% Mk (2019% : AEH
ERENEERERER L EN— 4,775,0007T)

R ELERR

If the market multiples increase/decrease by 10% with
all other variable hold constant, other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
have been RMB287,000 (2019: RMB358,000) higher and

lower, respectively.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Valuation technique(s)
and key inputs

ERTREREARE

34 &I AME
(c) EMIANAARMEH B

BREEMEELAABETEZE
FHLHEENAALIEE

AEER—HFPBELEARES
3% MR A= E D ERIZANE
BT 23 5T A E 2 W AR AR
TH X WRAREHRARREES
2 R2020F 128318 &K
NREELNRAKEES8250007T
(20194 : AR ¥4,775,0007T ) *
FAMERNTE  ERPREKX
DA R A SR - A UL IR BB
MISHREERDFE 1SEAEAAAE
BERZE=F -
TREESENNEEAEE R
BEZARBENEFR -

Range of

parameter

2848

Market approach — The fair value is

primarily affected by market multiples.
Market multiples are determined based

5.62
(2019: 5.87)

on the enterprise value to earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation of the comparable

companies.
g — AR

BEIRRMERETE - T 562
EHEHRECXBERS BAELRAFTR

(2019 : 5.87)

AME R ERBENORNZLE

T

EMBREMEERFTIENBR
T mEBEEMNE10%
#H E2020F12A31H Lt F E M
Ht2mle=EEopl EARTEA
R #287,0007(20194F : A R ¥
358,0007T) °

REZE 2020 F & 20194 12 A 31 A
FEE E—H F-_HRE=H
2 B fE e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are

disclosed above.

34

EMITE#E)

(c)

ERMIANAAREEFTEGE)

RAEBETBAEEERE

ARRNEREARRESBEMNG
ERME AR BEFENBABUER

EfA-—BEENAAEBEE A
SEERTAMSABEBUE -
F-—RBABEBEITR AEEE
ERE=-NAEBRMGEMETH
B ERERAERIIEHEME
BEE BRI aEGEERMERRA
BARE EEERARAESS
BEAMER UWMBEEQAE
BERBHREA -

FHEARNEESEEAABEMNRG
B R K AU B & B0 E ST

B °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBEREN)
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c)
(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

ETWMITEREE)

EMIANDABEETEE)

RABETBAGEERE(E)

FE=RAA EBEF;EHK

Equity investment

at FVTOCI

BRAREETE

Wit AR 2mE

W R ARE

RMB’000

ARETFr

1 January 2019 20191 H1H 2,980
Total gains et okl

— in other comprehensive income (Note) — REMEEWE (A7) 1,795

31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 201941231 HK 202061 A1H 4,775
Total losses Eias

— in other comprehensive expense (Note) — REMEAEBX (A7) (950)

31 December 2020 202012 A31H 3,825

Note: Included in other comprehensive expense are the
amounts of approximately RMB950,000 losses (2019:
approximately RMB1,795,000 gains) relating to unlisted
equity securities classified as an equity instrument at
FVTOCI held at 31 December 2020.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

The management estimates the fair values of its financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using discounted cash flows analysis. Management
of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their respective fair value.

M StAEMEZERIZEBEEHNAR
#950,0007C(20194F : #) A R #&
1,795,000 T %) - B 20204F 12
AB1BHAZIELTBRABLED
BRIEAABEMENFA AL MEE
ISR AT A -

FEBREBEEMEETULAALE

=
B ENEHEERTHBEBH A
RIEE

EEERABRARESRENNMAF
HIZBERAFENEREERS
BMEBAABE AEEEEER
o RIERA M IMR ABHKAA
ENeREERSRAGBKREER
HEAMAABEMAS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)

35 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35 BEEHFELAGZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAVNBMEZDHELANAEEEEY
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- g pEEeMERSEE - BEEEE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are AMBEAHERERECKLIRKRE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, MEMEEAEEFEHEERERPHE
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows HAMEEYMELEZREREMNAE -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Obligation
Accrued arising from a Lease
Borrowings issue costs put option liabilities Total
R
R BHBORX EENER HESE A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT AEETFT AEETFT AEEFT
(Note 30) (Note 29)
(fet30) (Hit29)
At 1 January 2019 R201951A18 10,000 1,950 99,901 6,382 118,233
Financing cash flows BERERE 15,774 (9,277) = (2,294) 4,203
Interest expenses FIEHY 824 — — 270 1,094
Non-cash transactions FEERH
— Recognition of lease ~ — HRMERE
liabilities — — — 2,403 2,403
— Deferred issue costs ~ — BEEBETHA — 7,327 — — 7,327
— Derecognition of — RILERR BEE
obligation arising EZEfF
from a put option — — (99,901) — (99,901)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31 8K
and 1 January 2020 20201 A 18 26,598 — — 6,761 33,359
Financing cash flows BRERENE 27,052 — — (3,077) 23,975
Interest expenses FEHY 2,078 — — 261 2,339
At 31 December 2020 R 2020% 12 A31H 55,728 = — 3,945 59,673

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T



36 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitments contracted for but not
provided for:

ERTAME R B 2 A IE

In respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

) WKEME - BmERRE

ASE
|

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

In respect of the acquisition of a

Wb — B A &)

In respect of the interest in

37 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s borrowings, which are secured by the

assets of the Group are included in Note 30.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT £3§

BEREE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
19,496 12,950
12,750 1,500
2,534 11,900
EEERH
NAEEEEERTFOANEBERFER
HKIFES0 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

39

BALANCES
(i) Guarantees in support of the bank borrowing

Details of guarantees in support of the bank borrowings
of the Group provided by a director are set out in Note
30.

(i) Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details of their
emoluments are disclosed in Note 11. The emoluments
of the directors of the Company are determined
with regard to individual's performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark

in the industry and prevailing market condition.

(iii) Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of a

subsidiary

Details of balances with non-controlling shareholders of

a subsidiary are set out in Note 26.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

On 30 April 2017, the shareholders of Guangzhou Weigang
have passed the shareholders resolution to implement an
employee incentive scheme to grant share options to the
employees of Guangzhou Weigang. On the same date, share
options are granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou Weigang.
The number of shares awarded shall equal to 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing. If the
Listing does not complete by 31 December 2018, Guangzhou
Weigang or the Company is entitled to amend, terminate or
cancel the employee incentive scheme. The total exercise

price of the share options was fixed at RMB8,750,000.

38

39

BB RS R &R

(i) SHITERER

H—BEERAKRBERTEREHR
ZRERFFIBEHNHIFES0

(i) FTEEEASHH

AEEIZERAEREARAR
BATES HENHESFBIAR
MizE11 e RAREEH T2 RIE
ARE  AEBRBRRATEE
TEFHEERBITMRERE °

(iii) FEW—REHE LD RFERRRRE

B 7R — RN B A R IR AR R 4
B FHIBEN T 26.

URGHBERNNRS

MR2017F4A30H - EMAEERRE @
BT ETRERBMEEREMNESEER
HERENRFERER - BA - MEME
7535 % B I AR E - RENRG A
FERANR EMERDBER3.5% - ik
M ER 2018 F 12 A31 HAT=A » AIE
MBS AR BB RER - KIESEUERE
BMEETE - EBRENRITEEEERA
R # 8,750,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

39

On 10 December 2018, the principal terms of the pre initial

public offering share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme”) were adopted by the Company, and the

share options granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou

Weigang on 30 April 2017 had been approved by the board

of directors of the Company as the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme. Upon the adoption of the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme, a total of 46,666,725 share options were offered for

acceptance by the Company to the 35 employees.

Details of share options granted during the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Number of
Date of grant options
R A H BRERE
30.4.2017 46,666,725

201744 HA30H

Adoption date
=R

10.12.2018
2018412 A 10H

Vesting date
HFEAH

30.4.2017
201744 A 30H

The share options granted on 30 April 2017 shall be

exercisable unless and until the Listing and be exercisable in

the following three batches:

(i) the first batch being exercisable after the second

anniversary of the date of the Listing;

(i)  the second batch being exercisable after the third

anniversary of the date of the Listing; and

(iii)  the last batch is being exercisable after the fourth

anniversary of the date of the Listing.

URBRERHERHRS D)

R2018F 12 A10H » AARIERME X
AHABEAERESTE(ERAREER
BIREGE DO EEERFR  MARRES
&0 AR 201754 A 30 B A B M 475
BEEERLNBREERBERAREE
AT AR AESTE] - R B R AFESRE
RE 2% - AARIERZISERERE
& 3£ 46,666,725 1D AR AHEEE 4 -

B 220204 N2019F 12 A31H IEFE
EROREREFENT ¢

Exercise
Exercisable period price
TEHE TREE®
3.1.2021 to 29.4.2027 HK$0.23
20211 A3AE 0.23/87T

2027 4 A29H

R20175 4 A30 B % 1A BB AR Bk IE &

HE EMAS A ETE  YAs AN T=

P17

(i) HE—HONETBEBRE-_RBFEEAT
fiF

(i) MR LETMBEHE=ZBFELAIT
fF: &

(i) ZE—MRLETBEHENBAFEA
17f -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by directors of the Company and

RGO BERNIZNARS (&)

TR EEH 220204 M 20194 12 A 31
AEFEARREERALEEREREA

employees of the Group during the years ended 31 December NRERENEE)
2020 and 2019:
Granted Lapsed Exercised
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2020 the year the year the year at 31/12/2020
120205% #2020
1818 12A318
TEE RHAH MATE  ERERE  FREAR FREAR WA
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
# T f# T T
(Note)
(Hrit)
Directors
2
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 - - = 3,933
4 0.23%7 2017544308
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 = - - 3,933
BEA 0.237 2017%64R30A
Employees HK$0.23 30.4.2017 36,587 - (2,507) - 34,080
] 0.23787 20175474308
Total 44,453 - (2,507) - 41,946
&3t
Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
FERATRE &
Weighted average
exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MEFATTERE & & & & &

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBEREN)
39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 39 UBRHBAERNZIGRE @)
(continued)
Granted Lapsed Exercised
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2019 the year the year the year at 31/12/2019
#2019 5 R20195
1A1H 12318
i@ RiLBH HATR  ERERE  FAEAM  FRERHR e R AT
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
i) i) i) i) i)
Directors
Bz
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 — — — 3,933
i 0.23%7 2017%4F30H
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 — = = 3,933
B4 0.23 %7 2017%54A 300
Employees HK$0.23 30.4.2017 36,587 — — — 36,587
&8 0.23%87 201754 A30H
Total 44,453 — — — 44,453
3t
Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
FERTITE &
Weighted average
exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
METFHETEE & & & & E
Note: B -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, two employees left the REZE2020F 12831 B ILEE - AEEEAEREE
Group and the corresponding share options granted were lapsed SEE - DN EEEIRED EELR -

accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

The estimated fair values of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
granted on 30 April 2017 are RMB6,305,000.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The major inputs into the model were as

follows:

Granted date

e Gf=pet
Exercise price*
TEE
Expected volatility
TAER I8
Expected life
TEHA4F H)
Risk-free rate
L A =
Expected dividend yield
TRHARR B &

* The exercise price was fixed at RMB8,750,000 for 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the comparable companies’ share price over the
previous 10 years. The expected life used in the model has
been stated in the option scheme. The risk free rate was
referred to the China sovereign bond yield with the term close

to the option life as at the grant date.

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately
RMB 1,006,000 (2019: RMB1,301,000) in relation to share
options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing date.

RGO BERNIZNARS (&)

MR2017F4A308 ' EREH R AR
ERERETENGTAARBEAARE
6,305,000 7T °

AARBEEEA-BEANEEERAMAE
B - FRANEERHAREBELT

30 April 2017
20174 4 A30H
0.23

60.4%

10 years

104
3.5%

0.0%

* TRRERADR ETERRDEEHI5%Mm
5 I EEERSARE 8,750,000 7T

BHRE D RIBEAT B LR AR REREE
10FMEERIRETE - ZRAMERNTE
HERHTINEERES S - BERRAXZ
EhETIEEsRER  FEHREON
BT BBNERESE -

H E2020F12A31A L FE- A&
E AR RRE & XA RE SR ERE
eI ERERERASAEOAREK
1,006,000 7T (20194 : A R # 1,301,000
7T) °
BRARTREARIE B X AR S AT ERR RS B
REOBRENRODBLETSBAEARTRN
ETHESBEANEBITIRAN30% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

40

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Name of
subsidiaries

WEARER

Directly held:

ERRE

WeiGang Environment
Limited

EERRERAT

Jade Far Investment

Limited

NEREER AT

Definite Thrive Limited

BEAR AT

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

ML/ KB

11 May 2017

2017F5R11H

16 May 2017

2017F58 16 H

19 March 2019

2019F3 A 19H

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
BRI/ AR
wHRERKA

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RBEAREE

BRAR

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RBEARES

BRAA

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RBRAREE

BRAR

Issued and fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRATRAR
Bx/ERER

1 ordinary share of US$1

each

1hEREE

1XTHEER

US$1,001

1,001 £

US$50,000

50,000%7T

RRATRWHBARFE

RI|BEHR - ARBEELEEFE W
BRAFHBENTX -

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE 2 AL

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
AEER2A31 AL

BERER Principal
2020 2019 activities
2020% 2019  XEEH
% %
100.00 100.00 Investment holding
RERR
100.00 100.00  Investment holding
RERR
100.00 100.00  Investment holding

REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WELREH

Indirectly held:
HERE

Weigang Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited
BEER(EE)BRAT

Jade Road Investment
Limited
AREEBRAA

Weigang Development
(Hong Kong) Limited
BERR(BR)BRAR

Date of
incorporation/

establishment

MR/ KA

19 September 2016

20169 A 198

28 October 2015

2015510 A28 B

24 April 2019

201954 A 248

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
S/ KL
WEREERR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt ARLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B ARAA

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR
Ba/ZRER

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

10,000 10,000 7% L&)
el

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

10,000 /% 10,000 87T/
LR

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

10,000 % 10,000 % 70
LRk

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE AL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
AEER12B3182

BERER
2020 2019
2020 20194
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FAERRE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AKER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERED Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRATRAR
WEAR AR BRI/ HRIAE  HEREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %
Guangzhou Weigang 15 July 2009 PRC, sino-foreign Issued and fully paid 90.00 90.00  Providing solutions
equity joint venture up capital as at 31 for solid waste
December 2020: treatment
RMB196,129,820
(2019:
RMB186,930,920)
BN E 200967 A 158 BE - HSARELE R2020F12A31BHE REBERENRER
BORBRKRE - AR RAER

#196,129,820 7£(2019
F: AR 186,930,920

7o)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB400,000,000
(2019:
RMB400,000,000)

R 2020512 A31 B
EMEA : ARK
400,000,0007T
(2019 : ARH
400,000,0007¢)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &EBM)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERER Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRIRAR
WEAR AR BMAY/BIAE  HEFREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %

Xinjiang Wosen 17 November 2011 PRC, sino-foreign Issued and fully paid 45.90 45.90  Providing
Environmental equity joint venture up capital as at 31 research and
Protection Technology December 2020: development of
Limited (“Xinjiang RMB10,000,000 (2019: environmental
Wosen” )’ RMB10,000,000) protection
(Notes f & g) technologies

and facilities

MBRRRREHR 2011F11A178 TE - mARELE R2020F12A31EME RACRRAIT R R E
BREMEAR BORBRERAE - AR fis
([HBAR]) #10,000,0007£.(2019
(Hittkg) &+ AR% 10,000,000

)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB10,000,000 (2019:
RMB10,000,000)

12020512 A31 A&
EMER : AR%
10,000,0007C(2019
& AR%10,000,000
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEAREH

Shenzhen Xinnengji
Technology
Limited (“Shenzhen
Xinnengji")* (Note a)

YR BRI
BRAR (R
el (Hita)

Date of
incorporation/

establishment

MR/ KRS

24 November 2016

20165 11 H24H

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
S/ KL
WEREERR

PRC, Corporate-owned
limited liability
company

E - CEER

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRATRAR
Bx/ZRER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2020:

RMB20,980,000 (2019:

RMB20,980,000)

2020512 A31 AME
BORBRRA - AR
# 20,980,000 7£.(2019
£+ AR 20,980,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:

RMB28,000,000 (2019:

RMB28,000,000)

720204 12 A 31 A H
HMEA : AR%
28,000,0007%(2019
& AR% 28,000,000
)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FAERRE AL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
AEER12A31AZ

BERER
2020 2019
2020 20194
% %
90.00 90.00

Principal
activities

FEED

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

RERRRM R R
HHfE
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e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Place of
Date of incorporation/
Name of incorporation/ establishment
subsidiaries establishment and legal form
S/ KL
WEAREH HMAEL/RIBH  BEREEKR
Guangdong Lvhuan 28 August 2017 PRC, sino-foreign
Taian Environmental equity joint venture

Protection Limited®
(Note g)

BERBREZRR 201758728 H TE - RARALE
BRAR(HiEg)

40 ADATHHEA DB

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR
Ba/ZRER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2020:
RMB1,000,000 (2019:
RMB60,000)

12020512 A31AHE
BORBRRE - AR
#1,000,000 7(2019
£: AE#%60,0007)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB10,000,000 (2019:
RMB10,000,000)

12020512 A31 A&
EMER : AR%
10,000,0007(2019
& : AR%10,000,000
)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE AL

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
AEER12831A2
ERER
2020 2019

2020 20194
% %

45.90 45.90

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T
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activities
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Inactive



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FeEREE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER12A31AL
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ BERED Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
BRI/ AR BRTRAR
WEARER HMAL/RIAY  BEREEFS BA/ERESR 2020F 2019  XEED
% %

Shenzhen Kaipu 29 May 2007 PRC, limited liability Issued and fully paid 90.00 90.00  Providing
Lansheng Energy company up capital as at 31 research and
Environmental December 2020: development of
Protection Co., Ltd RMB8,987,070 (2019: environmental
(“Shenzhen Kaipu” )* RMB8,987,070) protection
(Note e) technologies

and facilities

RIREELRRRGR 2007558298 HE - BRAT 182020 12 A31 AHE RRACRRAI KR
BRR7A BORBRRA - AR HHE
(TRYIFE ) #8,987,070 7£(2019
(Hite) F: AR¥8,987,070

)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB8,987,070 (2019:
RMB8,987,070)

12020612 A 31 A
FMER : AR%
8,987,07070(2019% :
AR¥8,987,0707C)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &EBM)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERER Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRIRAR
WEAR AR BMAY/BIAE  HEFREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %

Qingchuan Kaipu 23 March 2018 PRC, limited liability Issued and fully paid 81.00 81.00  Providing
Environmental company up capital as at 31 research and
Construction Co., Ltd* December 2020: development of
(Note e) RMB900,000 (2019: environmental

RMB600,000) protection
technologies
and facilities

BIFERELR 201843 A 23H TE - BRAF 120205 12 A31 AHE RERRRM R R
BRRR(MHe) BEORBRRE - AR HOH 3

#.900,000 7T (2019 %
AR 600,0007)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB10,000,000 (2019:
RMB10,000,000)

202012 A 31 A
HMER - ARK
10,000,000 75(2019
&+ AR¥10,000,000

L)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEARER

Debo Environmental
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd
("Debo” )

EERE(BMBRAT

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

HMARY/ KRS

22 May 2019

2019F5 A 228

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
FMAL/ B I
WEREEKA

PRC, wholly foreign-

owned enterprise

hE - HIEBELE

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
BE/EMER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2020:

RMB50,000,000 (2019:

RMB30,174,787)

R2020F 12 A31 BAIE
BORBERRE - AR
#50,000,0007C(2019
& AR%30,174,787
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:

RMB50,000,000 (2019:

RMB50,000,000
2020612 A31 A4
HMEL : ARE
50,000,0007%(2019
£+ AR 50,000,000

)

Proportion of
ownership interest
FrEREEZEAL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
AEEAR12B31A2

RERER
2020 2019
2020 % 20196
% %
100.00 100.00

Principal

activities

TRED

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

RERREN RERiE
b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &EBM)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRERE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERER Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRIRAR
WEAR AR BMAY/BIAE  HEFREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %
Xinjiang Tiansheng® 26 December 2016 PRC, limited liability Issued and fully paid 60.00 N/A Providing oilfield
(Note c) company up capital as at 31 auxiliary
December 2020: services
RMB26,000,000
MBRE(Mitc) 201661226 H TE - BRAF 12020512 A31 AHE TNER  REHEEERS
BORBRRAE - AR
# 26,000,000 7

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB50,000,000

12020512 A31 B
EMEL : AR%
50,000,000 7T

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FAERRE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AKER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERED Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRATRAR
WEAR AR BRI/ HRIAE  HEREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %

Karamay Shuangxin 12 August 1998 PRC, limited liability Issued and fully paid 32.94 N/A~ Providing oilfield
Company Limited* company up capital as at 31 auxiliary
(Note ¢ and g) December 2020: services

RMB10,010,000

RUBKEEEREE 1998587128 ME - ARAT 12020512 A31 AHE TR REHEEERS

Ral(HitcRg) BEORBRRE - AR
#10,010,0007

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB10,010,000

1R 20205 12 A 31 BHY
EMEL : AR%
10,010,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEARER

#

Qingyang Qingyi
(Note d)

EREZ(Witd)

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

MR/ KA

30 September 2014

2014F9A30H

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
FMAL/ B I
WEREEKA

PRC, limited liability
company

HE - BRAT

40 ARATMMERBFHE#)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
BE/EMER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2020:
RMB9,752,000

20204512 A31 BHE
BIOIRBERE : AR
9,752,000 7T

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB60,000,000

2020512 A 31 BHY
FMER : AR
60,000,000 7T

Proportion of
ownership interest
kRS ZBAL

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
AEER12A31AZ

RERER
2020 2019
2020 F 20195
% %
73.00 N/A
TR

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T

Principal
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TRED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FAERRE AL

Group’s effective interest

Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AKER12A3182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/ ERED Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form registered capital 2020 2019 activities
S/ KL BRATRAR
WEAR AR BRI/ HRIAE  HEREERR BA/EMESR 2020 F 2019F  XEE
% %
Akesu Debo 27 June 2019 PRC, limited liability Registered capital as at 70.00 70.00  Inactive
Environmental Co., company 31 December 2020:
Ltd* RMB 10,000,000 (2019
RMB10,000,000)
MrEERREERAR 2019F6A27H PE - BRAF 1202045 12 A31 B RER
FMER : AR
10,000,000 7(2019
: AR¥10,000,000
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Place of
Date of incorporation/
Name of incorporation/ establishment
subsidiaries establishment and legal form
FMAL/ B I
WEARERE HMAL/RIAY  BEREEFS
Guangdong Qizhou 8 July 2019 PRC, wholly foreign-
Weigang Co., Ltd" owned enterprise
BREMEBRRER 201957 A8H HE HEEERE
A

40 ADATHHEA DB

Proportion of
ownership interest
kRS ZBAL

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
Issued and fully paid AEER12A31AZ

share capital/ BERED

registered capital 2020 2019

BRARBR

RE/EmEAR 20205 20194
% %

Issued and fully paid 100.00 100.00

up capital as at 31
December 2020:
RMB31,100,000 (2019:
RMB30,000,000)

20204 12 A 31 AHE
BARBERE : AR
#31,100,00075(2019
& AR%30,000,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:
RMB50,000,000 (2019:
RMB50,000,000)

R 20204512 A 31 BA)
FMER : AR
50,000,000 7t(2019
%+ AR#50,000,000
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEARAE

Weierneng
Environmental
(Suzhou) Limited
(“Weierneng
Environmental” )*
(Note b and g)

BRRRRER (BN
BRAR(HAER
&) (Hratb K g)

Date of
incorporation/

establishment

HEMARY/ KIS

25 July 2018

20187 A 250

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
BRI/ AR
wHRERKA

PRC, Natural person
investment or
holding limited
liability company

E - AAARETER
BRAT]

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
BA/ERESR

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2020:

RMB 18,000,000 (2019:

RMB7,376,000)

1 2020%F 12 A31 AME
BORBERE : AR
#18,000,000 7£(2019
£+ \NR#7,376,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2020:

RMB20,000,000 (2019:

RMB20,000,000)

20205 12 A 31 BEY
EMER - AR
20,000,0007c(2019
&+ AR 20,000,000
)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FeEREE AL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
AEER12A31AL

R &R
2020 2019
2020 F 2019F
% %
51.00 45.90

Principal

activities

TEED

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

RERREN RRGE
ki
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEARRE

Karamay Shuangxin

Date of
incorporation/

establishment

MR/ KA

2 June 2020*

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
ZMERL/ AR
wHRERKA

PRC, limited liability

40 AR FRIHIE A R RS

Proportion of
ownership interest

FAEREZEDL

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
BA/ERESR

Registered capital as at

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
AEER12A31AL

ERER Principal

2020 2019 activities

2020% 2019  IEED
% %

32.94 N/A~ Providing oilfield
auxiliary
services

TER  REAEEERS

Environmental company 31 December 2020:
Technology Limited RMB10,000,000
(Note g)
RUBKEEREME  2020F6 A28 HE - BRAT 720204 12 A31 BHY
BRAR(M#g) FMER : ARE
10,000,000 7T
# The English name is for identification only. ¢
* Incorporated during the year. *
Note: Mt -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, an amount of (a)
RMB6,580,300 was paid to Shenzhen Xinnengji as capital
injection by the Group. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
outstanding amount of RMB7,019,700 has not yet been paid by
the Group.
(b)  Weierneng Environmental was established as a limited liability (b)

company under the laws of the PRC on 25 July 2018 and an
indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which
is owned as to 51% by Shenzhen Xinnengji and 49% by an
independent third party, Party D. According to the Articles of
Association of Weierneng Environmental, the capital injection of
the shareholders should be paid to Weierneng Environmental no
later than 31 August 2037.

X ETRERES -
R EREM AL

HZE2019F12A31BLEEE  AEEHM
I BEAR 2 1 A R % 6,580,300 T fE A 7E
& o 20204 K% 20196 12A31H * A&
A AR 7,019,700 TA S -

B BEIRIRN 2018 F 7 A 25 BIR B Bl %
BRIA—RABRRDF  AARBIKIEEIE
2EMBAR - BRYIFERMBLE=H
THDRIHEE51% K 49% M i o RIEE
WEERIRAEHERMA - BT FTERERN
20378 A 31 BATX N FEBRALIRIR o

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B IR Bl IZR EH A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amounts of
RMB5,304,000 (2019: RMB2,876,000) and RMB5,320,000 (2019:
RMB2,500,000) were paid to Weierneng Environmental by the
Group and Party D, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
outstanding amounts of RMB1,020,000 (2019: RMB6,324,000)
and RMB980,000 (2019: RMB6,300,000) have not been paid by
the Group and Party D, respectively.

On 23 June 2020, Weierneng Environmental was acquired by
Debo. As a result, the Group’s effective interest has changed
from 45.9% to 51% as disclosed in Note 44.

On 26 March 2020, the subsidiary of the Group, Debo, has
acquired 60% equity interests in Xinjiang Tiansheng from an
independent third party at consideration of approximately
RMB18,552,000 as disclosed in Note 41.

On 16 January 2020, the subsidiary of the Group, Debo, has
acquired 73% equity interests in Qingyang Qingyi from an
independent third party at consideration of approximately
RMB7,000,000 as disclosed in Note 42.

On 9 May 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Guangzhou
Weigang, has acquired 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Kaipu
from an independent third party at consideration of RMB1 as
detailed in Note 41.

On 5 August 2019, the Group has partial disposed of 49% the
equity interests of Xinjiang Wosen to an independent third party
as disclosed in Note 44.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group holds less than 50% of the registered capital of these
subsidiaries. The Group controls the composition of the Board
of directors of these subsidiaries and has control over them.
Therefore, they are classified as the subsidiaries of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

(b)

(e)

®

40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)

Bet - (&)

(%)

H 20206128318 L EE A& E
ETHERBBEBRRIIZINARE
5,304,0007C(20194F : A R %2,876,000
7T) R AR 5,320,000 L(20194F : AR
2,500,0007T ) © A 2020%F 12 A31H + &
EERT 75 i#A AR 1,020,0007t(2019
F : AR¥6,324,0007T) & A R# 980,000
TL(20194F : AR¥ 6,300,000 70) AT ©

1202046 A23H * B MERERAEEIKR
B o AL RINKTE44FTIRE - AL EE
B EZRHA459% EFE H51% ©

AN TE 41 T EE - 70 20205F3 A 26 H -
AEBHBAREER - RBLE=FTK
BB REORKE HEHRARK
18,652,000 7T °

AN TE 42 PR ER - 70202051 A 16 H -
AEEWBAREEA—EBYE =K
BEMEZENTIRRE  HEHNAARK
7,000,000 7T °

K A TR EE - R2019F 590 -
AEEBNHBRARIEMNEBSAARE 1T
B R — 2B 8= F KRB LA
100% R #E °

HANH FE44 P BE - 201968 A5 H -
AEEER—EBLE=FIHHEFBR
FREN 49% AR HE o

HZE2020F % 2019F 12 A31HILFE -
REBRFAZZME DR DR 50% KM &
Ao REBEFIZEMBRRERGHER
WHEEAEGIE - At - REWHERAX
EENMEAR -

BEMB R RNFERBETEAELKES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Place of
incorporation and Proportion of ownership
principal place of interests and voting rights held

Name of subsidiary business by non-controlling interests
EMRIHEREE FERERFEFERRER
WEAREH EEHY RRFRHE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020 2019F

12A318 12A318

Guangzhou Weigang The PRC 10% 10%
B & e

Xinjiang Tiansheng The PRC 40% N/A
MEXE il TR

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E R RERIFE IR ER G R A 7

40 AN FMHIE D DB

BEERFEZEREZNF2ENBRAAF

&

T&RFRK2020F K 2019612431 H
AREREERGERESNIEZEMN B

DR -

Profit allocated to non-

controlling interests

ARTERREZNFE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20205 20195
128318 128318
RMB'000 RMB000
ANEEFT NREFTL
1,977 12,904
4,290 N/A
A

Accumulated non-controlling

interests

R FERER
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020 20195
12R31H 12A31H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AEEFT
56,627 53,730
20,761 N/A
TER

LA R FT 8k B 7R 2020 4F & 2019 4F 12 A 31
BARKEES ENIFERERDMNE R A
2L AR o THB AR 25
EENEIERI 2S5 -



B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

40 AL TEHIKIE D RFE )

Guangzhou Weigang BN E
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARKTFT
Current assets MENEE 760,248 631,098
Non-current assets ERBEE 108,069 134,286
Current liabilities REAE 289,122 225,864
Non-current liabilities EREN A E 11,919 2,221
Equity attributable to owners of the RABHEE AELER
Company 510,649 483,569
Non-controlling interests of BN 4 7 2 FEPE R A
Guangzhou Weigang 56,627 53,730
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFr
Revenue WA 534,843 606,594
Expenses M (515,074) (477,550)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A& & 2 U A 45
for the year 19,769 129,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARH BB Y/ 4
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZADTWKHEBABFEE)
COMPANY (continued)
Guangzhou Weigang (continued) B4 (4F)
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT EINME S IR =
interests of Guangzhou Weigang — —
Net cash outflow from operating KETEEEAMNBE ST IFE
activities (60,149) (50,251)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BETZBELENRSTEAN
investing activities (i) F %8 6,997 (39,373)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEDHELENRSTAFRE
activities 35,625 151,649
Net cash (outflow)/inflow B&ORb) RAFE (17,527) 62,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ARFHMEQTFE )
COMPANY (continued)
Xinjiang Tiansheng and its subsidiaries FEAERHEMEAR
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARMFr
Current assets mENEE 94,412 —
Non-current assets FMENEAE 54,587 =
Current liabilities mEAE 96,443 =
Non-current liabilities EREN A E — =
Equity attributable to: LATR % 77 FE AL e 2
— Owners of the Company — ARRHEAE A 31,795 —
— Non-controlling interests of — ERERMEBATZ
Xinjiang Tiansheng and its AR 2
subsidiaries 20,761 —
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
Revenue ON 48,507 —
Expenses X (43,210) —
Profit and total comprehensive income R FE & 2 WA 4L 58
for the year 5,297 —
Profit and total comprehensive income A& 75 FEAEFIE & 2 E U A 42
attributable to: o
— Owners of the Company — RARERA 1,007 —
— Non-controlling interests of — ERERMEBARZ
Xinjiang Tiansheng and its SRR 5
subsidiaries 4,290 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR¥EREN) '
40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 AARMMHEARFE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Xinjiang Tiansheng and its subsidiaries (continued) FERERHEKBAR(E)
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARKTFT
Dividends paid to non-controlling B EREEE IR ERRE
interests of Xinjiang Tiansheng
Group — _
Net cash outflow from operating KEEBELANR SR FE
activities (17,784) —
Net cash outflow from investing RETHEENRSRLFHE
activities (2,833) —

Net cash inflow financing activities BB EBELENRERAFE — —

Net cash outflow &M F58 (20,617) —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

41

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Xinjiang Tiansheng Group

On 27 December 2019, Debo, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Capital Injection and
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Xinjiang
Tiansheng Group and two independent third parties, Xinjiang
Hongtong Industry and Trade Co., Ltd.* (“Hongtong”)
and Mr. Tian Yixin. Pursuant to the Agreement, Debo
agreed to subscribe for 60% equity interests in Xinjiang
Tiansheng Group by way of capital injection in the amount of
RMB24,000,000.

On 26 March 2020, the transaction has been completed,
Xinjiang Tiansheng Group became a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. Xinjiang Tiansheng Group is
principally engaged in the business of provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption treatment services and oilfield
auxiliary services. The acquisition has been accounted for as

acquisition of business using the acquisition method.

Based on valuation provided by an independent valuer
who assessed the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired, goodwill of approximately RMB18,277,000
arising from the acquisition has been recognised during the
year.

* The English name is for identification only.

M

s 5 B S X
HEREERE

B2019F 12 A27 B » AR AN EEKB
AEEEEREBRESEUEMEE LR
=hHEBARTIEERAR(IRE]) KH
HHEEFEERBRR(HRED - B
B - =ERELE A K 24,000,000
TLARREE R IB R BB B 60% IR HE -

20203 H26H © LR HE T
HMEREEEXKARNEERNEZENEA
Al BERESEFERERE AR
Bt B 2 AR5 KoM H B AR A 75 © AR IR
BRI A ABRDIVER TSI -

AR IE 8 7 14 18 B 3 AR W B 1O 7T 8
EEEMRBRENDIAEBEMLE  BRA
FECHERIARNBBELENHEOARY
18,277,000 7T °

* X ATEERBR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41 WEEMEB QR #E)
FEBREEE(E)

RUEB R PRREHE AR REIE
ENBENAABENT

Xinjiang Tiansheng Group (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquired subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition are as

246
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follows:
RMB’000
AREFr
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) M - BB R (T 14) 14,526
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WEmE - BEREENZS
equipment 12,934
Trade and note receivables E 5 WK IE R KRR 33,681
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables ’e - AR RIE R EA R KRR 20,944
Bank balances and cash RITHARRE S 28,552
Trade payables B RN HIE (83,633)
Other payables and accrued expenses H At T RUE R BT (3,928)
Contract liabilities AHEE (101)
Income tax payable FEANFRSEL (9)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) RIEFIEBE (K77 20) (257)
22,709
Non-controlling interests FJEIERR R (16,986)
Goodwill (Note 17) EEHF17) 18,277
Consideration HE 24,000
Satisfied by: ATF) AR -
Cash BHe 10,000
Other payables E e 5RIE 14,000
24,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)

41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41 WEHELE )
Xinjiang Tiansheng Group (continued) HERBEEE)
Non-controlling interests IR
The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling AEFEDERERRANBERAREBERER
interest at its fair value for this acquisition. The fair value of FEFERR M Z o PO RN IE KBRS [E MY FE T AR A
the non-controlling interest in Xinjiang Tiansheng Group was mAREBENEREERANEHE -

estimated by applying the replacement cost approach.

Goodwill arising on acquisition KBELEHEE

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Xinjiang Tiansheng Group WENEREEEEEREAZBRE
because the acquisition included the assembled workforce of BRENEBREEBETE TR NIE
Xinjiang Tiansheng Group and some potential contracts which HEMDAEEBENMBEPERNEBEESL -
are still under negotiation with prospective new customers HRZENERFTEERBAUHMANERLE
at the date of acquisition. These benefits are not recognised EREE - I EEEE SRR o

separately from goodwill because they do not meet the

recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

The goodwill arising on this acquisition is not expected to be R E AR R B TE A AR o

deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of Xinjiang WEBEXEEBELENE L TAFE

Tiansheng Group

RMB’000
AEET T
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig ARIRITHEM MRS 28,552
Less: consideration paid in cash Ji - PAIR & XAV B (10,000)
18,552
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group V-t d-ES A
Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F 12 A31BIEENEESRS
is profit of approximately RMB2,314,000 attributable to FEHEREELNEINERFEN AR
the additional business generated by Xinjiang Tiansheng. 2,314,000 7T ° & £20204 12 A 318 1t
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 includes FEREMIABIEFREREEAHILAL A
approximately RMB48,507,000 generated from Xinjiang R ¥ 48,507,000 7T ©
Tiansheng.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41 WEBKHBAT @
Xinjiang Tiansheng Group (continued) FEXEEE(E)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WS N EEEN T E(E)
(continued)
Had the acquisition of Xinjiang Tiansheng been completed on 1 BREWKEFEREN2020F1A1H8 =T
January 2020, revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 B RIARNEBEZ2020F 12 A31 HIEF
of the Group would have been approximately RMB552,980,000, EMRA 4 B AR 552,980,000 7T -
and the loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have MBE 20204F 12 A 31 A IEFEREBEH
been approximately RMB6,599,000. %5 AR 6,599,000 7T °
In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the BREFTEREEBR AT  RE
Group had Xinjiang Tiansheng Group been acquired at the EAEEEZ WA RFBEE - AAEE
beginning of the current year, the directors of the Company EREBEYE  BMENMEREAWEBHBHNE
calculated depreciation and amortisation of property, plant BRLSENTEME  BMEERBEOTE R
and equipment based on the recognised amounts of property, By o
plant and equipment at the date of the acquisition.
Shenzhen Kaipu YIRS
On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a sales and purchase M2019F5H9R  "EEE—KBFILE
agreement with Mr Zhang LiQin, an independent third party, =HARAMERTFILEEDRE Bt - &N
pursuant to which a subsidiary of the Group, Guangzhou EBHERREMNGE B IREEAREA
Weigang, has acquired 100% of the equity interests in TTUWE R EYIB A 100% A% #E - U iE =
Shenzhen Kaipu at a consideration of RMB1. The acquisition THE R 2019 F 5= o RIIFERFERE
has been completed in 2019. Shenzhen Kaipu is engaged in EEEEY R IR -
the provision of solid waste treatment in the PRC.
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the date AHNEERBEREERHNAREE
of acquisition is as follows: mr
RMB’000

ARE T
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHAER 1,080
Other receivables H i fE W R IE 920
Other payables E e 5RE (2,000)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB BANEEFE —*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBRER)

41

42

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Shenzhen Kaipu (continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Shenzhen Kaipu

W s B B R (4%)
RYNBAE ()

W RYIBE R L MAEER

RMB’000
ARMFor

Consideration satisfied by: ATE RS EE -
Cash paid BffIRE =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B FTEANRE RBAEEFED 1,080
Net cash inflows included in investing activities FFAREEBNRETAFE 1,080

* less than RMB1,000

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 16 January 2020, the Group acquired 73% equity interest
in Qingyang Qingyi at a cash consideration of RMB7,000,000.
The principal activity of Qingyang Qingyi is holding of a
concession right and classified as an intangible asset. This
acquisition is determined by the directors of the Company to
be acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of a
subsidiary rather than as business combination because the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed did not constitute a
business as defined under IFRS 3.

* DI AR A1,0007T

42 ZEBYWE-—EMNEARBBEE

R2020F1A16 8 AEBELE S HE
AR ¥ 7,000,000 7T 42 88 BB 5 B 2% 73% A%
- BEEENETEERRAFARTLES
B DERBEREE - ARFIBANEE
K BT B &I T 1 A B R B 7 R o 2
AIVE 3SRFTREMETS - MR IRWEEE A
NAEZETREBKENBERARKES
ERaE  mIEEBEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREERER)
42 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 42 ZEBRWE-—HBENEBARWBEE®)
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
The net assets acquired in the above acquisition are as R B ERFTEANEEFENT
follows:
RMB’000
ARHTFT
Intangible asset BAE 9,612
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables BE TR R E b W GRIE 20
Bank balances and cash RITHABR RIS —*
Other payables and accrued expenses H fth JE < 5RIE R BRI X (43)
Net assets BEFE 9,589
Less: Non-controlling interests JBc FETERR RS (2,589)
Consideration HE 7,000
Satisfied by: ATE) AR A
Cash Re 1,500
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary W B BT B R R M TE A IR 5,500
7,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of Qingyang Qingyi WEEGESELCNRERL =S
RMB’'000
AR TFT
Bank balances and cash acquired FriE ABVERTTAE A RIR & —*
Less: consideration paid in cash i LIRS T NREE (1,500)
(1,500)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR
The non-controlling interest (27%) in Qingyang Qingyi REERARERNEGERIETERER
recognised at the acquisition date was measured by reference (27%) N2 EEGERCRAEEFEM
to the proportionate share of recognised amounts of net HEEplETE - 9B AR 2,589,0007T °

assets of Qingyang Qingyi and amounted to approximately
RMB2,589,000.

* 7N FA =
* Less than RMB1,000 LR AR 1,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
43 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 43 HE—REKHE QT

On 21 May 2019, Guangzhou Weigang have made a capital
injection which represents 60% shareholding of Guangzhou

Weigang.

On 8 October 2019, the Group and the shareholder of
Weigang Hongda entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group and
the shareholder of Weigang Hongda agreed to sell 19% and
13% equity interests of Weigang Hongda to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion
of disposal, the equity interest held by Guangzhou Weigang is
decreased from 60% to 41%. As a result, the Group’s effective

equity interests in Weigang Hongda has reduced from 54%

R2019F5 218 BEMNAEEE TEHE
BB 4TS 60% I ER) S5 o

R2019F 10 A8 H « AKE K45 E
MR E — BB L =55 LR EE R
F B AEBERESLEORRERE
M—E2BIE=FUEBEARBITEE
B BLE19% R 13% M BE R AE R - R
EFETEXE - BMNEBFTEOREER
B 60% M E41% o Bt - NEERKES
SANERN B IEZRT R 54% ME37% © #8
BLE B LK AR E BB E R o

to 37% and, since then, Weigang Hongda has become an
associate of the Group.

HENERHERHRNEEFENT

The net assets of Weigang Hongda at the date of disposal

were as follows:

RMB’000
ARMFT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFHE:
Cash and bank balances He RIRITHER 10
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 10
RMB’000
ARMFr
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHREARNER :
Consideration received B2 B =
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (10)
Investment in associates retained RERBEDENRE 4
Loss on disposal & SEAEE (6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR® REA)
43 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 43 HE— MBI @)
RMB’000
ARETT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEEENESREFE
Cash consideration REHE =
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITEHBKRS (10)
(10)
* Less than RMB1,000 * LR AR 1,0007T
44 TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 44 BRFRBEZHZS
INTERESTS
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary W — B AT WREIMER
On 23 June 2020, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the MR2020FE6 A23 8 ' EMGEE(KERN
Group, Guangzhou Weigang, disposed of all of its equity E2ERBAT) MEB(AEBNDEN
interests in Weierneng Environmental to a wholly-owned BATH)HEHEREBBRZFAEREZ -
subsidiary of the Group, Debo, at cost of RMB5,100,000. KA A A RM5100,0007 © H It - A&
As a result, the Group’s effective interest in Weierneng ERAERABERN TR 459% & 5
Environmental has been changed from 45.9% to 51% 51% o
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)
44 TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 44

INTERESTS (continued)

Partial disposal of a subsidiary without losing control

On 5 August 2019, Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu Xin Wei
(“Mr. Zhu"), an independent third party entered into capital
injection for the increase of Xinjiang Wosen’s registered
capital from RMB5,000,000 to RMB10,000,000 in which,
Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu injected RMB100,000 and
RMB4,900,000 into Xingjiang Wosen, respectively. After the
above capital injection, Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu own
51% and 49% equity interest in Xinjiang Wosen respectively,
and Xinjiang Wosen remains as a subsidiary of the Group.

BEFERESNRS (#)

BOHE-—HHEAR(RAEEFE)

R2019F 8 A5H + FE M # & B — 3
BN E = AR EE(REEDTIL
BE . BHEBEARNEMERAHARE
5,000,000 7T # i1 = A R % 10,000,000
T HA o BENEBREREES R
ERFRIEE ARM100,0007T M A R
4,900,000 7T ° £ Eit3g & ek & - BN
HERKRTEEDDIGERFERRS1% K
49% Kk HE - AFMIBARDAREAEED
M AR -

RMB’000
AREFr
Carrying amount of net assets transferred to non- EEREIEERERNEEFENER
controlling interests H{E (2,289)
Consideration received from non-controlling B I R 25 U ER Y 5 (B
interests 4,900
Gains on partial disposal of equity interest B B i 2 N AR Y AR AE W
recognised within equity 2,611
45 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 45 LEEF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

to the current year’s presentation.

ETHBBFEENIR  UNEAFE
ZE2HFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBREN)

46 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

46 AR EMBERRERHEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R BRRRKRE 4,821 3,813
Right-of-use assets FRELE 209 756
5,030 4,569
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - FENRIE R H AW GRIE
receivables 228 243
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YT B8 A R KT8 247,167 226,699
Bank balances and cash RITHEB KRS 11,317 56,783
258,712 283,725
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accrued M RE R ER X
expenses 218 836
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A R FRIB 8,992 7,878
Lease liabilities HEARE 221 546
9,431 9,260
Net current assets RBEEFE 249,281 274,465
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBRE 254,311 279,034
Non-current liabilities eI =N
Lease liabilities HEARE — 235
NET ASSETS EEFE 254,311 278,799
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A& 7R 55,100 55,100
Reserves bt 199,211 223,699
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 254,311 278,799

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B REBIHIZERERAER A T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB &)
46 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46 AATFBBERRERREEE)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves KATRESRE

Share-based

Share payment Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Rt AER
ROVEE — HXARE Hibf# e RitEE @t

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZT

At 1 January 2019 #2019 1A 18 23,583 2,160 8 (16,306) 9,445
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2ERM T A8

expense for the year — — — (594) (594)
Issue of ordinary shares RERAHBERTEAR

relating to IPO 227,195 — — — 227,195
Transaction costs attributable FEZE{THRHELNR S

to issue of new shares BRA (13,648) — — — (13,648)
Recognition of equity-settled RREEE AR BERE

share based payment LR — 1,301 — — 1,301

At 31 December 2019 and R2019612 A31H &

1 January 2020 2020F1R 1A 237,130 3,461 8 (16,900) 223,699
Loss and total comprehensive FREEKZEFAS 4

expense for the year — — — (25,494) (25,494)
Recognition of equity-settled  HERRIEEE AR AERE

share based payment Hy 3 — 1,006 — — 1,006
At 31 December 2020 R 2020512 831 B 237,130 4,467 8 (42,394) 199,211
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MHREE

Consolidated statement of profit or loss mERBEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 & 2019 F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFr
Revenue L'ON 536,811 537,509 480,091 189,407 88,971
Cost of sales HeERA (453,929) (393,273) (355,428) (127,303) (60,131)
Gross profit EF 82,882 144,236 124,663 62,104 28,840
Other income, gains and Hip A - e &
losses & 7,484 11,862 8,110 2,372 786
Administrative expenses TERAX (55,483) (39,764) (27,854) (11,743) (3,713)
Distribution and selling DIHREERA
costs (2,481) (2,280) (951) — —
Other expenses HibAx (21,890) (21,058) (29,251) (14,474) (5,571)
Impairment losses and B S EWFIE R
write-off of trade HAth FEUSCFRIE LA
receivables and other REKVEEN
receivables and contract BB R R
assets, net of reversal (30FR B[l (15,449) (767) (716) (767) (129)
Share of results of FEIEE S B EREE
associates (953) (13) — (675) 2,667
Finance costs BE AR (2,429) (1,094) (6,031) (438) —
(Loss)/profit before income K PTET AT (518),/
tax FE (8,319) 91,122 67,970 36,379 22,880
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERE R, (FIx) 949 (13,091) (10,559) (6,620) (3,357)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ FER (E#E) FI7E (7,370) 78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523
(Loss)/profit for the year L\ T & HEEER
attributable to: (&58), /%@ :
Owners of the Company AARERA (10,929) 66,984 49,799 30,195 19,523
Non-controlling interests FEE R 3,559 11,047 7,612 (436) —
(7,370) 78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523
Extracts from the consolidated statement of financial position 8k B4R S B ARR &
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 & 2019F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Total assets BERE 938,723 802,027 469,735 253,053 90,842
Total liabilities B &R (343,639) (227,886) (310,445) (218,356) (38,443)
Non-controlling interest FEE IR (89,739) (57,326) (27,220) 436 =
Equity attributable to ZAUNGIE S PNT
owners of the Company S 505,345 516,815 132,070 85,183 52,399
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GLOSSARY
BE

“AGM”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“CG Code”

“China” or “PRC”

“Company” or “we”

“DHW Holdings”

“Director(s)”

“Global Offering”

“Group”

the forthcoming annual general meeting for
the year 2020 of the Company

the audit committee under the Board

board of directors of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code as set out

in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

the People’'s Republic of China, but for
the purposes of this annual report and
for geographical reference only (unless
otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan,

Macau and Hong Kong

an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 18
May 2017 under the names of “Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group
Limited” and “#BINRBZIEREABTR LR
Fl”, and registered as a non-Hong Kong
company under Part 16 of the Companies

Ordinance

DHW Holdings Limited,
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability

a company

on 30 January 2018, which is wholly owned
by Mr. ZHANG

director(s) of the Company

the offer of the Company’s Shares for
subscription as described in the section
headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in

the Prospectus

the Company and its subsidiaries and

operating entities
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GLOSSARY
BE

“HKSCC”
“HK$” or “HKD”
“Hong Kong”

“IFRS”

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“Latest Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Memorandum
and Articles of

Association”

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for
the time being of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the International Financial Reporting
Standards, which include standards
and interpretations promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and the International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC)

any entity or person who is not a connected
person of the Company within the meaning

ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

14 April 2021, being the latest practicable
date for the purpose of ascertaining certain
information contained in this annual report

prior to its publication

3 January 2019 on which the Shares were

listed on the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited, as amended from time to time

the amended and restated memorandum
of articles of association and articles of
association of our Company, conditionally
adopted on 20 May 2018 with effect from
the Listing Date, and as amended from time

to time
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GLOSSARY

Bx

“Model Code”

“Nomination

Committee”
“Period”
“PBOC”

“Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme”

“Prospectus”

“Remuneration

Committee”

“RMB” or

“Renminbi”

“Reorganisation”

“SFO”

“SFC”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

the nomination committee under the Board

the year ended 31 December 2020

People’s Bank of China

the pre-IPO share option scheme of our
Company as approved by the Board on 10
December 2018 with effective immediately
prior to the completion of the Global

Offering

the prospectus of the Company dated 19
December 2018 in connection with the Hong
Kong public offering of the Company

the remuneration committee under the Board

the lawful currency of the PRC

the reorganisation of the Group in
preparation for Listing as set out in
the subsection headed “History and
Reorganisation and Group Structure -

Reorganisation” in the Prospectus

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as amended, supplemented or otherwise

modified from time to time

the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong
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GLOSSARY
BE

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shares”

“Stock Exchange”

“Weigang Green”

“WeiGang
Technology”

“op”

holder(s) of the Shares

shares in the share capital of the Company,

with a nominal value of HK$0.05 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Weigang Green Technology Limited, a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 8 June 2017, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Cai and is a Controlling
Shareholder

WeiGang Technology Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 3 January 2017, formerly known as “First
Jump Inc.”, which is indirectly wholly owned
by Mr. Cai through Weigang Green and is a
Controlling Shareholder

per cent.
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